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SEZC Sugar Limiied —
SBEC ZUGAR LIMITED
) REGISTERED OFFICE
Village .oyan Malalcpur, Tehsil Baraut, District Baghpat, Uittar Pradesh
NOTICE rotation, to hold office for a term of five consecutive years

Notice is hereby given that the 20" Annual General Meating of
the Shareholders of SBEC Sugar Limited will ba hald on Thursday,
the 25" day of September, 2014 at the Registered Office of the
company at Village: Loyan, Malakpur, Tehsil: Baraut, District:
Baghpat, Uttar Pradesh at 2.30 P.M. to transact the following
businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet
as at 31* March, 2014 and the Profit and Loss Account for
the period ended as on that date along with Directors’ Report
and Auditor’'s Report thereon.

To appoint a Director in piace of Mrs. Kumkum Maodi {DIN
00522904), wha retires by rotation, and being eligible offers
herself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

*RESOIVED THAT M/s Doogar & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, {Firm Registration No.000564N) be and is
hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company
to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting until the canclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company and at such remuneration as may
be mutually agreed hetween the Board of Directors of the
Company and the Statutory Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the foilowing
resolution with ar without modification, as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections
149,150, 152 read with Schedule [V and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
{Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014
{including any statutory modification(s} or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) and Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement, Mr. G. C. Jain {DIN 00002698), Director
of the Company who has submitted a declaration that he
meets the criteria of independence under Section 149(8) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing from a member
propasing his candidature for the office of Oirector, be and
is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, whose term shall not be subject to retirement by

commencing from September 25, 2014

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution with or without modification, as an Ordinary

Resoelution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections
149,150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicabie
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
{Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014
{including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time heing in force) and Clause 48 of the
Listing Agreement, Mr. Om Prakash Modi (IMN 00009490),
Director of the Company, whc has submitted a declaration
that he meets the criteria of independence under Section
149(8} of the Companies Act, 2013 and in raspect of whom
the Company has received a notice in writing from a member
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and
is hereby appeinted as an Independant Director of the
Company, whose term shali nct be subject to retirement by
rotation, 1o hold office for a term of five consecutive years
commencing from September 25, 2014.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution with or without modification, as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections
149,150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any cther applicabie
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014
(inctuding any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) and Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement, Mr. Philogene Claude (DIN 00088633},
Director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration
that he meets the criteria of independence under Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in respect of whom
the Gompany has received a notice in writing from a member
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and
is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, whose term shall not be subject to ratirement by
rotation, to hold offica for a term of five consecutive years
commencing from September 25, 20147

To consider and If thought fit, to pass the following
resofution with or without modification, as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the previsions of Sections
149,150, 152 read with Schedule [V and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
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{Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) and Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement, Mr. Manmohan (DIN 00207038}, Director
of the Campany, who has submitted a declaraticn that he
mests the criteria of independence under Section 149{(8) of
the Companiaes Act, 2013 and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing from a member
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and
is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, whose term shall not be subject to retirement by
rotation, to hold office for a term of five consecutive years
commencing from September 25, 2014

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution with or without modification, as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

*RESOQLVED THAT pursuant to ihe provisions of Sections
149,150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable
previsions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
{Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force} and Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement, Mr. Norland L. C. Suzer (DIN 00173485),
Director of the Company who has submitted a declaration
that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in
section 149(8) of the Act and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing from a member
proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and
is hereby appointed as an independent Director of the
Company, whose term shail not be subject to retirement by
rotation, to hold office for a term of five consecutive years
commencing from September 25, 2014

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution with or without modification, as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
reac with Companies {(Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, due to his ill-health Mr. Santosh
Chandra Gupta will cease to hold the office of Whole-time
Director (Works) of the Company on completion of his
present term on 17" june, 2014 and be and is hereby re-
designated and continue to hold the office as a Director of
the Company w.e.f. 18" June, 2014, liable to retire by
rotation.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution with or without modification, as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

11.

12.

"RESOIVED THAT pursuant to the provisions cof Section 148
and other applicable provisicns, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, Mis. M.K. Singhal & Co., Cost Accountants appceinted
as Cost Auditors by the Board of Directors of the Cempany
to audit the cost records of the Company for the financial
year 2014-15, be paid a remuneration of Rs. 60,00C per
annum plus applicable service iax and out of pockel
expenses that may be incurred.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directers of the
Company be and is heresby authorized to do all acts and
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to this resclution.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resaolution with or without modification, as a Special

"Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section

180(1)(c} and other applicable provisions, if any, of the

Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modifications
or any amendments or any substitution or re-enactment
thersof, if any, for the time being in force, consent of the
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
Board of Directors of the Company for borrowing from time
to time as they may think fit, any sum or sums of money not
exceeding Rs. 500 crores {inciuding the money already
borrowed by the Company] on such terms and conditions as
the Board may deem fit, whether the same may be secured
or unsecured notwithstanding that the morney to be borrowed
together with the money already borrowed by the Company
{apart from the temporary loans obtained from the Company’s
Bankers in the ordirary course of business) exceed the
aggregate, for the time being, of the paid-up capital of the
Company and its free reserves.

RESOILVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect
to the above Resolution, the Beard of Directors of the
Company be and is hereby authorised to take all such actions
and to give all such directions and to do all such acts, deeds,
matiers and things as may be necessary and/or expedient
in that behaif”

To consider and if thought fif, to pass the foilowing
resolution with or without maodification, as a Special
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 372A of the
Companies Act, 1958 and any other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 1958, the Corporate Guarantee
issued by the Board of Directors of the Company for an
amount of Rs. 20 erores in favour of SREI [nfrastructure and
Finance Limited towards the Term Loan sanctioned vide its
Sanction Letter Srei/PF/2013-14/SRE416/01 dated 5"
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Place : New Delhi
Date : 23" August, 2014
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February, 2014 to SBEC Bioenergy Limited, subsidiary
company of SBEC Sugar Ltd., notwithstanding that the
zggregate amount of all invesimants/loans/securities/
guarantees together with the said guaraniee exceeds 60%
of the aggregate of paid up capital and free resarves or 100%
of the free reserves, whichever is higher, be and is hereby
cenfirmed and ratified by the Company.

By arder of the Board
For SBEC Sugar Limited

Company Secretary

NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPCINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL IN HIS/HER
BEMALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT TO BE MEMBER OF
THE COMPANY.

THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY IN ORDER TO BE
EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DULY COMPLETED, STAMPED
AND SIGNED AND MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY ATLEAST 48
HOURS BEFORE THE SCHEDULED TIME OF
COMMENCEMENT OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING.
A BLANK PROXY FORM 18 ANNEXED HEREWITH.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with the applicable rules thereon, a person can
act as a proxy on behalf of members not excaeding fifty and
holding in the aggregate nct more than ten percent of the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights,
may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as a
proxy for any other membaer.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized
representatives to attend the meeting are requested to send
o the Company a certified copy of the Board resoclution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their
behalf at the meeting.

The Register of Members & Share Transfer Boaks of the
Company will remain closed from 18" September, 2014 to
25h September, 2014 {(both days inclusive).

Members, who hold shares in dematerialized form, are
requasted to notify, changes, if any, in their address, to their
respective Depository Participant and these, who hald shares
in physical form, may intimate the same to the Campany.

Shwetambery Khurana -

10.

11.

12.

Members/oroxies are requested to bring attendance slips
sent herewith duly filled in, for attending the meeting.

)

Members desiring any inforimation as regards to accounts
are reguested to address their questions to the Company
Secretary at least 7 days before tha date of the meeting so
that the required information is made available at the meeting.

Non-Resident Sharehclders are requested to inform
immediately the change in the residential status on return
for permanent settlement.

Members holding shares in physical form are advised to
make nomination in Form SH-13 in respect of their
sharehalding in the Company. The nomination form wilt be
made availabie by the Company on request.

Company will be disclosing to the Stock Exchanges, as per
Clause 35A of the Listing Agreement, the details of resuits
of voting on each of the resolutions proposed in this Notice.

in suppart of the green initiative of the Government, electronic
copy of the Annuai Report for Financial Year 2013-14 and
notice of the Twentieth Annual General Mesting of the
Company inter alia indicating the pracess and manner of e-
voting, Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to ali
the members whose email |IDs are registered with the
Company/Depository Participants{s) for communicaticn
purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy
of the same. For members who have not registered their
amail address, physical copies of the Annual Report for the
financial year 2013-14 and the Notice of the Twentieth Annual
General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the
pracess and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip
and Proxy Form is being sent in the permitted mode.

We, however, request and encourage you to register your
email-id for e-communication in the reccrds of your
Depository Participant {incase of electronic holding) / the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and the Company (in
case of physical shareholding) mentioning your demat
account datails / folio number. You may also, in crder to
register your email id send an email from the respective
email id to investors@sbecsugar.com, with a subject
“Registration of email id”

Members may also note that the Notice of the Twentieth
Annual General Mesting and the Annual Repott for financial
year 2013-14 wili also be available on the Company's
website i.e. www.shecsugar.com for their download.

Even after registering for e-communication, members are
entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon
making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any
communication/information, the members may also send
requests to the Company's investor email id
investors@sbecsugar.cem.
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13, A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companias
Act, 2013 relating to the Special Business 1o be tansacted
at the Mesting is annexed hereto.

14. Documents referred to in the accompanying notice are open
for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during
office hours on all working days between 11.00 AlM to 1.00
PM upto the date of Annual General Meeting.

15. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {(SEB!) has
mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number
(PAN) hy every participant in securities market. Members
hoidi'ng shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested
to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom
they are maintaining their demat accounts, Members holding
shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the
Company or to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

16. Voting through electronic means

l. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Ruls 20 of the Cempanies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the
Company is pleased to provide riembers facility to exercise
iheir right to voie at the 20" Annuai General Meeting (AGM)
by electronic means and the business may be transacted
through e-Voting Services provided by Central Depesitory
Services {India) Limited {CDSL):

The instructions for e-voting are as under:
A) In case of members receiving e-mail:
(i Log on to the e-voting website www_evotingindia.com.
(i) Click on “Shareholders” tab to cast your votes.

{iii) Now, select the Electronic Voting Sequence Number - “EVGN’
atong with "SBEC Sugar Limited” from the drop down menu
and click on “SUBMIT"

(iv) if you are holding shares in Demat form and have already
voted earlier on www.evotingindia.com for a voting of any
Company, then your existing login id and password are to be
used. if you are a first time user follow the steps given below.

{v) Now, fill up the foliowing details in the appropriate boxes:
User ID

For NSDL: 8 Character DP |D followed by 8 Digits Client IDFor
CDSL: 16 digits heneficiary ID for members holding shares in
demat form.

Folio Number registered with the Company for members holding
shares in physical form.

=

PAN*

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric “PAN issued by Income Tax
Department when prompted by the system while e-voting
(applicabie for both demat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders) '

DOB#

Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account cr in
the company records for the said demat account or folio in dd/
mm/fyyyy format.

Dividend Bank Details#

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account
or in the company records for the said demat account or folic.

*Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/
Depository Participant are requested to use first two letters of
their name and the last eight digits of the demat account ffolio
number in the PAN field. In case the folio number is less than 8
digits enter the applicabte number of 0's before the number after
the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL leiters.Eg. If your
name is Dhiraj Kumar with folio 3000 then enter DHO0003000 in
the PAN field.

# Please enter any one of the details in order to login. In case
either of the details are not recorded with the depositery/company,
please enter the number of shares held by you as on 22 August,
2014 in the Dividend Bank details fieid.

{vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on
“SUBMIT" tab.

(vil) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach
directly the EVSN selection screen, However, members
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily
enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly
note that this password is to be also used by the demat
holders for. voting for resolutions of any other company on
which they are eligible tc vote, provided that company opts
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any other
person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

(vii{YFor members holdings shares in physical form, the details
can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained
in this Notice.

{(ix) Click on the relevant EVSN on which you choose to vote.

{x) On the voting page, you will see Resolution. Description and
against the same the option “YES/NGC" for voting. Select the
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option YES or NQO as desired. The option YES implies that
you assent 1o the Resolution and option MO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

{(xi} Click on the “Resolutions Fie Link" if you wish to view the
entire Resolutions.

{xil) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on,
click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed. if
you wish o confirm your vote, click on “OK®, eise to ¢change
your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your
vote.

{xiii}Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resoluticn, you will
noi be aliowed to modify yeur vote,

{xiv)You can also take cut print of the ‘vgting done by you by
clicking on "Click here to print” _optio'n‘ on the Voting page.

{xv) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password
then Enter the User 1D and Captcha Code, click an Forgot
Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. -

{(xvi)Institutional sharehclders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF,
NRI etc.) are required io log on 1o htips://
www:evotingindia.co.in and reglister themselves, link their
account which they wish to vote on and then cast their vote.
They should upload a scanned capy of the Board Resolution
and POA in favour of the Custodian who they have authorised
to vote on their behalf, in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the vote.

B) In case of members receiving the physical ¢opy of Notice
of AGM [for members whose e-mail IDs are not registered
with the company/ depository participant(s) or requesting
physical copy]:

Please follow ali steps from s, no. (i) to sl. no. {xvi) above, to
cast vote.

C) The voting period begins on 19th September, 2014 (9.00
am) and ends on 21st September, 2014 (6.00 pm). During
this period sharehoiders’ of the Company, holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerlalized form, as en the
cut-off date 22nd August, 2014, may cast their vote
etectronically. The e-voting module shali be disabied by
CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is
cast by the sharsholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed
te change it subsequently.

D} In case you have any queries ar issues regarding e-voting,
you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and
evoting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under
help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

I1. a. Mrs. Simmi Jain, Practicing Chartered Accountant has been
appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize voting process in a
fair and transparent manner.

b, The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceading three (3)
warking days from tha conclusien of the e-voting period
unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) withesses
not in the employment of the Company and make a
Scrutinizer's Repert of the votes cast in favour or against, if -
any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

¢ The Results shall be declared on of after the AGM of the
Company. The Results deciared along with the Scrutinizer's
Report shall be avaiiable for inspection and also piaced on
the website of the Company within prescribed period.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

item Nos. 4 to 8

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 and other applicable
orovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to appointment
and tenure of the Independent Directors which came into effect
from April 1, 2014, the Independent Directors shall be appointed
for not mere than two terms of five years each and shall not be.
liable to retire by rotation. The Term shall be effective
prospectively.

The Board of Directors of the Company have decided to adopt
the provisicns with respect to appointment and tenure of
Independent Directors which is consistent with the Companies
Act, 2013 and the amended Listing Agreement.

The Directors in item na 4 to 7 proposed lo be appointed under
these resolutions are Non-Executive Independent Directors of
the Company and in item no 8 is the non-exscutive Director of
the Company. The period of office of these Directors was liable to
determination by retirement by rotation under the erstwhile
applicable provisions of the Compahies Act, 1956,

In terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. G. €. Jain, Mr. Om Prakash Modi, Mr.
Philcgene Claude, Mr. Manmohan, Mr. Norland Suzor, being
efigible, offer themselves for appointment, and are proposed to
be appointed as Independent Directors for a term as stated in the
Resolutions and whose period of office was not liable to
determination by retirement by rotation.

Mr. G. C. Jain, Mr. Om Prakash Modi, Mr. Philogene Claude, Mr.
Manmohan, Mr. Norland Suzor, have given a declaration to the
Board that they meet the criteria of independence as provided
under Saection 149(6} of the Companies Act, 2013. In the cpinion
of the Board, each of these Directors fulfil the conditions specified
in the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder for their
appointment as Independent Directors of the Company and the
proposed ditectors are independent of the management. Notlce
have been received from member(s) signifying their intention to
propose appointment of these Directors along with a depasit of
Rs.1,00,000 each.




A brief profile of Independent Direclors to be appointed, including
nature of their expertise and other disclosure as required under
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, is provided at Annexure A of
this Notice. Excepl these Directars, being appointees cr their
relatives, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Comparny and their relatives are concerned or interested in
the resolutions set out at item Nos. 4 to 8.

The Beard recemmends the resolution in relation to the
appointment of these Directors as independent Directors, for the
approval by the sharsholders of the Company.

ITEM No. 9

Mr. S.C. Gupta was appointed as a Whole-time Director {Works)
of the Company w.a.f 18th June, 2013 for a period of one year
and approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 30" September, 2013. Mr. S. C. Gupta is unable to devote
his full time to the working of the Company due to his falling
health. Mr. S. C. Gupta has given his resignation as a Whaole-time
Director of the company and has accorded his consent to continue
as Non-executive Director of the Company whose period of office
would be liable to determination by retirament by rotation. The
Board recommends the Resolution for approval of the
shareholders.

Nene of the Directors except Mr. S, C. Gupta, Key Manageriai
Personnel of the Company or their relatives is interested or
concerned in the proposed Resolution.

ITEM No. 10

The Audit Committee and the Board has approved the
appointment of Mis M.K. Singhal & Co., Cost Accountants as Cost

Auditors for audit of the cost accounts for the year 2014-15 at a .

remuneration of Rs. 60,000. In accordance with the provisions of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies
{Audit and Auditers) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable {o
the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the Shareholders of the
Company. Accordingly, consent of the Shareholders is being
sought for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors for the year 2014-15. The Board recommends the
Resolution for approval of the shareholders.

Nene of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
or their relatives is inlerested or concerned in the proposed
Resolution.

{TEM No. 11

The members of the Company at their Annual General Meeting
held on September 30, 2010 had approved by way of an Ordinary
Resolution under Section 283(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1256
berrowings over and above the aggregate of paid up share capital
and free reserves of the Company provided that the total amount

of such borrowings logether with the amounts already barrowed
and outstanding at any point of time shall not be In excess of 300
Crores {Rupees Three hundred crores).

Section 180 of the Companias Act, 2013 effeclive from September
12, 2013 requires that consent of the company accorded by way
of a special resolution te borrow money in excess of the
company's paid up share capital and free reserves. Further, as
per the clarification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
approval granted by the shareholders by way of an ordinary
resoluticn shall be valid for one year fram the date Section 180
became effective i.e. upto 11th September,2014. It is, therefore,
necassary for the members tc pass a Special Resolution under
Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, as set out at ltem
Na. 11 of the Natice. The Board recommends these resclution for
approvai by the members of the Company.

None of the Direciors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ftem No. 11.

ITEM NO. 12

SRE! Infrastructure and Finance Limited {SREI) had sanctioned
the term loan vide its Sanction Letter Srei/PF/2013-14/SRE416/
01 dated 5% February, 2014 aggregating to Rs. 20 crorgsl— (Rupees
Twenty Crores only) which was availed by the subsidiary company
namely, M/s SBEC Bioenergy Limited, for which the Board of
Directors approved aexecution of Corporate Guarantee in favour
of the SREI at its Board Meeting held on 12th February,2014.

In view of the urgency of the matier, the Board of Directors
accorded its consent for the execution of the aforesaid quarantees
pursuant to the proviso 2 to subsection (1) of Section 372A of the
Companies Act, 1956. Hence approval of the Shareholders has
been sought u/s 372A of the Companies Act, 1956 and not under
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The total guarantee
provided for this Company exceeds 60% of the aggregate of paid
up capital and free reserves or 100% of the free reserves,
whichever is higher.

Mr. Umesh Kumar Modi, Mr. Abhishek Modi, Mr. Jayesh Medi and
Mr. G. C. Jain, Directors of the Company are interested in the
abave rasolution being the directors of SBEC Bioenergy Limited.
Mrs Kumkum Modi is interested in the above resolution as wife of
Mr. Umesh Kumar Modi.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnet of the Company
or their relatives except above-mentioned is interested or
concerned in the proposed Resolution.

Your approval is being sought by way of special resoiution for
ratification and confirmation of the aforesaid guarantee.
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SRIEF RESUME, EXPERIENCEI AMD OTHER DIRECTORSHIP

Information of Diractors ratiring by rotation sseking
reappaintment at this Annual General Meating are given
hereunder:-

MRS. KUMKUM MODI

Mrs. Kum Kum Modi has been a Director of the Company since
26th May, 2000. She holds Masters Degree in Arts from University
of Deihi and has varied experience of the industry of more than
25 years in field of general management and corporate advisory
services. She holds directership/membership of Committees of
the Board in the following aother Public Limited Companies:

1. Modi Hitech India Limited
2. Bihar Sponge Ilron Limited

She holds 28300 equity shares in her name.
Annexure A

MR. GULAB CHAND JAIN

Mr. Guiab Chand Jain is an Independent Director of the Company.
He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India and has more than 44 years of experience in the fields of
Finance, Acoounts; Taxation and Company Law matters. He holds
directorship/membership of Committees of the Board in the
fallowing other Public Limited Companies:

Own [nvestment India Lid.

Bihar Sponge lron Limited

SBEC Systems (India) Limited

SBEC Bioenergy Limited

SBEC Stockholding & Investment Limited.

He does not hold any equity shares of the company in his
name.

S O

MR. MANMOHAN

Mr. Manmohan is an Independent Director of the Company. Mr.

Man Mohan is a Sugar Technologist. He had been associaied.

with DCM Group for over 50 years. He has held the positions of
Whole Time Director and Senior Advisor in DCM Consolidated
Limited. He has varied experience of Sugar Industry of around
more than 85 years He holds directorship/membership of
Committees of the Board in the following other Public Limited
Companies:

1.  DCM Shriram Granites Limited
He hoids 2600 equity Shares in his name.

MR. CLAUDE PHILOGENE

Mr. Claude Philogene is an Independent Director of the Company.
Mr. Claude Philogene hoids a general Certificate of Education

<
(Advancaed level) and a Full Technological Diploma in Sugar
Technology from "City and Guilds™ of London [nstitute. He Is a
dipioma helder in Mechanical Engineering from “International
Correspondance School” South Africa. Mr. Claude Philagene has
mare than fifty two years experience of working in various sugar
factories, sugar equipment manufacturing arganisations and
sugar censuftancy companies. He holds directorship/membership
of Commitiees of the Board in the following other Public Limited
Companies:

1. SBEC Systems (India) Limited

2. SBEC Bioenergy Limited
He does not hold any shares in the company.

MR. OM PRAKASH MODI

Mr. O. P. Modi has about 65 years of vast experience In the fields
of Sales, Marketing, and administration in different type of
industries. He is also on the Board of Modi Hitech India Limited
(Farmerly known as Morgardshammar India Limited).

He does hot hold any shares in the company.

MR. NORLAND SUZOR

Mr. Norlan Suzor, Director of the Company retires by rotation and
heing eligible offers himself for re-appointment. He is an eminent
Sugar Techologist, having nearly three decades of experience in
Sugar Industry in Mauritius, U.S.A,, Africa, Central & Scuth
America and India has provided consuitancy services in the Sugar
Sector and more particularly in the co - generation of Electrical
Energy from bagasse to the World Bank, the Asian Development
Bank, the CCCE (french Aid) and other Financial Institutions. He
has heen instrumental in developing one cf the largest bagasse
based co - generation facilities in Hawali, in two large Sugar
Factorieswhich he was then managing. He has also patented the
many processes that are specific to the Sugar Industry. Mr. Suzor
has written many authoritative articles published by accradited’
Internationai Journals and technicai Manuais. He holds
directorship/membership of Committees of the Board in the
following other Public Limited Companies:

1, SBEC Systemns (India) Limited

2. SBEC Bioenergy Limited.
He does not hold any shares in the company.

By order of the Board
Far SBEC Sugar Limited

Place : New Delhi
Date : 23" August, 2014

Shwetambery Khurana
Company Secretary
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{to be filled in if the Proxy attends instead of the member)

| heraby record my presence at the 20th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Thursday, the 25th day of September,
2014 at 2.30 PM. at Village Loyan Malakpur, Tehsil Baraut, District Baghpat, Uttar Pradesh. :

Member's/Proxy's Signature
{To be signed at the time
of handing over this slip)
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as my/our Proxy to attend and vote for me/us, on my/our behaif at the 20th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Thursday, the 25th day of September, 2014 at 2.30 P.M at Village Loyan Malakpur, Tehsil Baraut, District Baghpat, Uttar Pradesh
and at any adjournment thereof.

AS WITNESS my/our hand({s) this ..o day Of e 2014 )
Affixa
Revenue
Mote : i) The Proxy must be sent so as to reach the registered office of the company Stamp
not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the aforesaid meeting.
ii) The Proxy need not be a member of the company.
Signature(s)
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Dear 3hareholders,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 20th Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the year

ended 31st March 2014.
FINANCIAL RESULTS

The surmmarised financial results of SBEC Sugar Ltd. as wall as Consofidated with its subsidiaries i.e. Mfs. SBEC Bioenergy Lid., Mfs.
SBEG Stockholding and Investment Ltd and M/s Modi Casings & Packaging Private Limited (Formerly known as M/s Modi Gourmet

Limited) are as follows:

{Rs. in Lacs)

SBEC SUGAR LTD.

CONSOLIDATED

Financial Parameters

Pericd ended

Period ended

Period ended

Period ended

31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2104 31.03.2014
Sales and other income 40266.85 32068.30 41969.12 33309.57
Profit/{Loss) Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax {1540.81) {2258.85) (1254.25j) {1602.60)
Interest and Finance Charges 2584.05 3095.65 326112 3552.68
Depreciation and Amartisation 613.14 £06.33 753.76 718.57
Prior period expenses (net) 618.09 1011.62 $818.156 1011.52
Profit/{Loss) before Extra-Ordinary Expenses &
Provision for Taxation {5356.09) {6973.35) (5887.28) {6885.37)
Exceptional items o 6287.27 - {295.41) ‘
Profiti{Loss) before Tax (5356.09) {686.08) (5887.28) {7180.78)
Provision for Taxation - - - 19.88
Deferred Tax Charge/ (Credit) - 372.61 (168.72) 395.84
Taxes for earlier years MAT credit writtern back 19.689 - 19.69 -
Profit!{l.oss) After Tax {5375.78) {1058.69) {5748.25) {7597.50)
Transfer o Minerity Interest - - (167.07) 20.62
Transfer to Molasses Storage Fund 8.44 7.20 8.44 7.20
Profit/{Loss) for the period after appropriation (5384.22) (1065.89) (5589.62) {7624.72)
Earning Per Share {in Rs.) (11.28) (2.22} {11.71) (15.99)

OPERATIONS

The cane crushing for the period under review was ©1.23 Lacs quintals in 138 days with an average crushing rate of 66109 quintals
per day as against 92.38 Lacs quintals in 134 days with an average crushing rate of 58943 quintals per day for the previous pericd.
The sugar recovery has slightly increased to 8.76 % as against 8.67% in the previous period.

The market sentiments for sugar during the financial year remained bearish cwing to the continued mismatch between supply and
demand of sugar, affacting sales realization. Further during the year UP Government has announced very high cane price which has
resuited in the Loss before extraordinary expenses and provision for faxation to Rs. 5356.09 Lacs against the Loss of Rs. 6973.35
lacs last year.

Due to continuing losses the company could not pay the cane dues to the farmers on time due to which they agitated and disturbed the

operations at plant and the management was ferced fo close down the plant from 8th July,2013 to 2nd August,2013, which affected the
administration, repair & maintenance work of the ptant during the year under review.
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During the current year aksg lossss are further piled up and cane dues © farmers are overdus.

On the basis of annual audited accounts of the company as al 31st March, 2013, the Board of Dirsctors formed an opinion that the
net worth of the company as at 21st March,2013 has been fully sroded. The company in terms of Board of Director's resolution dated
Gt July 2013 has filed a reference with the Board for Industriai and financial Reconstruction (BIFR) WS 15(1) of the Sick Industrial
companies (Special provisions) Act 1685 (SICA) vide Iis letier dated 24th July 2013 and as per communication received from BIFR
vide its letter No. 3/(3-22)/BC/2013 datad 21st August 2013, The said reference has been registered by BIFR as case No. 58/2013.
The BIFR has declared the company as Sick ufe 3(1)(0) of SICA and appointed IDBI as operating agency ufs 17{3) of the Act. in its
hearing held on dated 04.02.2014.

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the period under review, the Company did net accepted/ranewed any fixed deposits, Tha total amount of fixed deposit held as
on 51st March 2013 was Rs. 134.25 Lacs . Howaver, as on 34st March, 2014, Rs. 549 lacs amount of fixad deposit is matured but not
yet claimed by the deposit holder.

DIRECTORS

Mrs. Kumkum Mod (DIN 00522004), Non Executive Director of the Company retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and being eligibie offer herself for re-appoiniment.

Mr. Santosh Chandra Gupta ceased to be the Whole-time Director (Works) of the Company effective June 17, 2014 and is now a Non-
Executive Director of the Company, with effect from  June 18, 2014

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, which came into effect
from April 1, 2014, approval of the-Members will ba sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company for formalizing the
appoiniment of My, G. C. Jain, Mr. Om Prakash Modi, Mr. Philogene Claude, Mr. Manmeohan, Mr, Norland L. C. Suzor, Directors of the
Company as an Independent Director of the Company not liable te retire by rotation, far a term of five censacutive years commencing
from 25th September, 2014.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company have three Subsidiary Companies, namely SBEC Bic-energy Limited, SBEC Stockhoiding & Investment Limited and M/s
Modi Casings & Packaging Private Limited {Formerly known as M/s Modi Gourmet Limited). The Staiement under Section 212 of the
Companies Act, 1956 in respect of Subsidiary Companies is separately annexed.

In accordance with the General Circular Ne. 2/2011 dated 8th February, 2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government
of India, the Board of Direciors has decided not to annex the annual accounts of the two Subsidiary Companies i.e SBEC Bioenergy
Limited, SBEC Stockholding & Invesiment Limited and Madi Casings & Packaging Private Limited (Formerly known as Modi Gourmat
Limited) in this Annual Report. The annual accounts of these Suhsidiary Companies and the related detailed information shall be
made available o the shareholders of the Company and the Subsidiary Companies seeking such information at any point of fime.
The annual accounts of these Subsidiary Companies shall also be kept for inspection by any sharsholder at the registered office of
the Company and of the Subsidiary Companies concerned. The Company shall fumnish a hard copy of details of account of these
Subsidiary Companies to any shareholder ¢n demand.

AUDITORS

M/s Doogar and Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.000561N), who are Statutory Auditors of the Company,
retire at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible and recommended for reappointment. Certificate from
ihe Auditors has been received 1o the effect that their re appointment, if made, would be within the limits prescribed under Section 139
of the Companies Act, 2013 & that they are not disqualified for such appointment within the meaning of sectior: 141 of the comapnies
Act, 2013,

COST AUDITOR

Pursuant to the order of the Cenfral Government under the provisions of Section 233B of the Companies Act, 1958, your company
had appointed M/s. M.K. Singhal & Co., Cost Accountants, as cost auditors of the company, with the approvai of Central Government.

ACCOUNTS AND AUDITORS’ REPCRT

Reference to the Auditors comment on financial statement being prepared on going concern basis, the comments are self explanatory
and need no further comments.

Referance to the Auditors comments on non provision for intersst on late payment of cane dues, it is hereby clarified that the company
has not made provision of interest on late payment of cane dues, as it is negotiating with the farmers for its waiver. In case it has to oe
paid, it will be accounted for in the year of payment.
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Referencea to the Auditors camments on physical verification of fixed 2ssets and inventary, itis hereby dlarified that the entire inveniory
Fixed Assats was under the lock and key of U. P. Co-operative bank Limited as the company defaulted in repayment of cane dues and
the physical takeover of the inventory was not permissible. However, from time o time management nas reconciled stock of inventory
as appearing in the records of bank with the records of the Company and no discrepancy was cbserved.

DIRECTORS RESPOMSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under section 217 (2AA) of Companies Act, 1958, the Directors of your company declare as under:

i, That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed alongwith proper
exptanation relating to material departures;

{l. Thatihe Company has selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently, except as specified in Notes to Accounts
which are self explanatory and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent o as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the company for that year,

. Thatproper and sufficient care has been takan for maintenance of adequate aceounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safe guarding the assets of the company and preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

V. That the Annual Accounts are prepared on going concern basis.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, Report on Corporate Governance, a Management Discussion and
Analysis Statement , Ceriificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming comgliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance
is included in the said Corporate Governance Repart.

LISTING OF SECURITIES

The equity shares of your Company are listed on the Sombay Stock Exchange Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association
Limited. The Company's appiication for delisting of shares with The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Limited is siill pending.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OuUTGO

As stipulated under the provisiong of Section 217 (1) () of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure of particulars
in the Report of thé Board of Dirsctors) Rules, 1988, Annexure containing the particulars is annexed hereto which forms a part of this
report

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

None of the empioyees of the company were in receipt of remuneration of more than fimit prescribed under section 217 (2A) of the
Companies Act 1956, read with the Companies  (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their appreciation and gratitude to the farmers and to the Co-operative Cane Societies for
their invaluable support. Your Directors also take this opportunity to express their appreciation and gratitude to Government Agencies,

Shareholders, Business Associates, Employees, Suppliers and Bankers of the Company for their help and support continuously
extended to the Company. -

For & behalf of the Board

for SBEC Sugar Limited
Place: New Delhi Umesh Kumar Modi
Date: 23rd August,2014 ) (Chairmané& President)
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF SECTION 217{2A) OF THE COMPAMIES ACT, 1556 READ YWITH COMPANIES
(PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES RULES), 1975 (AS AMEMDED).

1 IR IRNET
SRR N |

{A) Persons employed throughaut the financial year under review and were inreseipt of remuneration for tha year aggregating of notless than Rs, 60,00,000/- per annum.

S.Na. Name Designation / Quatifications Experlence Date of Corm- Tolak Age © Last Employm-
Nature of duties (Years) encemeant remuneTa- ant before join-
of Employment  fion ing the comp.
Nil
. Nature of Employment : NIL
ii. Other terms & Conditions : NIL
iii. Number of Equity Shares held : NIL

(B} Perscns emplayed for pari of the financial year under review and wers int receipt of remuneration not less than Rs, 5,00,000/- per menth.

S.Na. Name Designation / Qualifications Experience Date of Comm-  Total Age Last Employm-
Nature of duties {Years) encement remunera- ent before join-
of Employment  fion - ing the comp.
Nii
i Nature of Employment : NIL
ii. Other ierms & conditicns : NIL
iii. Number of Equity Shares held : NIL

PARTICULS REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF DIRECTORS) RULES,
1988 FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2014,

FORM A: DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

PARTICULARS UNIT CURRENT ACCOUNTING PREVICUS ACCOUNTING
PERIOD PERIOD
(01.04.2013 — 31.03.2014) {01-04-2012 - 31.03.2013)
A, Power and Fuel consumption
Electricity
Quantity KWH 23729150 19442654
Total Conversion Charges Rs. - -
Per Unit Conversion Charges - Rs. - -
Own generation
] Through Diesel Generator
Quaniity KWH 17875 9745
Units per —Itr. of Diesel ol KWWH 3.25 3.26
Total amount Rs. 318987 149890
Cost/ Unit Rs. 17.85 13.28
{ii} Through Steam Turkine/Generator .
Quantity KWH - -
Units per- Itr. of fuel oil /gas KWH - -
Cos¥ unit Rs. - -
B. Consumption per MT of sugar production
Electricity KWH 206.82 245.90
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FORM B: DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO TECHNMCLOGY ABSORPTION
(A) RESEARGCH AND DEVELOPMEMT (R& D)

The Campany per se did not carry out any basic R & D work during the year. However, some activities carried aut through indigenous
sources have resuited in improvement in the performance of the plant.

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION
1. Efforis in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:

2 Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, e.g. product improvement, cost reduction, product development, import
substitution etc.: '

1 & 2: The Company has acquired the !atest technology for production of sugar.

3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last five years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year), following
information may be furnished:

a. Techneclogy imported - None
b. Year of Import - Not Applicable
- ¢. Has technology been fuilly abseorbed? - Not Appiicable

d. if not fully absorbed, areas where this
has hot taken place, reasons therefore
and future plans of action. - - Not Applicable

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND QUTGO

i) Activities relating to exporis; initiatives taken to increase exports; development of new export markets for products and services;
and export Plans: Efforts are being made towards export of the product of the company.

ity

{Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Current Accounting Period Pervious Accounting Period
(01.04.2013 - 31.03.2014) {01.04.2012 — 31.03.2013)

Total foreign exchange used
Interest 22.1% 18.23
Stores & spares 18.65 14.99
Repayment 386.25 ) -
Earned — "

Note:- Previous year figures regrouped/rearranged, whenever required.

For & behalf of the Board

For SBEC Sugar Limited
Place : New Delhi Umesh Kumar Modi
Date 1 23.08.2014 (Chairman & President)
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STATEMEMT PURSUANT T SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1866 RELATINGTO
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Name of lhe Subsidiary

Financial year of the Company

Shares held in the Subsidiary
Company at the end of the financial

year of the Subsidiary Company

a)

b)

Extent of holding

Change in the Gompany’s interest in
the Subsidiary between the end of the
Financial Year of the Subsidiary and the
end of the Company’s Financial Year,

The net aggregate of Frofits of the
Subsidiary Company so far as they
concern the members of the Company
Dealt with in the Accounts of the

Company for thé period
ended 31 March, 2014,

Not dealt with in the Accounts of

the Company for the period
ended 31% March, 2014.

The net aggregate of Profits / Loss of

the Subsidiary Company for the
pravious financial year so far as

they concern the members of the Company.
Dealt with in the Accounis of the

a)

b)

Company for the period
ended 31* March, 2013.

Not dealt with in the Accounts of

the Company for the period
ended 31 March, 2013.

Malerial changes which have occutred

between the end of the Financial

year of the Subsidiary and the end

of the Company's Financial year
in respect of

a)
b)
c)

d)

Twenieenth Annuai Report

Fixed Assets

Investments

Money lent by the Subsidiary
Company

Moneys bosrowed by the

Subsidiary Company other than for
mesting the Current Liabilities

SBEC Bioenergy Limited

01.04.2013 1o
31.03.2014

1,26,50,000 Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- each fully
paid up

55 %
NIL

NIL |
(37125649)

NiL

4449043

NiL
NIL
NiL

NIL

SBEC Stockholding
and Investment
Limited

01.04.2013 io
31.03.2014

45,50,000 Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- each fuily
paid up

100 %
NIL

NIL.
(84211}

NIL

(47663)

NIL
Nil.
NIL

NIL

Meadi Casing & Packaging
Pvi. Lid.

- 01.04.2013 %0

31.03.2014

50,000 Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/~ each fuily
paid up

99.88 %
NIL

NIE.
(37330)

NIL

{15078)

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
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THE COMPAMIES ACT, 1556

/
{1
ji

Name of the Subsidiary SBEC Biosnergy Limiled SBEG Stockheiding Modi Gourmet Limted
Company . and fvestment Limited
Capital Rs. 230,000,000 Rs. 45,500,000 Rs. 500,000
Reserves Rs, 220860774 Rs. (295302) Rs. (474963)
Total Assets Rs. 1738293529 Rs. 225282000 Rs. 30658
Total Liabilities Rs. 1738293520 Rs. 225282000 Rs. 30655
investment Rs. 500,100 Rs, 22450100C Nil
‘Turnover / Total Income Rs. 80245790 Rs. 1368 Rs. (37330)
Profit before Tax ' Rs. (52997756) Rs. (84211) Rs. (37330)
Prc_n)_rision for Taxation Rs. 15872167 Nii Nil
Profit after Tax Rs. (3712564;9} Rs. (84211) Rs. (37330) -
Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL
Umesh K. Modi Abhishek Modi G.C. Jain
(Chairman & President) (Executive Director) {Director)

DIN Mo. 00002757

Place : New Delhi
Date : 28th May, 2014

DIN No. 00002798

Arun Kumar Gupta
(Chief Financial Officer)

DIN Ne. 00002696

Shwetambey Khurana
{Company Secretary)
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iINDUSTRY 3CENARIC

The ISMA said in a releass that the sugarcans crop acreage in Maharashtra and Karmataka is higher. aven though the acreage in UP and Tamil Nadu is
lower. ISMA estimates that sugar production in UP would be lower as the area under sugarcane is expacted o fall by about 9%, while the sugarcane area
in Maharashtra and Karnataka would increase by 13% and 5% respectively. Maharashtra and Karnalaka have baiter cane yields and sugar recoveries.
Total Sugarcane acreage in the sugar season 2014-15 would be about 52.3 lakh hectares, which is about 2% less than last year.

1SMA said that with an estimated opening balance of sugar of around 75 fakh fones, as on October 1,2014, for the next sugar season 2014-15 and sugar
production in the counlry is sxpacted t6 be around 253 Lakh Tonnes, there will more than sufficient sugar s take care of domestic requirement, of around
245 lakh tfonnes next year.

OPPQORTUNMITIES & THREATS

The State Government has so far baen unable to evoive an equitable poticy for allocation of sugarcane arsa amongst factories. Efforts are confinuing
at various levels o evalve an equitable methodology for reservation of cane area on factory wise basis, in the cverall interest of the industry. The
Government is considering for full decontrol on sugar industry.

Aftar the decision of Hor'ble Supreme Court empowering the State Government to fix the Cane Price, one of the major threat to the Sugar industry
relates o the successive interventions of the State Government in the pricing as well ag distribution of Sugarcane.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMARNCE .

The cane crushing for the period under review was 971.22 Lacs quintals in 138 days with an average crushing rate of 66108 quintals per day as against
92.38 Lacs quintais in 134 days with an average crushing rate of 68843 quinials per day for the previous period. The sugar recovery has slightly
increased o 8.76 % as againsi 8.67% in the previous period.

Due to continuing losses the company could not pay the cane dues to the farmers on fime due to which they agitatsd and disturbed the operations at plant
and the management was forced 1o close down the plant from 8th July,2013 lo 2nd August, 2613, which affected the administration, repair & maintenance
work of the plant during the year under review. :

During the current year aiso losses are further piled up and cane dues fo farmers are overdue.

FUTURE OUTLCCK

The sugar prices & profitability of Indian Sugar companies would reman volatile and dependent on domestic and international supply and demand
trends. These in turn would depend on agre-climatic conditions in major producing countries and crude cil price trends, which determing the diversion of
sugarcane crop to ethanol. Gonseguently, the price trends in international markets wouild be the key determinants of future profitability.

RISK AND CONCERNS .

The compary has risk of the government policies regarding the cane area allocation, cane availability in the proximity of factory, statutory minimum price
and state advised price etc. The Campany's business also depends heavily upon the climatic conditions The cane availability, yleld, recovery of sugar are
the maijor factors which may affect the quantity and quality of the raw material, The company operates in a highly reguiated environment and changes in
government poficies in reation to the sugar indusiry, sugarcane prices, sugar prices, alcohol, ethanci, imports and exporis may affect its operations and
profitability. There is an inherent risk related to the skilled and specialised manpower and there s risk of specialisec manpower leaving the jobs, joining
competitors, sharing confidential information efe.

INTERNAEL CONTROLS AND SYSTEMS :

The key features of the Internal contral system in the Company are given helow:

Assets are adequately maintained and protected against theft, burglary and other losses.

Transactions are properly recorded and accourded for.

Accounting records are maintained complying with ali the statutory laws and reflects frue and fair view.

There are adeguate management reparting systems for contrel and menitoring of performance.

Budgetary contro! system is in piace.

Pariodical review of internal conirols systems by the Management and Audit Commitiee Meeting is being done.

. Parlodical review of system, procedures and transactions by internal auditors is conducted.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The market sentiments for sugar during the financial year remained bearish owing to the continued mismatch between supply and demand of sugar,
affecting sales realization. Further during the year UP Government has announced very high cane price which has resuited in the Loss bafore extraordinary
expensas and provision for taxation fo Rs. 5356.09 Lacs against the Loss of Rs. 8973.35 iacs last year.

Or the basis of annuai audited accounts of the company as al 31st March, 2013, the Roard of Directors formed an opinion that the net worth of the
campany as at 31st March, 2013 has been fully eroded. The company in terms of Board of Director's resolution dated 8lh July 2013 has filled a reference
with the Board for Industriai and financlal Reconstruction {BIFR) U/3 15{1) of the Sick Industrial companias (Special provisions) Act 1985 (SICA) vide
its letter dated 24th July 2013 and as per communication received from BIFR vide its Jetter No. 3/(S-22)/BC/2013 dated 21st August 2013, The said
reference has been registared by BIFR as case No. 58/2013, The 8IFR has declared the company as Sick ufs 3(1){0) of SICA and appeinted IDBI as
operating agency w/s 17{3) of the Act. in its hearing held on dated 04.02,2014.

HUMAN RESOURCGES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The company’s human resources philogophy is to establish and build a streng performance and competence driven cuiture with greater sense of
accountabiiity and respansibility. The affort te rationalize and streamline the workforce is a continuous process. The industrial relations scenario remained
harmonious throughout the year.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the year under review there was no material financial or commercial transaction where senior managemant personnel has personal interest that
may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ‘

The above Management Discusaion and Analysis describing the Company's Objectives, projections, esfimates and expectations may oe forward fooking
statements within the meaning of applicable securiies laws and regulaticns. Actual results couid differ matertally from those expressed or implied.
Important factors that couid make a difference to the Company's cperations include external economic conditiens affecting demand / supply influencing
price conditions in the markat in which the Company operates, changes in Government regulations, statutes, ax laws and other incidental factors.

™SO BN

Twenieenth Annual Report 9




S .
Tyl
L

L3
Tel

$ AR D DR A TE SRR
. OM CORPORATE GOVERD

COMPAMY'S PHILOSOPHY OM CODE OF GOVERNANCE

AL SBEC Sugar Limited, Corporate Governance is an integral part of the Company's values, ethics, business practices and norms.
Towards this, the company consistently avaluates and defines its managemeant practices aimad at enhancing its commitiment and
delivery of the basic tenets of the Corporate Governance.

" BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Gomposition of the Board of Directors and other details as on 31st March, 2014 is as under:

Name of the Catagory of Ne. of No. of Commitiee Committee Attendance
Directors Directors Board Other Member- Chairman at Last
Meetings Director- ships ships AGM
attended ships {Excluding {excluding
held (%} SBEC Sugar SBEC Sugar
Lid. {) Lid. (*4

1. Mr. U, K Chairman & President and
Modi @ Mon-Executive Direclor 6 & Nil Mil Mot Present
Mrs., Kum Kum Non- Execufive
Modi @ Director Nil 2 Nil . il Not Present

3. Mr, Abhishek Executive Director &

Modi @ CEO 8 4 N Nil Mot Present

4, My, Jayash Modi® Man-Executive Director 2 4 Nil Nit Not Present

5. Mr. G.C. Jain Non-Executive &

independent Director 6 5 1 4 Present
8. Mr. Man Mohan Mon-Executive &
independent Diractor 1 it it Nil Nat Present

7. Mr. Nerland Non-Executive
L.C. Suzor Director il 2 Nil Nil Not Present

8. Mr. Claude Philogene Nen-Exacutive &

Independent Director il Nit Nil Nil Not Present

a. Mr. C.P. Modi Non - Executive &

Independent Director 4 1 Nil il Not Present

10.  Mr. N.P. Bansal Aitemate to

Mr. Claude Philogene

Mon-Executive

Director 8 2 Nil Nif Not Present
1. M 8.C.Gupta# Whale Time Director

{Works} 6 2 Nil Nil Present

{(*)  Directorship in Companies registered under the Companies Act, 1956 exciuding Directorships in Private Limited Companies,
Companies under Section 25 of the Companies Act and Alternate Directorships.

(**} Includes only Specified Commitiees Le. Audit Committee and Shareholders Grigvance Committee (now Stakeholders Relationship
Committee)

{@) Mr. Umesh Kumar Modi and Mrs. Kum Kum Modi are related as husband and wife and Mr. Abhishek Medi, Mr. Jayash Medi as
their son.

#)  Mr. Santosh Chandra Gupta ceased to hold the office of Whale-time Director (Warks) of the Company on compietion of his present
term on 17th June, 2014 and re-designated and continued to hold the office as a Director of the Company w.e.{. 18th June, 2014,
tiabzle to retire by rotation.

Six Board Meetings were held during the period under review on 15th June 2013, 6th July, 2013, Bth August, 2013, 15th Qctober,
2013, 12th February, 2013 and 26th March, 2014,
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INFORMATION REGARDING APFOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTHENT OF DIRECTORS
MRS, UMK MO

Mrs. Kum ¥um Modi has been a Directar of the Company since 26th May, 2000. She holds Masters Degres in Aris from University
of Diethi and has varied expesence of the industry of more than 25 years in fisld of general management and corporate advisary
services, She holds directorship/membership of Committees of the Board in the foliowing other Pubiic Limited Companies:

1. Modi Hitech India Limited 2, Bihar Sponge iron Limited
She holds 28300 equity shares in her name.

The Board of Directors of the Company has decided to adopt the pravisions with respect to appointment and tenure of Independent
Directors which is consistent with the Companies Act, 2013 and the amended Listing Agreement.

Brief resume of the other Diractors proposed for re-appaintment/ appointment at the ensuing Annual general Mesting is provided in
Annexure A to the Notice convening the Annual General Meeling.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has adopied a Code of Conduct for the members of the Board and Senior Management of the Company which is
intended to focus the areas of ethical risk, provide guidance mechanisms to report unethical conduct and help foster a culture of
hanesty and accountability. The Code of conduct is avaiiable on the website of the Company www.sbecsugar.com.

The Code has been circulated to alf the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel and compliance of the same has
been affirmed by them. .

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Cemmittee comprising of four directors, out of them three directors are independent Non-Exacutive
Directors. Mt G. C. Jain is the Chairman of the Commitiee and Mr, Man Mohan, Mr. 0. P. Modi and Mr. $.C. Gupta are its members.
The Company Secretary of the Company acls as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. The Chief Financial Officer, Vice President
{Technical), a representative of Mfs Doogar & Associztes, Statutory Auditors and a representative of M/s Sarat Jain & Associates,
Internal Auditors are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference and functioning of the Audit Committee are as prescribed under Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956
and Clause 49 of Listing Agreement covering their role, power and duties, review of information, quorum for meating and frequency
of meeting. The Committee is responsible for effective supervision of the financial reporting process, ensuring financial, accouniing
and operating contrais and ensuring compliance with established policies and procedures. Audit Committee also determines
adequacy and effectiveness of internal conirol. it identifies, defines and categorizes all the risks that the company faces.

Five Meatings of the Audit Committee were held during the period under review on 28th May 2013, 6th July, 2013, 15th October,
2012, 14th Novernber 2013 and 12th February 2014,

MName of Director No. of Meetings Attended
My, G C Jain 5
Mr. Man Mchan 5
Mr. O. P. Modi 5
Mr. S.C. Gupta 5

SHAREHOLDERS'! INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

The Shareholders’ Grievance Redressal Committee comprises of 3 Directors, Mr. G. C. Jain, Non Executive & Independent
Director is the Chairman and Mr. Manmohan and Mr. N. . Bansal as its members. The Company Secretary of the Company is the -
Compliance Officer of the Committee.

The functioning and terms of reference of the Committee is as prescribed and in due compliance with the Listing Agreement with the
Stock Exchanges with particular reference to transfer, dematerialisation, complaints of sharehelders etc.

No compliant was received from shareholders/ investors directly from them or through SEBI Stock Exchangss and other authorities
and none remained outstanding at the end of the period under review,

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee review the company’s policies on specific remuneration package for Executive Director and
recommend the same to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three Noen-Executive Directors two third of whom are Independent Directors. Mr. G. C. Jain
is the Chairman and Mr. Man Mohan and Mr. N. P. Bansal are its members,

The Company does not pay any remuneration to the Non-Executive Dirsctors sxcept payment of sitting fees for attending the Beard/
Audit Committee Meetings.
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One meeting of Ramuneraticn Commiiles was hefd on 15ih June, 2013 during the year anded 31st March, 2014,
The detsils of remunerztion paid to the Diractors for ihe period ended 31 March 2014 are as under:-

{in Rupees)
S. No. Name of the Director Salary Perquisiteé, Commission Others Sitting Fee* Total
and other
pbenefits

1. Mr. U, K. Modi - - - mmm 4500 4500

2. Mr. Abhishek Modi - —— -

3. Mrs. Kumkum Modi -— e - —

4. Mr. Santosh C Gupta 1422012 238107 0 - s 1680119

5. Mr. G. C. Jain - m—— s e 9G00 3000

8. Mr. Man Mohan —— e —_— e 2700 2700

7. Mr. Norland L. C. Suzor - R ——- mmm - -

8. Mr. Claude Philogene - — e e — —

9. MrO. P Modi S — e 6300 5300

10. Mr. N.P. Bansal — e . e 4500 4500

1. Mr. Jayesh Madi e — e 900 900

*Amount paid as sitting fees net of tax deducted at source @10%

The Company has not given any Stock Options to any Director.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Location and time of the last thres Annual General Meetings:-

Year Location Date Time Special Resolution Passed
{Yes/No)

2013 Village : Loyan Malakpur 30.08.13 2.30 p.m, Yes

Tehsil Baraut, Distt. Baghpat,
Uttar Pradesh

2012 - do - 29.12.2012 2.30 p.m. Yes

201 -do - 28.09.2011 2.3C p.m. Yes

POSTAL BALLOT:

No resolution requizing a postal ballot was proposed at the last Annual General Meating of the Members.
No resolution which requires approval of Members by postal bailot is being proposed at the ensuing Annual General Mesting.
DISCLOSURES:

. During the year under review, the company had no materially significant related party transactions as envisaged under the
Corporate Governance Code that may have potential confiict with the interests of the company at large. However, the refated
party transactions during the year under review are mentioned in Note No. 38 to the “Notes to Accounts”.

. There has been no non-compliance, penalties/strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange(s) or SEBI an any matter
related io capital markets during the year under review.

The Compsany is maintaining Whistie Blower Policy and ne personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee.
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MAMAGSENMENT CISCUSIICH AND AMALYZIS 13 RERPCETED IN THIS ANMUAL REPORS
CEO! CRD CERTIFICATION ON THE FINAMCIAL STATEMEMT
Fursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreemeant, the Chief Executive Cfficer and the Chief Firancial Officer have submitted the desired

Cartificate o the Board of Directors and the same has been taken on record by the Board of Diractars in thew maeting held on 23rd
August, 2014,

MEANS OF COMMUMNICATION:

wide puliicity is accorded to the Quasterly, Half-yearly and the Anaual Resuits which are published in widely circulated English daity
{Financial Express) and a Hindi daily (Rashtriya Sahara or Haribhomi) as is required under the Listing Agresment with the Stock
Exchanges. The same are aisc faxed to the Stock Exchanges where the company is listed.

The Company has not yet started sending the half yearly report but if the shareholder seeks any information, the same is provided by
the Company.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

20th Annual General Meeting of the company is scheduled to be held on Thursday, the 25th Sepiember 2014 at 2.30 P.M. at the
Registerad Office of the Company at Village Loyan Malakpur, Tehsil Baraut, District Baghpat, Uttar Pradesh as per the notice enclosed
with the Annual Report.

Financial Year  :-1st April, 2013 to 31st March, 2014

Financial Calendar 2013-2014 {actual/tentative and subject to change)

Particulars Date

1. Quartgr ended 30.06.2014;
2. Quanter ended 30.09.2014:
3. Quarter ended 3%.12.2014:

First fortnight of August, 2014
First fortnight of November, 2014
First fortnight of February, 2015

4. Quarter ended 31.03.2016: Last week of May, 2015
Book Closure : 18th September, 2014 to 25th Septembar, 2014 —  (both days inclusive)
Dividend Payment Date: : ’

In view of the losses incurred in the previous years, no dividend has been recommended by the Board of Directors for the period ended
31ist March 2014.

Listing on Stock Exchanges :
The company is listed on the following Stock Exchanges:-
Stock Exchange Stock Code

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 532102
The Calcuita Stock Exchange Association Limited -

The Company has paid annual listing fee fo Bombay Stock Exchange Limited for the year 2013-14.

The Company had initiated steps to get the shares delisted from The Calcutta Stock Exchange Asscciation Limited. Howaver, agplication
-for delisting of the shares is still pending with The Calculta Stock Exchange Association Limited.

Market Price Data:
Monthiy High & Low quotes and Volume of Shares traded from 1st April, 2013 to 31st March, 2014 are as follows!-

Month High Low Voilume
Aprit 2013 8.80 8.38 713
May 2013 - - -
June 2513 - - . -
July 2013 9.40 8.20 4453
August 2013 12.07 9.48 2860
September 2013 12.65 12.02 21
October 2013 12.02 12.02 35
November 2013 12.02 12.02 51
December 2013 41.42 11.42 430
January 2014 ’ 10.85 9.80 23
February 2014 - - -
March 2014 10 9.60 3578
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Registrar and Transfer Agenis:

The physical transfer of Equily Shares and Elecironic Connectivity for the Depository mode for both MSDL and CDSL is being
providad by M/s Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pyt Limited, Registrar & Transier Agenis of the company whose address is
given below:

M/s Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pyt Lid.
Beatal House, 3rd Floor,

99, Madangir, Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir,

Behind Local Shopping Complex

New Delhi -110062

Ph. No. 011- 29851281-83

Fax: 011-20961284 Email: beetal@beetzlfinancial.com

Share Transfer System:

The Company in compliance of SEBI circular no. 18/2002 dated 27t December 2002, has appointed My/s Beetal Financial &
Computer Services Pvi. Lid., (Category — | SEBI registered Registrar and Share Transfer Agents) as Share Transfer Agent who
follows the Share Transfer System as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The share iransfer requests
in physical form sent by shareholders are manually checked. If the transfer deed and enclosures are valid, the shares are transferred
within 15 days with approval of the Share Transfer Committee, otherwise objection memo is sent to the transferor with necessary
advice to take the required steps. The process is done within 15 days of receipt of request. The Company Secretary monitors the
sysiem.

Distribution of Shareholdings as on 31st March, 2014,

No of Shares Number of Shareholders Number of Shares % of total Shares
Upto 500 2326 884144 1.85
501 - 1000 461 420318 0.88
1001 - 2000 178 296509 062
2001- 3000 i 318 836637 1.75
30C1 - 4000 51 184926 0.39
4001 - 5000 145 ) 709565 1.49
5001 - 10000 128 975341 2.05
10000 and above 103 433486442 90.96
Total 3708 47653880 100.00

Dematerizlisation of Shares

The Equity Shares of the company are available for Dematerialisation. The International Securities ldentification No, (ISIN) of the
Company is INES48G01018. The Equity Shares are now tradable only in dematerialised mode.

7$.37% of the Company’s Paid up Equity Share Capiial has been dematerialised upto 31st March, 2014.

Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and Hkely impact on equity
The Company has no outstanding GDRs / ADRe / Warrants or any Convertible Insiruments.

Plant Laocation of the Company

Village : Loyan Malakpur, Tehsii Baraut, Dist. Baghpat, Uttar Pradesh-250611

Address for Correspondence

Ali the queries of investors regarding the Company’s shares may he sent at the following address:

SBEC SUGAR LIMITED )

Village Loyan, Malakpur,

Tehsil Baraut,

Dist. Baghpat,- 250611

Uttar Pradesh

Email: investors@sbecsugar.com
Website ; www.sbecsugar.com

Nomination Facility:

Shareholders desirous of making & nomination in respect of their sharehelding in the Company, as permitted under Section 72 of the
Companies Act, 2013, are requested to submit to the Company their request in prescribed Form SH-13 for this purpose.
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To,
The Members of
SBEC Sugar Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance by SBEC Sugar Limited for the
period ended on 31 March 2014, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with
Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor expression of an opinion on financial statements

of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the Conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing

Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor efficiency

and effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Doogar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
- Firm Regn. No. : 000561N

Place : New Dethi {Mukesh Goyal)
Date : 23rd August, 2014 Mg. Pariner
Membership No. 081810
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Indapendent audiiors’ rsoort

To the members of SBEC Sugar Lid.
Report on the financial statements

We have auditad the accompanying financtal statements of SBEC Sugar Lid ("the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2074, and the Slatement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other exglanatory information.

Management's responsibiity for the financial statemenis

Management is responsinle for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including accounting
standards referred to in sub-seciion {3C) of section 211 of the Companies Acl, 1956 (‘the Act”). This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and mainienance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a frue and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror,

Auditor’s responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing issued by the Instiute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we cemply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audii to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from maierial
misstatement. '

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audil evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant fo the Company’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial staiements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
apprepriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion. ’

Basis for Qualified Opinion

iy The Companies financials have been prepared on “Going Concern” as the company has continued its normal manufacturing operations
during the season 2013-14. :

The company in terms of Board of Director's resolution dated 6th July 2013 has filed a reference with the Board for Industrial and Financial
Reconstruction (BIFR) U/S 15(1) of the Sick Industrial companies {Special Provisions} Act 1985 (SICA) vide its letter dated 24th July
2013 and as per communication received from BIFR vide its letter No. 3/(S-22)/BC/2013 dated 21st August 2013, The said reference has
bean registered by BiFR as case No. 58/2013. The BIFR has declared the company as Sick u/s 3(1)(0) of SICA and appointed 1DEBI as
operating agency u/s 17{(3} of the Act. in iis hearing held on daied 04.02.2014,

(i) The company's has not made provision for interest, on late payment of cane dues amounting to Rs2241.12 Lacs. Accordingly manufacturing
expenses and net losses would have been higher by Rs2241.12 lacs respeclively & its consequential impact on EPS.

Qualified Opinion

in our apinion and to the best of our information and according {o the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generaily accepted in India:

(a) inthe case of the Baiance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2014;
(b} in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss far the year ended on that date; and
{¢) inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Emphasis of maiter

Without quaiifying our opinion, we draw attention to:

Note no —~ 33 To these financial stalements wherein company had executed a deed of assignment with a subsidiary company “SBEC Bioenergy
Limited” to transfer its claim and all securifies and charges created by Maodi Industries Limited in its favar for a consideration of Rs12,500 lacs
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af which Rs 8,300 lacs shall be recaived as per the mutually agresd insiallments within a period of five years fram ihe date of execulion of the
desd. The recoverability of ihe carrving vaiue of the said amount due from by SBEC Bieenargy Limited as at 31 March 2014 is dependent on
its ability to generate positive cash flow from aperations. The uncertainty mentioned sbove may affect the ultimate recoverability of the carrying
value of the said amount due from SBEG Bicenergy Limited. Thase financial statemenls do not include any adjustments that mlght result from
the uncertainty mentioned above,

Repart an other legal and reguiatory requirements

1. As required by the Comparies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A a statement on the malters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Crder.

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. e have obiained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and befief were necessary for the purpose
of our audit;

b.  inour opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination
of those hooks;

¢. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the bocks
of account;

d.  Except far the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinicn paragraph, in our opinion, the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply with the Accounting Standards
referred to in sub-section {3c} of saction 211 of Companies Acl, 1956, to the extent applicabie.

e. Onlhe basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2014, and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, we report that nane of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2014, from baing appointed as a diractor in terms of
clause (g) of sub-section (1) of sectich 274 of the Companies Act, 1856,

For Doogar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No, 00086 1N

Mukesh Goyal
Place : New Delhi Partner
Dated : 6™ July, 2013 M. No. 081810

ANNEXURE “A” TO AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in the Auditors’ Report of even date o the members of SBEC Sugar Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2014)
1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

{b) Though the Company has a programme of physical verificatlon of its fixed assets in phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, however the Fixed assets have not been physically verified by
the management during the year therefore discrepancies, if any, could not be determined.

{c} Fixed assets dispesed off during the year were insignificant and therefore do rot affect the geing concern assumption.
2. (a) The inventory has not been physically verified by the management duzing the year.

{b) Though the physical verification programme for inventory as envisaged by the management is, in our opinion, reasonable and
adequate in relaticn 1o the size of the Company and nafure of its business. However no physical verification of inventeries has been
done during the year.

(C) In our opinion, the Company is maintaining proper recerds of inventory. The discrepancies, if any, compared to book records could
not be determined in absence of physical verification.

3. (a) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms and other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Cormpanies Act, 1956. Accardingly, Paragraph 3 (b}, 3 (c) & 3 {d) of the order are not applicable.
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by The company has iaken loans from three companies & another party. coverad under section 301 of lhe Companies Acl. 1858, The
maximum amount involved during ihe year was Rs435.45 lacs, Rs536.51 acs, Rs 88.47lacs & Rs31.79 lacs and the vearend
hatanca of loan laken from such companies & ancther party were Rs435.45 lacs, Rs480.32 lacs, Rs85 |acs & MIL respectively,

{c ) In our opinion and according fo information and explanations given to us . the rale of interest and other term & conditions for such
loans are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(d) In respect of loan taken, as explained to us the same are re-payable on demand.

4. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of audit, there are adequate internal
confrel procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard ta purchase of inveniory and
fixed assets and for the sale of goods. We did not observe any major weakness in internal sontrel during the course of our audit.

5. (a) Based upon the audif procedures applied by us and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that
Ihe ransactions required o be entered into the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been enlered.

b

Powy

in respect of certain iransaction of the value of Rs 12,500.00 facs with subsidiary company, the management has irformed us that
the transactien deall is of a special nature and therefore comparable prices are not available. In our opinion, and according to the
information and expianaiion given to us, the fransaclions made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register
maintained under seclion 301 of the Companias Act, 1958 and aggregating during the year to rupees five lacs or more in respect aof
each party have been made ai prices which are reasonable having regard to market prices for such transactions, prevailing at the
relevant time, where such market prices are available.

6. The Company has accepted deposits from public and in our Opinion Company has complied with the provisions of section 68A and 58AA
of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits} Rules, 1975.

7. Inour opinion, the Company has an internal audi system, commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

8. We have hroadly reviewed the Cost Accounting records, including the hooks of account maintained by the company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Ceniral Government for the matnfenance of cost records under section 209{1){d) of the Companies Act 1956, and are
of the epinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We, are however, not required to
make a detailed examination of such boeks and records.

9. (a) The company is regular in depositing with appropriaie autharities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Wealth-Tax, Service-Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to i,

{b) According to the information & explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of Provident Fund, Investor
Education ard Protection Fund, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other
undisputed Statutory dues ware outstanding, at the year end, for a period more than six menths from the date they become payable.

{¢) According te the information and explanations given to us and the records of the compary examined by us, the particulars of statutory
dues of the specified status as at the end of the year, which have not been depesited on account of a dispute are referred to in
“Annexure — B”.

10.  In our opinien, the accumulated losses of the Company are more than fifty percent of its net worth. During the year company has incurred
cash loss of Rs 4762.85 lacs. In the immediately praceding financial year also, the company had incutred cash loss. Thus as per the
current financials the Company is a Sick Industrial Company within the meaning of Sick Industrial Companies {Special Provision) Act, 1885.

11.  According to the information and explanations giver: to us and as per the nooks and records examined by us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank.

12.  Accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security
by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

3. The Gompany does not fall within the categary of chit fund/ Nidhif Mulual Bensfit/ Society and hence the related reporting requirements
are not applicable. . .

14.  According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company is not dealing or frading in shares, securities, debentures and
other investments and hence the related reporting requirements are not applicable.

15.  The Gompany has provided guarantee to SREI and the Government of Jharkhand in respect of loans taken by SBEC Bioenergy Limited
(a subsidiary company) and Bihar Spenge iron Limited respectively. The lerms and conditions of the guarantees are prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

16. In our opinion, and according te the information and explanations given ta us, the term loans raised during the year by the company have
been applied for the purpose for which the said loans were obtained, where the lender has stipulated such end use,

18 Twenteenth Annual Report




2ooard

Lerm o
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asis nave been usad for long-erm investiment by tha company.

18, The Company has not made any praferential allotmen! of shares (o oarties and Companies coversd in the regisiersd maintained under

seclion 301 of the Companies Act, 1856,
19.  The Company has not issued debentures of any type during the Year.
20. The Company has not raised any meney by public issue during the Y=ar.

21. Based on our axamination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations given lo us, no
fraud on or by the Company has been naticed or reported during the Yaar.

' For Doogar & Assaciates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. Mo. 000561N

Mukesh Goyal
Place : New Delhi Mg. Partner
Dated : 28th May, 2014 Membership No. 081810

ANNEXURE “B” TO AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred in Paragraph 8(b) of Annexure A" a stalement on the matters specified in the Companies {Auditors’ Repart) Order, 2003 as amendad
by the Companies Auditer's Report (Amendment) Order, 2004 for the Year ended 31st March 2014,

Name of the Statute Name of Dues Amount Period to which  Forum where dispute

{Rs. in Lacs} amount relates is pending
UP VAT Act , 2008 VAT on Baggasse 50.06 2008-09 Additional Commissioner,
Grade 1, Meerut, 1% Appeals
UP VAT Act , 2008 Entry Tax on Sugar 169.56 2010-11 Deputy Commissicner,
Sold In Local Area - Assessment
UP VAT Act, 2008 Entry Tax on Sugar
Purchased and Soid 400.00 2009-10 Application Filed for reopen the
in Local Area the same u/s 32
UP VAT Act , 2008 VAT imposed on Mclasses, 802.50 2008-10 Application Filed for recpen
Bagasse and old serap seld ’ the same ufs 32
during the year 2009-10
UP VAT Act , 2008 CST imposed on 40.00 2009-10 Application Filed for reopen
Moiasses soid during 2009-10 CESTAT by the department
Centrai Excise, 1944 Cess on Sugar Cess 4.35 30.01.2008- Appeal filed before CESTAT by the
Molasses soid during 2009-10 30.09.2008 department against the Commissioner

{Appeals) Meerut

Central Excise, 1944 Penalty on Scrap 261 30.11.2004- Appezl submitted before
Scale 31.03.2008 CESTAT
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax on Commission 16.83 (1.04.2008- Appeal filed before Commissioner
01.12.2010 (Appeais), Meerut
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax on Lease Rent 7.24 201213 Appeal filed before Commissioner
(Appeals), Meerut
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax on Commission 150.88 2003-04 CESTAT has sent back ithe case fo
Commissionar Appeals, Meerut-1 for
Remand
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BALAMCE

1. EQUITY AND LIABILITY
Shareholders’ Funds

(a)
(0)

Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Non-current Liabilities

(@)
{b)
©

Long-term Borowings
Other Long Term Liabilities
Long-term Provisions

Current Liabilities

(a)
ib)
{c)
{d)

Short-term Borrowings
Trade Payables

Other Current Liabilities
Short-term Provisions

TOTAL

1. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

(@
(i)

(ii)
{ii)

(b)
()
(d)
@

Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets
intangible Assets

Capital Work in Progress

Non-Current Investment
Defiered Tax Assets (net)
Long-term Loans & Advances
Other Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

{a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(®)

Inventories

Trade Receivables

Cash & Bank Balances
Short-term Loans & Advances
Other Current Assets

SHEET AS AT 315T &
NOTENO.

0 o~ [o2 34, =N

Y
o

11
1
1A

12

13
14

156
16
17
18
18

3

As at
31.03.2014
(Rs. in Lacs}

4,769.40
{10,228.24)
{5,458.84)

350.13

13.56
125.66
529.35

11,097.44
33,271.02
3,021.64
31.48
47,421,538

—

42,492.08

4,731.78
0.89
4,732.67
1,730.83
7.67
64.52
6,535.69

20,443.48
1,286.72
127.87
12,890.28
1,209.05
35,956.40
42,492.09

PPN Mmoo

The Notes reffered to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet

in ferms of our report of even date.

For & on behalf of
DOOGAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. : 000861N

Mukesh Goyal
Mg. Partnar
Membership No. : 981810

Place : New Dethi
Date : 28th May, 2014

20

Umesh K. Modi

{Chairman & President)

DIN No. 00002757

Abhishek Modi
(Executive Director)
DIN No. 00002798

Arun Kumar Gupta
{Chief Financial Officer)

AARCH, 2014

As at
31.03.2013
(Rs. in Lacs)

4,769.40

{4,852 46)
(83.06}

806.66
13.71
90.23

810.60

25,468.34
18,833.09
5017.27
30.83
49,448 53

L e

50,277.07

5,335.80
1.33

533713
1,730.83
4.32
77.60
7,149.78

27,489.15
1,471.03
361.48
12,649.66
1,145.97
43,127.29

PR L4 T S )

50,277.07

———

G.C. Jain
{Director)
DiN No. 00002696

Shwetambery Khurana
{Company Secretary)
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INCOME
Revenus From Operations
Other income
Total Revenue
EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Work-in-Progress & Stock-in-Trade
Manufacturing Expense
Employee Benefit Expense
Finance Cost
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense
Administration Expenses
Selling Expense
Prior Peried ltems
Total Expenses
Profit / (L.oss) before excepticnal and
extraordinary items and tax
Exceptional ltems
Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax
Extracrdinary ltems
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Tax expense :
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax
(3) Taxes for earlier year
MAT credit written back

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH,
NOTE NO.

20
21

22
23

24
25
26
27
11
28
29

30

Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations

Frofit/(Loss) from discontinuing operaticns
Tax Expense of discontinuing operations

Prefit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations after tax

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

Earning per equity share:(Par value of Rs.10 each)

(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

In terms of our report of even date.
For & on behalf of

DOOGAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. : 000581N

Mukesh Goyal
Mg. Partner
Membership No. : 081815

Place ;: New Delhi
Date : 28th May, 2014

Umesh K. Modi
(Chairman & President)
DIN No. 00002757

Twenteenth Annuai Report
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31

For the Year
ended 31.03.2014
{Rs. in Lacs)

38,2685.05
596.43
38,861.48

25,934.63
4,412.22

7,185.75
1,248.92
934.94
2,584.05
613.14
383.15
332.63
618.09
44.217.57

{5,356.09)

(5,356.08)

(5,356.09)

19.69
(5,375.78)

{5,375.78)

(11.28)
{11.28)

Abhishek Modi
{Executive Director)
DIN No. 00002798

Arun Kumar Supta
(Chief Financial Officer)

st

il -11 A

=F

For the year
ended 31.03.2013
: {Rs. in Lacs)

30,558.90
481.62
31.041.62

26,867.05
7,636.90

(4,425.57)
1,538.02
912.21
3,096.65
606.33
475.66
296.04

. 1,011.52
. 38.014.87

(6.973.35)
5,287 27
(686.08)

(686.08)

372.61

(1,058.69)

{1,058.69)

(2.22)
(2.22)

G.C. Jain
{Director)
DIN No. 00002696

Shwetambery Khurana
{Company Secrelary)
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A

B)

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit / {Loss) Before Tax as per Profit and Loss Account
Adjustments For :

Inferest Expenseas

interest Income

Dividend income

Debit Balances Written Off

Loss on Sale of Stores & Spares

Loss on sale of Fixed Assels

Projects abandonedhwritten off

Provision for Obsolete Store Hems

Wealth tax

Depreciation

Unclaimed credit balances written back

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adiustments For :

Trade and Other Receivables

Inventories

Trade Payables

Deferred Tax Assets (net)

Cash generated from Operating Actnnhes

Direct Taxes (Paid)/Refund

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities '

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Capitai Work in Progress

Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assets

Dividend income

interest Received

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activilies

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings (Net)

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (Net)

Net interest (Paid)

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net Increase ! {Decrease)in Cash and Cash Equwalents {A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as on 1st April 2013 {Opening Bajance)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as on 31st March 2014 (Closing Balance)
Net Increase as disclosed above

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method*

as set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 on Cash Flow Statements,

Current Year

{Rs. in Lacs)

o

(5,356.00)
2,584 05
12.63)
(0.60)

0.64

228

0.31

613.14
48.57

(2,207.47)

(131.18)
7,053.39
12,426.50

17,141.24
0.43

17,140.84

(10.68)

1.38
0.60
2.63

{6.10)

(415.53)
(14,370.90)
(2,584.06)

{17,371.49)

(236.78)
354.85
18.07

{236.78)

Previous pericd figures have been regrouped/rearranged wheraver considered necessary.

Cash and Cash aquivalent at the end of the period consist of Cash, Stamps in hand,

Cheques in Hand and Balances with Banks:
Cash & Stamps in Hand

Balances with Banks

TOTAL

The Notes reffered to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
In terms of aur report of even date.
For & on behalf of

3.55
114.52

— 118.07

DOOGAR & ASSOCIATES Umesh K. Modi Abhishek Modi
Chartered Accountants {Chairman & President) (Executive Director}
Firm Regn. No. : 00056 1N DIN No. 00002757 DIN Mo. 00002798

Mukesh Goyal
Mag. Partner

Membership No. : 081810

Ptace : New Dethi
Date ; 28th May, 2014
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Arun Kumar Gupta
{Chief Financiai Officer)

T FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3187 MARCH, 2014

Pervious Year
(Rs. in Lacs)

{666.08)

3.096.65
(6.37)
(0.60)
52.85

0.53
0.37
34.09

0.36
506.33

73.54}
3,024.59

(5.971.05)
(4,427 19)
4,536.39

(2,837.28)
0.77)

(2,838.03)

(208.38)
951.16
3.02
0.60
6.37
752.76

(279.12)
5,047.50
(3,096.55)
167173
(413.54)
766.39
354.85
(413.54)

427
350.58
354.85

G.C. Jain
{Director)
DiN No. 00002696

Shweiambery Khurana
(Company Secretary)
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Moter], BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial stalements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principies in India {Indian
GAAPY, The financial slatements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. (as amended and which continue to be applicable in respact of Section 133 of the Companies
Act. 2013 in terms of General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 Sepiember 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs) and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act. 1956, The financial statements have been prapared on an accrual basis and under the historical cast convention on going
concern basis.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statemenis are consisient with these of previous year.
Nate:1A SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1A. {i} Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assels and liabilities and disciesure of contingent liakilities at the date of
the financial statements and the resulis of operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management's
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual resuits could differ from these eslimates. Difference between the actual results and
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materizlized.

1A. (i}  Recognition of Revenues & Expenses

{a) incomes, Export Incentives/benefits and all Expenditures are accounted for on accrual basis excapt for interest en account of
delayed payments/overdue outstanding fo various parties and insurance claims, where there is no reasonabie certainty regarding
the amount and/or its  collectability. Interest income is stated in full with tax thereon being accounted under advance tax.

{t) Domestic Sales are recognized cn dispatch of goods by the Company to iis customers whereas the company recognizes export
sales on transfer of risk and rewards of goods to its customers.

(¢} Dividends income is recognized when the shareholders right to receive payment was established by the balance sheet date.
1A. (ili). Inventory Valuation
(a) Finished Goods:
10} Free Sugar - at lower of cost or net realizable vaiue.
{iiy Levy Sugar - at lower of cost or levy price.
{0y Goods in Process - at cost
{c) Raw malerial - at cost
(d) Stores and spares - at cosi (computed on FiFO basis)
(e) Mclasses (By-product) is valued at net realizable value.
() Provision for obsalescence and other anticipated losses are made on the stocks, whenever identified / considered necessary.
1A, (iv) Fixed & Intangible Assets

{a) Fixed Asseis are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, Historical cost comprises all cosis relating lo acquisition
and instaltation of fixed assets.

{b) Govemment grants relating to specific fixed assets are deducted from the gross value of the assets concerned in arriving at their
nook value.

{c) Intangible assels are recognized on the basis of recogniion criteria as set out in Accounting Standard (AS) - 26 “Intangible Asseis”.

{dy Factory Approach Road represents expenditure incurred & capitalized by the company on roads oufside factory premises & are
written off over a period of Five years.

1A. (v) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing
cosls are expensed in ihe period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in cenneclion
with the borrowing of funds. ’

1A. {vi} Depreciation
Depreciation has been charged on the following basis:
{a) Leasehold Land is being amortized over the period of the Lease,
{(b) Assets leased oul are written off over the period of lease af cost less terminal fransfer price.
(c) Assels belaw Ra. 5000/- are being depreciated at the rate of 100 % ir the year of addition.

{d}  Other assets are being depreciated on the straight-line methoed at the rafes and in the manner specified in Schedule XIV to the
Companies Act, 1956,
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Ul dife.
{vii} Invesiments
Investmentis that are readily reafizabie and intended to be heid for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All
alher investmenls are classified as long-term investments. Current investiments are carnied at lower of cost and falr value. Long-term
investments are carried at cost individually. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recegnise a decline other than temporary
in the value of the investments in case of long term investmenis.

{(viil) Foreign Currency Transactions
Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by apnlying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rale
between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rale. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are reparted using the exchange rate at the date of the fransaction; and nor-monetary items which
are carried al fair value or other similar valuation denominated in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rates that existed
when the values were determined. investments in foreign companies are considered at the exchange rates prevailing on the daie of their
acquisition. : ’ '

Exchange Differences

Any income ar expense on account of exchange difference either on setttement or on translation is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the year in which they arise.

{ix} Employee Benefits
Expenses and liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in acocordance with Accounting Standard 15 — Employee Benefits.
{a) Provident Fund

The Company makes contribution to provident fund in accordance with Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952 which is a defined confribution plan and contribution paid or payabie is recognized as an expense in the period in which
services are rendered by the smpicyee.
(b} Gratuity

Graluity is a post employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognized in the balance sheet
in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit/obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan
assels, together with adjusiment for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation is
calculaied at or near the balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and
losses arising form past experience and changes in actuarial assumpticns are charged or credited to the Stalement of Profit and
Loss in the year to which such gains or losses refate.

(¢} Compensated Absence
Liability in respect of compensated absence becoming due cor expected after the halance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an
actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the profected unit credit method.

{x) Pre-operative Expenses and Miscellaneous Expenditure

Expenses fncurred during the pre-operative peariod are allocated to the respective fixed assets an commencement of commercial
aperations.

(xi) impairment of Assets

Assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows {i.e. cash generating units). For the purpose
of assessing impairment at each Balance Sheet date, Assets within a Cash Generating Unit are reviewed for impairment wherever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss Is recognized for the amount
at which the assels under individual Cash Generating Unit are carried in the books exceeds its recoverable amount being the higher of
the assets net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows relating te
the assets.

Proviously recognized impairment losses, relating fo assets other than goodwill, are reversed where the recoverable amount increases

because of favourable changes in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment was recognized. A

reversal of an asset impairment loss is limited to its carrying amourt that would have been determined (net of depreciation cr amortization)

had no impairment loss been recegnized in prior years.

(xii} Tax on Income

(a) Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Provision for Current Tax is made in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax
Act, 1961,

{b)  In accordance with Accounting Standard AS-22 * Accounting for Taxes on Income’ as notified by Companies (Accounting Standards)
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lews anacied o substantively enacied at the talance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assais is reviewed at each balance sheel date to reassess realization.

¢y In MAT credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convinging avidence that the company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period. in the year in which the Minanum Alternative tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be
recognized as an asset In accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit lo the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit
Eniiflement. The Company reviews the same al each balance shest dale and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credil
Entitlement fo the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the
specified pericd,

{xili) Leases
Finance Lease

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially alf the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
itemn, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimurn lease payments at the incepficn of the lease term and
diaclosad as leased assels. Lease payments are apporlioned betweern the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on
the implicit rate of return, Finance charges are charged direclly against income. Lease management fees, legal charges ands other initial
direct costs are capitalized.

if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated uselul life of the asset or the iease term.

Operating Lease’

i eases where the lessor effectively retains substantiafly all the risks and benefils of ownership of the leased term are classified as
operating leasas. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

(xiv) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equily shareholders (after deducting
preference dividends and attributable taxes) by Ihe waighted average number of aquity shares outstanding during the perlod.

Partly paid equity shares are lreated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled lo participate in dividends related
to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average numbers of equily shares outstanding during the period
are adiusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in & rights issue to existing sharehelders; share split; and reverse share spiit
{consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all difutive potential equity shares,

{xv) Interim Financial Reporting

Quartesly financial results are published in accardance with the requirement of listing agreement with Stock Exchange. The recognition
and measurement principal as laid down in the Accounting Standard (AS) - 25 "Interim Financial Reporting” have been followed in the
preparation of these resuits.

{xvi) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision Is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of rescurces
embodying econamic benefits will be required to settle the obiigation and & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of abligation. A
contingent liahifity is recognized for:

(@) apresent cbiigation that arises from past events but is not recognized as a provision because either the possibility that an outflow
of resourcas embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation is remote or a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation cannot be made; and

{h) a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the ocourrence or non-
coourrence of one or mare uncertain future evenis not wholly within the control of the company.

Cantingent assets are neither accounted for nor disclosed in the financial statements.
{xvii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise cash and cash deposit with banks and corporations. The cempany considers alt highly liquid
investmenis with the remaining maturity al the date of purchase of 3 months or less. And that are readily convertiole to known amounts of
cash to be cash eguivalents.
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As at Asg at
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
{Rs. in Lacs) {Rs.in Lacs)
NOTE 2 : SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED CAPITAL
100,000,000 (Previous Year 10,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,000.00 10,000.00
ISSUED & SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL :
47,814,430 (Previous Year 47,814,430) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,781.44 4.781.44
PAID UP : '
47 653,880 (Previous Year 47,653,880} Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each “4,765.39 4,765.39
Share Forfeiture Account 4,01 4.01
TOTAL 74,769.40 "4,769.40
a) Termsirights attached to Equity Shares

Company has only one class of equity shares having & par value of Rs.10/-, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share, The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend, if any,proposed by the Board
of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders, in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidaticn of the Company, the helders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution wilt be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

b} Detail of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the company
As at . - As at
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Name of Sharsholder No. of shares Held %age of Holding No. of shares Held %age of Holding
Equity Shares
1 M/fs SBEC Systems {India) Ltd. 1,42,30,584 29,86% 14,230,884 29.86%
2 Mfs Moderate Leasing & Capital Services Ltd 42 15 289 8.85% 4,215 289 8.85%
3 Mis Ato Z Holding Pvi. Ltd. 31,28,400 6.56% 31,28,400 6.56%
4 M/s Longwell Investments Pvt. Ltd. 27,21,500 571% 27.,21,500 571%
5  M/s Kumabhi investments Pvt. Lid. 23,87,060 5.01% 23,87,050 501%
¢) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
2013-14 2012-13
Equity Shares No. of shares {Rs.in lacs) No. of shares (Rs.in lacs)
At the beginning cf the year 4,76,53,880 4,765,392 4,76,53,880 4,765.39
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Less: Bought back during the year - - - -
Cutstanding at the end of the year 4,76,53,880 4,765.39 4,76,53,880 4,765,389
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As at As at
31.03.2914 31.03.2013
{Rs. in Lacs) {Rs.in Lacs)
NOTE 3: RESERVES & SURPLUS
Surpius / (Deficit) )
Balance as per last financial statement (4,912.11) (3,876.87)
Balance in Statement of Profit & Loss {5,375.78) {1,058.69)
Add: Transfer from Reserves - 30.65
Less: Transfer tc Reserves 8.44 7.20
Closing balance (10,296.33) (4.912.11)
Capital Reserve
Balance as per last financial statement 49,17 49.17
Add: Additions during the year - -
Less: Deductions during the year - -
Closing balance 49,17 49,17
Other Reserve- Molasses Storage Fund
Balance as per last financial statement 10.48 3393
Add: Additions during the year 8.44 7.20
Less: Deductions during the year - 30.85
Closing balance 18.93 10.48
TOTAL N {10,228.24) (4,852 .46)
NOTE 4 : LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
A.  Secured Borrowings
a) Vehicle Loans 4.33 10.65
by  Hire Purchase - First Leasing Co. of India Ltd. 103.24 267.48
SUB-TOTAL (A) 107.56 278.11
B. Unsecured Loans
a)  Fixed Deposits from Public - 13425
b) Depesits from Selling agents 282.57 394.30
SUB-TOTAL {(B) 282.57 528.55
TOTAL (A+B) 390.13 806.56
Note : Terms of repayment / details of security are as follows : (Rs. In lacs)
Lending lnstitution Outstanding 2014-15 2015-16 2018-17  2017-18 2018-19
As at 31.03.2014
HDFC Bank Ltd. 0.82 c.82 - - - -
Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. 5.71 3.583 1.60 0.58 - -
ICICH Banl Ltd. 4.12 1.87 2.5 - - -
First Leasing Company of India Lid. 466.47 363.23 98.23 5.0t - -
1 Amounts payabie against vehicle loans are secured against the hypothecation of specific assets acquired.

2 Viehicle loans from HDFG Bank Ltd., Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd., and ICICI Bank Ltd. carry interest @ 10.06-12.00% and Hire Purchase of Plant & Machinery

from First Leasing company of India Ltd carry interest @ 17.92%

3 Fixed Deposits carry interest @10.50-11.00 % and repayable within one to three Years from the date of Deposits.

4 Qutstanding amount and schedule of payment of First Leasing Company of India Ltd. {shown under note No. 8-Current maturity of long term [oan) remained

unreconciled/ unconfirmed.
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As at As at

31.02.2014 31.03.2013
{Rs. in Lacs} (Rs.in Lacs)
MOTE 5 OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Security Depcsit Received 13.56 13.71
Retention Monay - 24.49
Total T 1358 T 3820
NOTE 6 : LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
Provigion for Employee Benefits
For Leave Encashment 11.52 13.38
For Gratuity 114.14 765.84
Total 125.66 T 5023
NOTE 7 : SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
A Secured Borrowings
b} Pledge Acocount with The U.P. Co-operative Bank Itd. 4,907.36 ' 16,5141
c)  Pledge Account with The Shamrac Vithal Co-Operative Bank Lid - 2,525.17
c)  OD Account with The Shamrao Vithal Co-Operative Bank Ltd. ' 9,90 -
SUB-TOTAL {A) 4,917.28 19.039.27
B Unsecured Loans
a) Inter Corporate Deposits 6,180.18 §,354.36
b)  Deposit From Others
by  From Mr. Abhishek Modi, Executive Director - 74.70
SUB-TOTAL (B) 6,180.18 5,429.06
Grand Total (A+B) 11,097.44 25 468.34

1 Pledge Accounis with The U.P. Cc-operative Bank Ltd, and The Shamrao Vithal Bank, are secured by the pledge of stocks
of sugar and are further secured by personal guaranige of two directors of the company.

2 OD Acccunt with The Shamrao Vithai Bank, is secured by the pledge of FDR of Rs. 11,00,000/-

NOTE 8 : TRADE PAYABLES
Sundry Creditors

- For Sugarcane (including expenses related to Cane) 28,900.82 15,201.04
- Small Scale Indusires

Others 4,370.20 3,732.06
TOTAL 33,271.02 T18,933.08

1 Sundry Creditors for goods and expenses include dues to Small Scale industrial Undertakings aggregating to Rs. NIL
{previcus period Rs. 4.78 lacs).

2 Followings are the relevant disciosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006:
a)  Sundry creditors include a sum aggregating Rs.1.12 Lacs (Previcus Year Rs. 1.46), due to Micre and Smait
Enterprises.

b) The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 18, along with the amount of payments made to the
Micro and Small Enterprise beyond the appointed date during the year - Nil {Previous Year Rs. Nil}

¢) The amount f interest accrued and remaining unpaid Rs.0.1C Lacs {Previous Year Rs. 0.04 Lac)

The sbove mentioned outstanding are in normal course of business and the information regarding Micro and Small
Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of infermation available
with the Comparny.
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Current maturity of iong term ioans
Fixed Deposits from Public
Unclaimed Fixed Ceposit from public
Hire Purchase - First Leasing Co. of india Lid.
Vehicie Loans
Statutory Dues
Interst accrued but not due on borrowings
Interst accrued and due on borrowings
Bills Payable Acceptance
Advance Against Sales
Employees Related dues
Retention Mceney
TOTAL
NQTE 10 : SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Benefits
For Leave Encashment
For Gratuity
Others
For Weaith Tax
Total

NOTE 11 : FIXED ASSETS

Az at
31.03.2044
(Rs. in Lacs)

134.25
543.00
363.23
6.32
844.26
3.54
279.66
5252
620.24
141.83
26,79

3,021.64

18.76
12.41

0.31

31.48

As at
31.03.2013
(Rs.in Lacs}

332.00
417.00
240.31
10.07
1,550.91
5.38
579.12
959.78
764.87
127.42
30.41
—5017.27

18.97
11.50

0.36
30.83

(Rs. in lacs)

DESCRIPTION GROSS BLOGCK DEPRECIATION f AMOR TIZATION NET 8LOCK
As at Addiion  Adjustmenis As at Upto Provided Adius- Uplo As at Agat

01.04.2043  During the 31.03.2014 31.03.2013 Buring the tmenls 31.03.2014 31.03.2014  31.03.2013
A. TANGIBLE ASSETS Year - Year
LAND - FREEHOLD 14.15 - - 18.15 - - - - 19.15 18,15
LAND - LEASE HOLD 56.43 - 56.43 9.00 0.64 - 2.63 46,79 47.43
LEASE HOLD IMPROVEMENT 0.85 - - 0.85 085 - - 0.85 -
FACTORY BUILDING &
RANSIT HOUSE 1,177.94 - 117794 324.82 28.24 - 353.06 824.88 853.12
PLANT & MACHINERY 10,072.85 0.82 10,073.68 591880 52273 - 6,441.33 3,632.35 4154.25
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 3083 1.50 233 14,18 130 15.48 18.85 16.65
COMPUTER EQUIRMENT 74.3 8.03 82.33 56.59 5.24 51.83 20.51 17.72
FURNITURE & FIXTURES gr.22 0.33 #7.55 42.74 34 46.06 21.49 24.47
MOTOR VEHICLES 130.77 - 5.56 13021 48,50 1283 3.5 B7.58 72.65 8r.27
FACTORY APPROACH ROAD 244,32 - - 244,32 128.60 3881 187.21 774 115.72
TOTAL (A} 11,879.67 10.68 5.56 11,884.79 6,541.88 612.70 3.57 7,163.01 4,731.78 5,335.79
Pravious Year 11,698.54 207.96 26.82 11,878.67 5,961.53 605.68 23.44 6,643.88 5,335;79 5,736.91
B. INTANGIBLE ASSETS|
COMPUTER SOFTWARE 14.13 - - 14,13 12,80 0.4 - 13.23 0.89 133
TOTAL [B) 14.13 - - 14.13 12.80 0.44 - 13.23 0.39 1.33
Previous Year 13.71 0.42 - 1413 12,15 0.65 - 12,80 1.33 1.56
TOTAL (A+Bj 11,893.80 10,68 5.56 11,898.92 8,556.67 613.14 3.57 7,166.24 4,732,688  5,337.13
Pravious Year 11,712.25 208.38 26.82 11,893.80 5,973.78 606.33 23.44 6,556.67 5,137.13  5,738.46

1. Freehold Land Includes land aggregating Rs. 1.56 facs in the name of SBEC System (India) Limiled as nominge.
2, Faclory Approach Road, represents expenditure incurmred by the company an roads outside factory premises and are written off over a perfod of five years.

3 Addifions ncludes:
)  Interest capitalised Rs NIL { Previous Period Rs Mil ~)
{iy  Preoprative Expense Rs Nil { Previous Pariod Rs Nil}
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Az at

31.03.2014

(Rs. in Lacs)

NOTE 12 : NON-CURRENT INVESTMENT
Trade Investment
(Unguoted, Valued at Cost)

Investment in Subsidiary Companias
1,26,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each in SBEC Bioenergy Ltd.”
{Previous year - 1,26,50,000 Equity sharss of Rs.10/- each)

45,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each in SBEC Stockholding & Investments Lid.

(Previous Year - 45,50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each in Modi Casings and Packaging
Pvt. Lid. {Formely known as Modi Gourmet Lid.)
(Previous Year - 50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)
Sub Total (a}
Other Investments:

20,000 Eqity Shares of Rs.25(~ each in The Shamrao Vithat Co-operative Bank Ltd.

{Previous Year - 20,000 Equity shares of Rs. 25/- each)
Suh Total (b)
TOTAL (a+h)

*(including Rs. 0.83 Lacs Share Transfer Fee )

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

Market value of guoted investments

Aggregate amount of unguoted investments

Agaregate provision for diminution in value of investments

NOTE 13 : LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured, Considered good
Security Deposits

TOTAL

NOTE 14 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
MAT Credit Entitlement

Margin money with cthers

Other Bank Balances

Balance with Scheduled Banks in -

—  Fixed Deposits Pledged with Banks

—  Magrin Money with Banks
TOTAL

NOTE 15 : INVENTORIES

Goods in Process

Finished goods at Plant

Finished gocds at SBEC Gedown, Medinagar
Stock-in-trade (in respect of goods acquired for trading)
Stores and spares *

Other Stocks

TOTAL

* Net of Provision for Obsolescence Rs.4.58 lacs
(Previous Year Rs. 2.31 Lacs)

30

1,265.83

455,00

5.0

1,725.83

—_—

5.00

5.00

1,730.83

1,730.83

7.67

7.67

35.00

18.52
11.00

64,52

467.08
18,678.61
309.85
352.99
627.53
7.42

20,443.48

As at
31.03.2013
(Rs.in Lacs}

1,265.83

455.00

5.00
1,725.83

5.00
500
1,730.83

1,730.83

4.32
4.32

18.69
35.00

17.81
5.00
77.51

317.64
23,641.49
3,005.15
522.08
12.80
27,499.15
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A3 at As at

31.03.2014 31.03.2013
{Rs. in Lacs) {Rs.in Lacs
MOTE 16 . TRADE RECEIVABLES
Debis outstanding for a pericd exceeding six months
from the date they are due for payment
- Secured - -
- Unsecured 0.20 121.03
- Doubtful 1,14 1.33 6.34 127.37
Other Debis
- Secured - . 1,350.02 -
- Unsecured 1,285.53 - -
- Doubtful - 1,285.53 - 1,350.02
Less: Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 114 6.34
TOTAL ‘ T1,285.72 1.471.04
NOTE 17 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand Chegques/Drafts in hand 3.55 427
Balance with Banks in -
— In Current Accounts 114.52 350.58
Other Bank Balances
Balance with Banks in -
— Fixed Deposits 9.81 6.63
TOTAL T127.87 T 36148
NOTE 18 : SHORT TERM LOAN & ADVANCES
Unsecured '
LOAN & ADVANCES TO RELATED PARTIES .
Subsidiary - (SBEC Stockhloding & Investment Ltd.} 1,800.50 1,512.50
- (SBEC Bio Energy Ltd.) 10,429.09 10,089.10
Moderate Leasing & Capital Services Lid. - 448.50
Promoter Company - SBEC Systems (India} Limited 127.96 127.96
Advance Recoverable In Cash or in Kind or for Value to be received
Unsecured 196,37 145.93
Doubtful - - .
Less :- Provision for doubtfui advances - 186.37 - 145,93
Amount deposited under protest* 64.69 4384
Taxes recoverable 35.99 47.78
Balance with Excise/Trade Tax Authorities 206.34 198,17
Share Application Money- Chandii Power Lid 3.00 11.00
Prepaid Expenses ’ 26.34 25.08
TOTAL 12,890.28 12,649.66
*Amount deposited under protest Detail
U.P. VAT Act 56,64 38.21
Central Excise Act 8.04 5.43
64.69 43.64
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Assets held for Disposal (Also refer Note No. - 45)
Tax Deducted At Source
TOTAL

NOTE 20 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
a) Sale of product

Sugar
b)  Other operating revenue

Molassses
Bagasse

" Scrap Sale
Less : Excise Duty
TOTAL

NOTE 21 : OTHER INCOME

Interest Received :

Dividend received from ceperative Society

REC Income ‘

Miscellaneous Income

Purchase Tax Waiver Account

Excess Provision / Sundry balances written back
TOTAL

NOTE 22 : COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Raw Material Consumed
TOTAL

NOTE 23 : PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE

Sugar Purchased For Trading
TOTAL

NOTE 24 : CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF STOCKS

Opening Stock

Finished Goods

Goods in Process

Stock in Trade

Closing Stock

Finished Goods

Geods In Process

Stock in Trade
Increase/(Decrease) in Stocks

32

23,641.49
317.64

3,005.15

18,988.46
467.08

352.9¢

As at
{Rs. in Lacs}

1,206.52
2.53
1,208.05

For the Year

ended 31.03.2014

As al
31.03.2013
{Rs.in Lacs)

1,143.88
2.10
1,145.97

For the Year

ended 31.03.2013

{Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)
35,768.93 28,686.24
2,641.42 1,837.23
1,209.67 909.86
50.20 54,34
1,405.16 1,026.78
38,265.06 30,558.80
2.83 6.37
0.80 0.60
390.83 346.16
44.63 54.96
109.17 -
48.57 73.54
£96.43 481.62
25,934.68 26,867.05
25,934.68 26,867.05
4,412.22 7,636.90
4,412.22 7,636.90

19,310.15

8.09
26,364.27 3,218.52 22,538.76

23,641.49

317.64
19,808.53 3,005.15 26,964.27
(7,155,75) 4,428 51
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MOTE 25 : MANMUFACTURIMG EXPENSE For the Yaar For the Year
ended 31.03.20°14 ended 31.03.2013
{Rs. In Lacs) {Rs. In Lacs)
Stores & Spares Consumed {Including Packing Exp.) 803.50 945,73
Fower & Fuel 3.18 1.50
Repair & Maintenance
- Plant & Machinery 474.59 338.63
- Building 44,72 38.91
- Others 35.74 555.05 13.90 391.44
Freight & Cartage 10.10 10.90
Material Handling Expenses 90.48 76.58
Variation in Excise duty on opening and clecsing stock - -
Finished Goods {213.40) 111.87
TOTAL T1,248.82 153802
VALUE OF IMPORTED/INDIGENOUS RAW MATERIALS, STORES AND SPARES CONSUMED
{Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Indigenous %age Imported % age
Value Value
Raw Materials 25,189 100% - Nil
Pravious Year 25,479 100% - Nit
Stores & Spares* . 791 98.45% 12.44  1.55%
Previous Year 926 97.92% 19.67 2.08%
*Excluding spares used for capitalization.
) For the Year Fer the Year
ended 31.03.2014 ended 31.03,2013
{Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)
NOTE 26 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salary, Wages & Bonus 795.19 800.6C
Company’s Contribution To Provident & Other Funds 55.583 60.77
Staff Welfare Expenses 33.46 32.36
Gratuity 50.77 18.48
TOTAL 934.94 912.21
NOTE 27 : FINANCE COST
Interest expenses 2,500.04 2,809.46
Finance Charges 66.99 234.82
Financial Brokerage 17.02 52.36
TOTAL 2,584.05 3,096.85
NOTE 28 : ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Telephone, Postage & Telegram 10.94 12.78
Legal & Professional Charges 42.71 50.61
Director's Sitting Fee 0.31 0.28
Loss on Saie of Fixed Assets 0.84 0.37
Loss on Sale of Stores & Spares - 0.53
Travelling & Conveyance 46.35 44,19
Rent Including Lease Charges 17.41 35.46
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MOTE 25 MAMUFACTURIMG ZXPENSE For the Year For the Year
ended 31.03,2014 ended 31.05.2013
{Rs. In Lacs) {Rs. In Lacs)
Stores & Spares Consumed {Including Packing Exp.) 803.50 946.73
Power & Fuel 3.19 1.50
Repair & Maintenance
- Plant & Machinery 474,59 33883
- Building 44.72 38.91
- Others 35.74 555,05 13.90 391.44
Freight & Cartage 10.10 10.90
Material Handling Expenses 90.48 76.58
Variation in Excise duty on opening and cleosing stock - -
Finished Goods {213.40) 111.87
TOTAL 1,248.92 1,638.02
VALUE OF IMPORTED/INDIGENOUS RAW MATERIALS, STORES AND SPARES CONSUMED
' (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars indigenous %age Imported % age
Value Value
Raw Materials 25,189 100% - Nil
Previous Year 25,479 100% - Nil
Stores & Spares* 791 98.45% 1244 1.55%
Previous Year 926 97.92% 19.67 2.08%

*Excluding spares used for capitafization.

For the Year
ended 31.03.2014

For the Year
anded 31.03,2013

(Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs}
NOTE 26 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salary, Wages & Bonus 795.19 800.60
Company’s Contribution To Provident & Other Funds 55.53 60.77
Staff Welfare Expenses 33.46 32.36
Gratuity 50.77 18.48
TATAL 93434 91227
NOTE 27 : FINANCE COST
Interest expenses 2,500.04 2,808,486
Finance Charges £6.99 23482
Financial Brokerage __17.02 __ﬁfi
TOTAL 2,584.05 3,096.65
NOTE 28 : ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Telephone, Postage & Telegram 10.94 12.79
Legal & Professional Charges 42.71 59.61
Director's Sitting Fee 0.31 0.28
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.64 0.37
Loss on Sale of Stores & Spares - 0.53
Travelling & Conveyance 46.35 4419
Rent Including Lease Charges 17.41 35.46
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MOTE 28 0 ADMIMISTRATION EXPEMBES (Cont....)

For the Year For the Year
ended 31.03.2014 ended 31.03.2013
(Rs. In Lacs) {Rs. In Lacs)
Rates & Taxes 30.69 40.97
Vehicle Expenses 21.19 23.15
insurance
Insurance Exp. 45.00 38.22
Insurance Relealised on Sugar (36.72) 8.28 (26.53) 12.70
Security Guard Expensas - 66.51 79.56
Payment to Auditors ~ : 2.25 3.53
Projecis abandoned/written off - 34.08
Debit Balances Written Off - 52.85
Provision for Obsolete Store ltems 2.28 -
Foreign exchange fluctuation 88.78 8.24
Bank Charges 18.24 30.28
Wealth Tax 0.31 0.36
Misc. Expenses ' 26.28 236.58
TOTAL 38315 —__475.66
*Details of Payment to Auditors
a)  Statutory Audit Fee 2.25 2.25
b)  Certification & Reimbursement 1.13 1.16
c}  Out of pocket expenses 0.43 0.13
YY) T 353
NMOTE 29 : SELLING EXPENSES
Commission 159.71 147.37
Rent (Godown) : ' 44.12 51.08
Freight, Clearing & Forwarding 126.28 96.24
Rebate & Discount 2.52 0.45
TOTAL T 332.63 T 296.04
NOTE 30 : EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Profit an Sale of Debt Assignemtn (Also refer Note No. 33) - €,582.69
Provision for interest on Custom Duty - {295.42)
TOTAL - . " 6,287.27
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NOTES OM FIMAMCIAL BTATEMENT.

31.  Earning per Share (A3-20)
Particutars Current Year Previous Year
Net Profitf{Loss) after tax (Rs. in lacs) (5,375.78) {1.058.69)
Weighted Average number of equily shares outstanding during the year 4,76,53,880 4,76,53,880
Basic £arning per Share (Rs.) {11.28) (2.22}
Diiuted Earning per Share (Rs.} {11.28) (2.22)
32. Contingent Liabiiities not provided for in respect of: (Rs. in lacs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2014 As at 31.03.2013
i} Carporate Guarantee given to Government of Jharkhand against Soft loan
{incl. interest) given to Bihar Sponge ren Lid. 6,301.45 5,834.67
iy Outstanding against Guarantee given on behalf of SBEC Bio-energy Lid. 2,000.00 2,660.95
it} Duties and Tax liabilities disputed by the Company 1,679.00 361.11
)  Interest and R C Charges on cane arrear payment as recovered by DCO, 35.99 35.88
Baghpat, case is pending with Alahabad High Court.
iv) Interest and R C Charges on cane arrear from the season 2012-13 3,193.92 Nil
33.  During the year 2008-2007, a Cne Time Settiement (OTS) dated 22" January, 2007 was signed between the Company, Punjab Mational
Bank {PNB), Mr. Umesh K. Modi (as Guarantor of MIL) and Modi Industries Limited (MIL) on the terms as confained in the PNB lelter
dated 28" September, 20086, in ferms of this settlement, the Company has agreed to make payment of Rs. 2,810.80 tacs together with
interest to PNB. In consideration of the same, PNB has agreed to assign all ils ciaims, interest and charges against the Steel Section
of MIL in favour of the Company. The Company has made full payment of the settlement amount together with interest aggregating Rs.
3,351.21 lacs to PNB. As per expert legal opinion, during the year interest amounting {o Rs. 417 .63lacs (previous year Rs. 2,143.47 lacs
for the period from 227 January, 2007 to 31¢ March, 2012) has been allocated to the cost of “Debt Assignment” acquired by the company
from PNB, since in the opinion of the management the borrowing of the company were raised to pay for Debt Assignment.
PNB thereafter executed a “Deed of Assignment” on 15" May, 2012¢an event cccurring after the date of the Balance Sheet} in favour of
the company by which PNB assigned all its claim together with ail securilies and charges created by MIL iy its favour to the company.
The company thereafter executed a “Deed of Assignment” on 31st December, 2012 in favour of its subsidiary M/s SBEC Bioenergy Limited
by which the company assigned all its claim together with all securities and charges created by MIL In its favour for a consideration of Rs.
12,500.00 Lacs. A sum of Rs. 4,200.00 lacs has been paid simultaneously with the exesution of this deed and the remaining sum of Rs.
£,300.00 lacs shall be payable as per the mutuzlly agreed instaliments within a period of five years from the date of execiion of this deed.
34, Executive and Whole time Director's Remuneration included under different heads of expenditure is as follows:
. {Rs. in Lacs})
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salary, Allowance & Commission 13.99 18.20
Contribution to Provident fund 1.36 1.42
Reimbursement of Expenses 1.25 0.69
Sub Total 16.60 20.31
Commissicn on profits ' Nii* Nil*
TOTAL 16.60 20.31
“In view of Iosses in the current year, computation of net profit in accordance with Sec. 309(5) read with Sec. 349 of the Companies Act,
1956 has been made. However, on that basis, no commission is payable to the Executive Director.
35. Segment Reporting {AS-17)}
The Company is a single product, singie location company and hence the requirements of Agcounting Standard-17 on ‘Segment Reporting’
are not relevant.
36. Impairments of Assets (AS-28)
Carrying amounts of the Assets were reviewed at the Balance sheet date and no internal or external indications were noticed that could
have necessitated any provision towards impairment of assets.
37. Disclosures as required by the Amendment to Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement:
Name of the Companies Amount outstanding Maximum Balance
As on 31%t March 2014* outstanding
during the year
(Rs. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs)
Chandil Power Ltd. — Interested Company ‘ 3.00 11.00
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38, Related party disciosure as raquired by Accounting Stndard {AS-18)
{A) List of Related Parties & Relationships :
As at As ai
31.035.2014 31.03.2013
{a)  Enterprises that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
controt or are controliad by or are under comimon cantrol with the reporting
enterprise (this includes holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiary}
{i} SBEC Biocenergy Limited Subsidiary Substdiary
(il  SBEC Stockholding & Investment Limited. Subsidiary Subsidiary
(i} Medi Casings and Packaging Private Lid. {formerly known as Modi Gourment Limited)  Subsidiary Subsidiary
(h)  Associates & joint ventures Nil Nil
{¢) Individuals owning directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of Sh. U. K Modi Sh. U. K Modi
the reporting enterprise that gives them control or significant influence Sh. Abhighek Modi Sh. Abhishek Modi
over the enterprise, and relatives of any such individual. Sh. 8. C. Gupta Sh. 8. C. Gupia
Sh. Abhishek Modi Sh. Abhishek Maodi
Executive Director Exacutive Director
& CEO & CEO
{d) Key Management Personnsl Sh. S. C. Gupta 5Sh. 8. C. Gupta
Whole Time Director Whale Time Director
{8}  Relatives of Key Management Personnel & their Enterprises
()] Mrs. Kumkum Modi*
(ii) Mr. Jayesh Modi
(iiiy Ms. Meghna Modi*
(iv} Mrs. Himani Modi Agarwal®
(v) Mr. Privank Kumar Agarwal®
{vi) Mrs Suman Lata Gupta®
{vii) Ato Z Holding Pvt.Lid
{viii} Arvind Confinental Pvt, Lid
(ix) Bihar Spenge iron Lid
(x) Chandil Power Limited
(xi) First Move Management Services Pvt. Ltd*
{xii} H. M. Tubes & Containers Pvt. Lid*
(xiiiy Jai Abhishek Investments Pvi. Lid*
(xiv) Jayesh Tradex Pvt. Lid
{xv} Kamakhya Cosmetics & Pharmaceuticals Pvt. Lid”
{xvi) Longwell Investment Pvt. Lid
{xvi) M.G. Mobiles india Pvt. Lid
(vl Meghna Auloworks Private Ltd*
(ix} Modi Arts Pvt, Lid*
(xx) Modi Diagnostics Pvt. Ltd*
(i) Modi Goods and Retail Services Pvt. Ltd* (formally known as Modi Groceries Pyl. Ltd.)
{xxif) Modi lllva india Pvt, Lid*
{xxiif} Modi Indusiries Lid
{xxiv) Modi Motors Put. Lid™
{xxv) Modi Mundipharma Pwt. Ltd*
(o) Modi Omega Pharma (India) Pvi. Lid*
(xxvii) Modi Revlon Pvt. Ltd*
(vt Modi Senator {India) Pvt. Lid*
(xxix) Modiline Travel Service Pvi. Ltd
(3%} Morgardshammer India Lid*
(ool Revign Lanka Pvt. Lid*
(i Revion Trading Bangiadesh Private Ltd*
{xxiiiy SBEC Systems (India) Ltd
{xxxiv) Swasth lnvestment Pvt. Lid*
{xxxv) Umesh Madi Corp. Pvt. Lid*
(Xxxvi) Win Medicare Pvt. Lid
* indicates that during the year, there is no transaction with these enterpsises
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(B) Transaciions carried out with ralatad parties referrad in {A) above, in ordinary course of husiness:

(s in lacs)

Mature of transaction Referved in Refesred in Referred in Referred in Refesrad in
A {1} above* A (2) above A (3} above A (4) above A (5) above
Purchase / Goods and Services 213 - - - 3905.86
(0.90) {-) {-) -} (4,708.82)
Sales | Goods and Services - - - - 2754.00
) (-} 9] - (239.02)
Sale of Debt Assignment 12.500,00 - - - -
Q] ) -} ) -}
Expenses ! Compuler / Printing & Stationery - - 7T
) &) ) ) {7.86)
Air Tickets / Vehicle Exp. 7.80 - - 2.70
) () ) ) {10.25)
Courier / Freight Exp./Postage & Telegraph - - - 0.67
) ] ) ) (1.92}
Repair & Maintenance Exp. - - - - -
) ) -) () (2.00)
Rent/Telephone/Electricity 1.18 - - - 4.55
(0.02) - -) (0.19) {5.02)
Interest paid - - - 261 101.85
‘ . ) © “) (5.57) {85.98)
Satary & Wages etc - - - 16.60 0.83
(0.13) ) ) (20.31) &)
Consultancy / Sitting Fee - - - - 0.08 -
) ) ) ) {0.02)
Gifts & other - - - 0,11
) ) ) - (0.18)
Prior Period Exp. 811.30 .- - - 2.50
) ) ) - )
Stores & Spares Consumed - - - - 8.19
) ) ) -) (8.12)
Income / Interest Received - - - -
) &) ) ) )
| ease Rent Recd. — Boiler - - - -
) () ) ) o
Qther Income 291.14 - - -
(346.18) ] ) ) 0.
Corporate Guarantees 2000.00 - - - §5301.45
Qutstanding as on 31.03.14 {2,660.96)# () -} {-) (5,834.67)
Investment - invesiment in Shares - - - - -
. ) -} ) &) Q]
Recoverabie / Receivable as on 31.03.13
Advance Recoverabie 384.1¢ - - - -
(675.00) -} Q] - )
Finance / Advance Taken as on 31.03.13 - - - 85.00 -
) ) ) ) ]
Year-end Balance of loan & Advance 1800.50 - - 74,70 1129.23
(1,612.80) (=) {-) (-} {1,048.32)
# Guarantee given to SBEC Bioenergy Lid. Rs.2,000.00 lacs (Previous year Rs. 2,660.96 lacs).
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Loage (AS-19)
OCperating Lease

The company has aniered into operating leases for its office and for employes’s residence that are renewable on a pericdic hasis and
cancellable at Company’s option. The Company nas nol enfered info sublease agreements in respecl of these leasas. Further, the
Company has not entered inlo any non-canceilabie leases.

40, Deferred Taxation (A5-22)
Deferred taxes arise because of difference in trealment belween financial accounting and tax accounting, known as “Timing differences”.
The tax effzct of these timing differences is recorded as "deferred tax assets” (generally items that can be used as a tax dedustion or
credit in future perfods) and “deferred tax liabilities” (generally items for which the company has received a tax deduction, but has not yet
been recorded in the statement of income).
The principal components of the net deferred tax balance are as follows: - {Rs. In lacs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2014 As af 31.03.2013
Deferred Tax Liabifity
Depreciation 812.07 885.30
Other Ceductions - -
Sub Total ~ A 812.07 895.20
Deferred Tax Assets
Business Loss / Unabsctbed Dep. 4419.79 2,663.53
Ceduction u/s 43B 27.56 120.40
Disallowance 40(A)(7) ' ) ) 39.10 27.30
Sub Total - B 4486.45 2.811.23
Net Deferred Tax Assetsf{Liability} {B-A} 3674.38 1,915.93
*Assets Recognised {Refer nate bhelow) 812,07 895.30
* In view of continuous losses, duzing the year recognition of deferred tax assets has been restricted to the extent of deferred fax fiabilily.
41, The company in terms of Board of Direcior's resolution dated 6th July 2013 has filed a reference with the Board for Industrial and financial
Reconsiruction (BIFR) /S 15(1) of the Sick Industrial companies (Special provisions) Act 1988 (SICA} vide its letter dated 24th July
2013 and as per communicaticn received from BIFR vide its letter No. 3/(S-22)/BC/2013 dated 21st August 2013, The said reference has
been registered by BIFR as case No, 58/2013. The BIFR has declared the company as Sick ufs 3(1){0) of SICA and appointed (DBl as
operating agency ufs 17{3) ofthe Act. in ifs heasing held on dated 04.02.2014. Since the Company has centinued #s normat manufacturing
operations during the season 2013-14 therefore the accounts are prepared on a "Going Concern, Basis”.
42, Addilional information pursuant to provisions of Part If of Revised Schedule V1 to the Companies Act, 1956 (lo the extent applicabie):
a) CAPACITY
Instailed Capacity (as cettified by the management) Year Ended Year Ended
31+ March, 2014 31 March,2013
Sugarcane Crushing M.T. per day 2000 8000
(No License required)
h) PRODUCTION, PURCHASE, TURNOVER & STOCK
Classes of Goods Opening Stock Production Sales Closing stock
Quantity Quantity . Cuantity Value Quantity Value
{QUs) {Qtis.} (Qlis.) (in Lacs) {Qis.) {in Lacs)
Sugar 6,97,185.5 798458 946893.5 29022.09 549750 17738.65
(5,50,078) {7.90,676) (6,43,565) (20,502.58) (6,97,185.5) (22,764.13)
Molasses (By-product) 2,44,993.9 476030.3 562082.2 2616.57 158042 732.21
(2,61,611.95) (4,63,389) (4,80,007.75) (1,937.23) (2,44,953.9) {812.55)
Purchases ‘
Sugar Trading 83255 127026.3 200160.3 7044.54 10121 352.99
(96,545) (2,11,469) (2,24,745.65} (8,182.66) {83,255) {3,005.15)
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SOMBUMPTIOM OF 2ol A TERs0E

tRs W aes)

Yaar snded
3= March, 2014

Yaay ended
I March, 2013

Particidars Cluantity Vialue Quantity Value
{Quintals} (Rs. In facs} (Quintals) {Rs. In lacs)
Sugar Cane 9123095 25189.50 {92,38.300) {25,468.48)
d) EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (On accrual basis}
{Rs.inlacs)
Particulars Current year Pravious Year
Interest, Others, 22.1¢ 18.23
e} CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS
Store & Spares ) 18.65 14.99
43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (AS-15) )
As per Accounting Standard 15 “Employee Benefit” the disclosure of Employee Benefit as defined in Accounting Standard are given
below:
a) Defined Conftributien Plan )
Employer's Contributions te Defined Centribution Plan, recognized as expense for the peried are as under:
: : {Rs. in lacs)
Year ended Year ended
31=t March 2014 31 March 2013
Employer’s contribution to-Provident Funcg 54.43 55.82
b) Defined Benefit Plan
The employees’ gratuity fund scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based an actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of empioyee benefit
entittement and measures each unit separately to build up the final abligation. The obligation for leave encashment is recognized in the
same manner as gratuity.
1. Reconciliation of opening and ciosing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation.
{Rs. inlacs)
Particulars . Leave Leave
Gratuity Gratuity Encashment Encashment
{Unfunded) (Unfunded) {Unfunded) (Unfunded)
31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Defined Benefil abligation at the beginning of the period. 88.34 92.2 14.14 12.98
Past Service Cost - - - -
Current Service Cost. 17.25 13.44 1.90 2.04
Interest Cost. 7.07 7.38 1.13 1.04
Actuarial {gain)/loss 26.44 (3.42) (1.11) {1.71)
Benefits Paid {12.55} 21.25 (0.80) {0.28)
Settlement cost - - - -
Defined Benefit abligation at the end of the period 126.55 88.34 15.23 14.10
2. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the period - - - -
Expected Return - - B -
Actuarial (gain)/loss - - - -
Contribution by Employer - - - -
Benefits Paid - . N -
Setflement cost - - - -
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period - - - -
Actual return on plan assets - - - R
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3. Reconaiiiation of amount recognized in Balance Shesi iy lacs)
s Leave
Gratuity Gratuity Exncashment  Encashiment
: {(Unfunded) (Unfunded} (Unfunded) {Unfundecd)
Particulars 31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at 31* March - - - -
Present value of obligation as at 31st March . 126.55 38,34 15.23 14.10
Met asset/(liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (126.55) {B8.34) (30.28)" (32.37y
‘It includes company grade employees’ freeze liability in books amounting to Rs.15.05 lacs (Previous year Rs.18.27 Lacs).
4. Expense Recagnized during the period in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Current Service Cost 17.25 13.44 1.90 2.04
Past Service Cost - - - -
Interest Cost 7.07 7.38 1.13 1.04
Expected return on pian assets - - - -
Met Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized during the period 26.45 (3.42) (1.11) (1.71)
Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss 50.77 17.39 1.92 1.37
# 1t excludes the expense in relation to company grade employees’ amounting to Rs. 2,00 lacs.
5. Actual Return on Plan Assets {Rs. in lacs)
Leave Leave
Gratuity Gratuity Encashment  Encashment
{Unfunded) (Unfunded) {(Unfunded) (Unfunded}
Particulars 31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Expected Return on Plan Assets - - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss - - - -
Agclual return on pian assets - - - -
6. Principal Actuarial Assumptions (Rs. in lacs)
Leave Leave
Gratuity Gratuity Encashment Encashment
{Unfunded) (Unfunded} {Unfunded) {Unfunded)
Particulars 31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Maortality Table {LIC} 1994-96 1954-95 1994-96 1994-96
duly modified duly modified dulty modified  duly modified
Discount rate as at 31st March, 2013 8.50% 8% 8.50% 8%
Future Salary Increase 8% 5.50% 6% 5.50%
Expecied rate of return on pian assets - - - -
Retirement Age 80 Years 60 Years 60 Years &0 Years
Withdrawal Rates Age Withdrawal Withdrawal Withdrawal Withdrawal
Upto 30 years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
From 21 to 44 vears 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00% 1.0C% 1.00%
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Amount for the current and previous four perieds in petlods in respect of leave encashment are as follows

{Rs. in lacs)

Particulars Grauity Grauity Grauity Grauity  Encashment

{(Unfunded) (Unfunded} {Unfunded} (Unfunded) (Unfunded)

31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2012 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

PBO 15.23 14,10 12.99 11.49 9.51

Plan Assets - - - - -

Net Assets/(Liability) (15.23) (14.10) (12.89) {(11.49) (9.51)

Expetience adjustment of plan assets{loss)/gain - - - - -

Experience adjustment of plan liabitiies(ioss)/gain 112 1.76 1.34 1.01 14.07
Amount for the current and previgus four periods in periods in respect of Gratuity are as follows

{Rs. in lacs)

Particulars Grauity Grauity Grauity Grauity Grauity

{(Unfunded) (Unfunded) {Unfunded} (Unfunded) (Unfunded)

31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2012 31.03.201 31.03.2010

PBC 126.55 88.34 92.19 73.08 57.08

Plan Assets - - - - -

Net Assets/(Liability) (126.55) (88.34) {92.19) {73.06) (67.08)

Experience adjustment of plan assets(loss)/gain - - - - -

Experience adiustment of plan liabilities(loss)ygain - (26.37) 3.79 (4.13) 2.19 9.20

44,

45,

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The actuary certifies the above information.

Actuarial valuation of Leave Encashment for period ended 31st March, 2014 and 31st March, 2013 pertain to only Seasonal Wage-board
grade employees, therefore there is difference in expense recognized in statement of profit & Loss and amount as mentioned in Actuarial
certificate. However the expenses have been provided on Accrual Basis.

Congidering the adverse aconomic/sector conditions and current financial instability the Management of the company vide their resolution
dated 05th March, 2013 has decided to dispose-offits Chandil Power Plant (under implementation). The company has formed a committee

to negotiate with potential buyers. The management expacts that the assets will be realized to the extent as stated & does

not call for any

proviston as on the date of the Balance Sheet. Therefore, the Capital Work in Progress, Capital Advances and other related accounts of
the Chandil Power Project have been shown as assels held for disposal.

Previcus year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever considered necessary.

Previous year figures are given in the bracket wherever appiicable

SIGNED FOR IDENTIFICATION NOTE 1 to 45

For & on behalf of

DOOGAR & ASSOCIATES Umesh K. Modi
Chartered Accountants (Chairman & President)
Firm Regn. No. : 000561N DIN No. 00002757

Mukesh Goyal
Mg. Pariner
Membership No. : 081810

Place : New Delhi
Date ; 28th May, 2014
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Abhishek Modi
{Executive Director)
DiN No. 00002798

Arun Kumar Gupta
(Chief Financial Officer)

G.C. Jain
(Director)
DIN No. 00002856

Shwetambery Khurana
{Company Secrefary)

41




N

SBEC Sugar Limited

Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements of SBEC Sugar Ltd.
To The Board of Directors of SBEC Suyar Lid
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accempanying consolidated financial statements of SBEC Sugar Ltd (the Company'} and its subsidiaries (*Collectively referred to as “the
Group™) which comprises the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2044 and also the Consalidated Stalement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and Notes to Financial Statements comprising of a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is respensible for the preparation of these cansolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consclidated financial pesition, con-
solidsted financial performance and consclidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India; this includes the
design, implementalion, and maintenance of internal contrels relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financizl statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or efror.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards

on Auditing issued by the iastitute of Charlered Accountants of India. Those Stardards reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free fram material misstatement,

An audit invelves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounis and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of the material misstatament of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to error of fraud. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group's preparation and fair presentation of the consoli-
dated financial stalements in arder to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the cireumnstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting pelicies used and reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consclidated
financial siatements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Basis for Qualified Opinlon

i) The Companies financials have been prepared on “Going Concern” as the company has continued its nommal manufacturing cperations during the season
2013-14.
The company in terms of Board of Director's resolution dated 6th July 2013 has filled a reference with the Board for Industriat and financial Reconstruction
(BIFR) U/S 15(1) of the Sick Industrial companies (Special provisicns) Act 1985 (SICA) vide its letter dated 24th Juiy 2013 and as per communication received
from BIFR vide ils letter No. 3/(S-22¥8C/2013 dated 21st August 2013, The said reference has been registered by BIFR as case Mo, 58/2013. The BIFR has
declared the cempany as Sick u/s 3(1)(0) of SICA and appointed iDBI as operating agency /s 17(3) of the Act. In ils hearing held on dated 04.02.2014,

(i) The company’s has not made provisicon for interest, on late payment of cane duss amousling to Rs2241.12 lacs. Accordingly manufacturing expenses and
net losses would have been higher by Rs2241.12lacs respectively & its cansequential impact cn EPS.

(iiy We draw attention to Note No. 32 of the financial statement (of subsidiary SBEC Bio Energy Limited) where in as at March 31, 2014, the company has net
exposure of Rs. 1,46,85,07,682/- as debt acquired in Modi Industries Limited. The net worth of Modi Industries timited has been completely eroded, which
raised a doubt on recoverability of the above balances, However, no provision for doubiful debts were made in the financial statements of the company and
consequently we are unable to opine on the appropriatengss of the same and its consequential impact on the financial statement.

Qualified Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified

Opinion paragraph and based on the consideration of the reperts of the other auditors on the financial statements of the subsidiaries as noted below, the consoli-
dated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a) In the case of the cansolidated Balance Shest, of the consclidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014;
b)  Inthe case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the consolidated results of opsrations of the Group for the year ended on that date; and
¢y Inihe case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Other Matier

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiagies. The financial statements of SBEC Bio-energy Limited reflect total assets of Rs17382,93 lacs as at 31st
March, 2014 and total revenues of Rs902.46 lacs for the period ended on that date. The financial statements of SBEC Stockholding and Investment Limited reflect
lotal assets of Rs2252.82 lacs as at 31st March, 2014 and total revenues of Rs.01 lacs for the period ended on that date. The financial staiements of Modi Gourmet
Limited refiect iotal assets of Rs 31 lacs as at 31st March, 2014 and fotal revenues of Rs N for the pericd ended on that date, The financiai statements and other
financial information of subsidiaries have been audited by other auditors whose reports nave been furnished to us and our opinion, in so far as it refates to the
amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

The financial statements of the Subsidiaries are audited and have been approvediacknowledged by the Boards of Directors of the respective Subsidiaries, whose

certificate have been furnished 1o us, and aur opinion, in so far as it relates to these amounts included in respect of Associates and Subsidiaries of the Associates
are based sclely on these cerification. Our Opinien is net qualified in respect of this matter.

For and on behalf of

Doogar & Associates

Charlered Accouniants

Firm Regn. No. 000561N

Piace: New Delhi Mukesh Goyal
Dated: 28th May, 2014 Partner
M. No. 081810
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2014

NOTE NO. As at As at
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
(Rs. in Lacs) {Rs. in Lacs)
. EQUITY AND LIABILITY
Shareholders’ Funds
(a) Share Capital 2 4,769.40 4,769.40
(b} Reserves and Surplus 3 {15,603.88) {10,022.08)
{10,834.48) {5,252.68)
Minority Inerest 2,028,687 2,195.33
Non-current Liabllities
(a) Long-term Borrowings 4 2,105.31 1,994.97
(b)  Other Long Term Liabifities 5 13.56 38.20
{c) Long-term Provisions 6 147.64 128.24
2,266.51 2,161.41
Current Lizhilities
{a}  Short-term Borrowings 7 11,262.44 25,468.34
{b) Trade Payables 8 33,392.89 19,029.67
{c)  Other Current Liabilities 9 3,442.65 6,748.25
{d)  Short-term Provisions 10 32.00 17.36
T 48,129.98 ~ 51,261.62
TOTAL 41,690.88 5(),365.68
i ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Fixed Assels .
(i)  Tangible Assels 11 6,056.99 6,800.56
(i) Intangible Assets 11 0.94 1.61
6,057.93 6,802.07
()  Non-Gurrent Investment 12 2,265.84 1,968.34
{c) Deffered Tax Assels (nef) 313.32 154.60
(@) Long-term Loans & Advances 13 8.56 5.21
(e)  Other Non-Current Assets 14 8,207.19 8,261.02
' 16,842.84 17,191.24
Current Assets .
{ay Inventories 15 20,735.04 27,789.79
{p)  Trade Receivables 16 1,514.02 2,131.17
(¢) Cash & Bank Balances 17 143.85 375.81
(d)  Short-term Loans & Advances 18 1,079.42 1,685.76
{e) Other Cusrent Assets 19 1,275.71 1,191.91
24,748.04 33,174.44
TOTAL 41,590.88 50,365.68

Summary of Significant accounting Polices 1A
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance sheet
signed in terms of our report of even date

For & on behaif of

DOOGAR & ASSOCIATES Umesh K. Modi Abhishek Modi G.C. Jain
Chartered Accountants {Chairman & President) {Executive Director) (Director)

Firm Regn. No. : 000561N DIN No. 00002757 DIN No. 00002798 DIN Ne. 00002696
Mukesh Goyal Arun Kumar Gupta Shwetambery Khurana
Mg. Partner (Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)

Mambership No. : 081810

Place : New Delhi
Date : 26th May, 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2014

NOTE NO. For the Year For the year
ended 31.03.2014 ended 31.03.2013
{Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)
Revenue From Operations 20 39.163.38 31,498.66
Other Income 21 600.58 784.13
Total Revenue 39,763.96 32,282.79
EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 22 25,934.68 26,867.05
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 23 4,4412.22 7,636.90
Change in inventories of Finished Goods,
Work-in-Progress & Stock-in-Trade 24 7,167.37 (4,423.51)
Manufacturing Expense 25 1,509.78 1,600.89
Employee Benefit Expense 26 1,098.22 1,088.08
Finance Cost 27 3,261.12 3,552.68
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 11 7583.76 718.57
Administration Expenses 28 573.31 668.74
Selling Expense 29 332.63 357.24
Prior Period ltems {inciuding interest on cane
payment Rs. 998.10 lacs) {Previous year Nif) 618.15 1,011.82
Total Expenses TTT45,651.24 ~39,168.76
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and - T
extraordinary items and tax {5,887.28) {6,885.37)
Exceptional ltems 30 - (295.42)
Profit / (Loss)} before extraordinary items and tax {5,887.28) {7,180.78)
Extraordinary ltems - -
Profit before tax (5,887.28) {7.180.78)
Tax expense :
(1) Current tax - 19.88
(2) Deferred tax (158.72) 396.84
(3) Taxes for eattier year
MAT credit written back 19.69 -
Profiti{Loss) for the pericd from continuing operations (5,748.25) (7,557.5Q)
Profiti{l.oss) from discontinuing operations - -
Tax Expense of discontinuing operations - = - -
Profit’{Loss) from discontinuing operaticns after {ax - -
Profitf{Loss} for the Year before minority Interest (5,748.25) (7,597.50)
Minority Interest (167.07) 20.02
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (5,581.18) (7,617.52)
Earning per equity share:(Par value of Rs.10 each}) T —
(1} Basic 31 (11.71) {15.99)
2y Diluted 31 {(11.71) . {15.99)
Signed in terms of our report of even date,
For & on behaif of
DOQGAR & ASSOCIATES Umesh K. Modi Abhishek Modi G.C. Jain
Chartered Accountants (Chairman & President) (Executive Director) {Director)
Firm Regn. No. : 000561N DiN No. 00002757 DIN No. 00002798 DIN No. 00002698
Mukesh Goyal Arun Kumar Gupta Shwetambery Khurana
Mg. Fartner (Chief Financial Officer) {Company Secretary)

Membership No. : 081810

Place : New Dethi
Date ; 28th May, 2014
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014

A) Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit / {Loss) Before Tax as per Profit and Loss Account

Adjustments For :

Interest Expensas

Interast Income

Dividend Income

Debit Balances Written Off

Loss on Saje of Stores & Spares
Leoss on sale of Fixed Assels
Profit on sale of Fixed Asseis
Projects abandonedfwritien off

Provision for Obsolete Store ltems

Wealth tax
Depreciation
Deferred Revenue Expenditure

Unclaimed credit balances written back
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

Adiustments For:
Trade Receivables
Inventories

Trade Payables

Loans & Advances/Other Current Assets

Liabilities & Provisions

Cash generated from Operating Activities

Direct Taxes (Paid)/Refund

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities
B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets
Capital Work in Progress

Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assels

Salef(Purchase) of Investments
Dividend Income
Interest Received

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

C)}  Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings {Net)
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (Net)

Net Interest (Paid)

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net Increase ! (Decrease)in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as on 1st April 2013 (Opening Balance)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as on 31st March 2014 (Closing Balance}

Net Increase as disciosed above

1 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method™
as set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 on Cash Flow Siatements.
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wheraver considered necessary.

=]

Curre| r
(Rs. in Lacs)

(5,8687.28)

3,261.12
(2.64)
{1.20)

0.64
(0.35)

2.28
0.31

753.76

20,13

{51.76)
~{7,204.99)

617.15
7.052.47
14,363.22
§33.92
(3,242.75)
17,418.02
0.43

17,418.59

(11.79)
1.85
(287.50)
1.20
2,64

—_(@sm

110.34
(14,206.88)
(3,261.12)
17 ,356.66)
(231.66)
365.70
134.06
{231.65)

3 Cash and Cash equivaient at the end of the year consist of Cash, Stamps in hand,
Cheques in Hand and Balances with Banks:

Cash & Stamps in Hand
Balances with Banks
TOTAL

Signed in terms of our report of even date.

For & on behalf of

DOOGAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. ; 000561N
Mukesh Gayal

Mg. Partner

Membership No. : 081810
Place : New Delhi

Date ; 28th May, 2014
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Umesh K. Modi
(Chairman & Prosident)
DIN No. 00602757

Abhishek Modi

{Executive Director)
DIN No. 00002798

Arun Kumar Gupta
(Chief Financial Officer)

Pervious Year
(Rs. in Lacs)

(7.180.78)

3,552.68
(303.50)
{1.20)
52.85
0.53
0.37
(4.22)
34.09
0.36
718.57
20.13
(74.09
73,184.21)

(830.58)
(4,429.30)
3,202.04
2,284.01
1,683.31
T1,204.73)
33,60

(1,238.33)

(257.69)
951,63

G.C. Jain
(Director)
DIN Na. 00002686

Shwetambery Khurana
(Company Secretary)
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SBEC Sugar Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Note:

Note:

1. BASIS AND PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consclidated financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries "SBEC Bioenergy Limited.”, Modi Casings and
Packaging Private Lid. (formaly known as Modi Gourmet Limited) & “SBEG Stockholding & investments Limited” used in the
censolidation are drawn for a peried of Twelve months ended on 31st March, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as “the subsidiary
companies’).

The accompanying financial statements of the company are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in India (Indian GAAP).The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Accounting
Standards notified under the Gompanies (Accounting Standards} Rules, 2006, (as amended and which continue {0 be applicable
in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms of General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013 of the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs} and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1958. The financial statemenis have been
prepared on an accrual basis and under 1he historical cost convention on going concern basis.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year.

Events occurring after the Baiance Sheet date are considered upte the date of adoption of accounts, wherever
maierial.

1A SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1A. (i} Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reparting period. Although these estimates are based
upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. Difference
hetween the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized.

1A. {Ii) Principles of Conseclidation

(a) The financial statements of the holding company and subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by
adding together the book value of like items of assets, liabifities, income and expenses after fully eliminating intra-group batances,
inira-group transactions and the unrealized profits.

The financial statements of the holding company and the subsidiary companies have been consolidated using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and cther events in similar circumstances except where otherwise stated.

{b) The Subsidiary Companies considered in the consolidated financial statement:

Name of the Company Country of Incorpeoration % of Voting Power as on 31.03.2014
SBEC Bioenergy Limited India 55

SBEC Stockholding & investment Limiied India 100

Modi Casings and Packaging Private Ltd. (formerly known as

Modi Gourmet Limited) India 100

1A.

46

(¢) Minority interest's share of net profit of subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income of the group in order
to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the company.

{d) Minority Interest's share of net assets of subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheet separate from
liabilities and the equity of the company’s shareholders.

{iil} Recognltion of Revenues & Expenses
In the case of the Holding Company:

(a) Incomes, Export Incentives/benefits and all Expenditures are accounted for on accrual basis except for interest on account of
delayed paymentsioverdue outstanding to various parfies and insurance claims, where there is no reasonabie certainty regarding
the amount andior its  collectability. Interest income is stated in full with tax thereon being accounted under advance {ax.

(b) Domestic Sales are recognized on dispatch of goods by the Cornpany to its customers whereas the company recognizes export
sales on fransfer of risk and rewards of goods to its customers.

{c) Dividends income Is recognized when the shareholders right to recelve payment was established by the batance sheet date.
in the case of SBEC Bioenergy Limited:

{a) Revenue from sale/conversion charges is reccgnized on transfer to custorners,

(b) Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis taking in to account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

(¢} Dividends income is recognized when the Shareholders right to receive payrment was established.
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1A. {iv) Inventory Valuation

{a)
W
(ity
)
(c)
(d)
(e}
]
1A, W)
(@)

(b}
(c)
(d
(e}

1A, {vi)

Finished Goods:

Free Sugar - at lower of cost or net realizable value.

Levy Sugar - at lower of cost or levy price.

Goods in Process - at cost .

Raw matetial - ai cost .

Stores and spares - at cost {computed on FIFO basis}

Molasses (By-product) is valued at net realizable value.

Provision for obsolescence and other anticipated losses are made on the stocks, whenever identified / considered naecessary.
Fixed & Intangible Assets

Fixed Assels are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation..Histoﬂcal cost comprises all costs relating to acquisition
and installation of fixed assets.

Government grants relating to specific fixed assets are deducled from the gross value of the assets concerned in arriving at their
book value.

Intangibie asseis are recoghized on the basis of recognition criteria as set out in Accounting Standard (AS) - 26 “Intangible
Assets”.

Factory Approach Road represents expenditure incurred & capitalizad by the company on roads outside factory premises & are
written off over a period of Five years.

Cost and accumulated depreciation pertaining to fixed assets disposed off is removed from the accounts at the time of disposal.
Any resultant gain or loss is included in the Profit and Loss Account.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or proguction of an asset that necessariiy takes a substantial
period of time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respeclive asset. Al other borrowing

cosls are expensed in the pericd they oceur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connectian
with the borrowing of funds.

1A, {vil) Depreciafion
Depreciation has heen charged on the following basis:

()
(&)
()
()

te)
®

)]

Leasehold Land Is being amortized over the period of the Lease.

Assets leased out are written off over the pericd of lease at cost less terminal transfer price.

Assets below Rs. 5000/- are being depreciated at the rate of 100 % in the year of addition.

Other assets are being depreciated on the straight-line methed at the rates and in the manner specified in Schedule XIV to the
Companies Act, 1956,

Software's of the nature of Intangible Assets are amortized over & period of 5 years.

In the case of assels where an impaisment loss is recognized, the revised carrying amount is depreciated over the remaining
estimated useful life.

In the case of SBEC Bicenergy Limiled, Exira shift depreciation is charged in respect of plant & machinery, excluding items on
which no extra shift depreciation is applicable as per Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, at the rate of 5,69% on actual
number of days worked in triple shift in preportion to the normal working days, which are 138 for the Company.

1A. {viii) Investments

1A (ix)

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All
other investments are classiiied as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lowar of cost and fair value. L.ong-
term invesiments are carried at cost individually. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other
than temporary in the value of the investments in case of Jong term investments.

Foreigan Currency Transactions
Initial Recognition

Forsign currency transactions are recerded in the reporting currency, by applying 1o the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Canversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reparied using the closing rate. Nan-monetary items which are carried in lerms of historical
cost denominated in a foreign currency are Teported using the exchange rate al the date of the transaction; and non-monetary
items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange
rates that existed when the values were determined. Investments in foreign companies are considered at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of their acquisition.
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SBEC Sugar Limited

x

(a)

{b)

(c}

{xi)

(i}

Exchange Differences

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on setflement or on transation is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

Employee Benefits

Expenses and liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordarice with Accounting Standard 15 — Employee
Benefits.

Provident Fund

The Company makes contribution to provident fund in accordance with Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952 which is a defined contribution plan and contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the pettod in which
services are rendered by the employee.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a post employment benefit and is In the nature of & defined benefit pian. The liability recognized in the balance sheet
in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefitfobligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan
assets, together with adjustment for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation
is calculated at or near the balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains
and losses ansing form past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the year to which such gains or losses relate.

Compensated Absernce

Liability in respect of compensated absence becoming due or expected afier the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of
an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Pre-operative Expenses and Miscellaneous Expenditure
In the case of the Holding Company:

Expenses incurred during the pre-operalive period are allocated to the respective fixed assets on commencement of commercial
operations.

In case of SBEC Bioenergy Limited:

Preliminary expenses and Deferred revenue expenses are being amortized over a pericd of ten years from the date of
commencement of commercial operations.

Impairment of Assets

Assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows {L.e. cash generating units). For the
purpose of assessing impairment at each Balance Sheet date, Assets within a Cash Generating Unit are reviewed for impairment
wherever evenis or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized for the amount at which the assets under individual Cash Generating Unit are carrled in the books exceeds Its
recoverable amount being the higher of the assets net sefling price and its value in use. Value in use is based on the present value
of the estimated future cash flows refating to the assets.

Previously recognized impairment losses, refating 1o assets other than goodwill, are reversed where the recoverable amount
increases because of faveurable changes in the estimates used lo defermine the recoverable amount since the tast impairment
was recognized. A reversal of an asset impairmant foss is fimited to jts carrying amount thal would have been determined (net of
deprecialion or amartization) had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.

(xili) Tax on Income

(a)

(b)

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Provision for Current Tax Is made in accardance with the provisions of Income
Tax Act, 1961.

In accordance wiith Accounting Standard AS-22 ‘Accounting for Taxes on Income’ as notified by Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 Deferred Tax Liability/ Asset arising from timing differences between book and income tax profits is
accounted for at the current rate of tax to the extent these differences are expected {0 crystallize in later years. However, deferred
tax assels are recognized only if there is a reasonable/ virtual certainty of realization thereof. Deferred tax is measured based on
the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each balance sheet date to reassess realization.
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1A, {®)
@
B)
{c)
1A, (xi)
1A, (xii)

Exchange Differences

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settiement or on translation is recognized in the Stalement
of Profit and Loss in the year # which they arise.

Employee Benefits

Expenses and liabilities In respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with Accounting Standard 15 — Employee
Benefits.

Provident Fund

The Gompany makes contribution to provident fund in accordance with Employees Provident Fund and Miscellanaous Provisions
Act, 1052 which is a defined contribution plan and contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period in which
services are rendered by the employee.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a post empioyment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognized in the balance sheel
in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefitfobligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan
assets, together with adjustment for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation
is calculated at or near the balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method, Actuarial gains
and losses arising form past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the year to which such gains or losses refate.

Compensated Absence

Liability in respect of compensated absence becoming due or expected after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of
an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Pre-operative Expenses and Miscelianeous Expenditure
in the case of the Holding Company:

Expenses incurred during the pre-operative period are allocated to the respective fixed assets on commencement of commerciak
operations.

in case of SBEC Bioenergy Limited:

Preliminary expenses and Deferred revenue expenses are baing amorlized over a period of ten years from the date of
commencement of commercial operations.

Impairment of Assets

Assets are grouped at the lowest fevels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (i.e. cash generating units). For the
purpose of assessing Impairment at each Balance Sheet date, Assets within a Cash Generating Unit are reviewed for impairment
wherever events o changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized for the amount at which the assets under individual Cash Generating Unit are carried in the books exceeds its
recoverable amount being the higher of the assets net selling price and its value in use. Valute in use is based on the present value
of the estimated future cash flows relating to the assets,

Previously recognized impairment losses, relaling 1o assets other than goodwill, are reversed where the recoverable amount
increases because of favourable changes In the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment
was recagnized. A reversal of an asset impairment loss is limited to its carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
depreciation or amortization} had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.

1A. {xiii) Tax on Income

(a)

(b)

48

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Provision for Gurrent Tax is made in accordance with the provisiens of Incorme
Tax Act, 1961.

In accordance wilh Accounting Standard AS-22 ‘Accounting for Taxes on Incormne’ as notified by Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 Deferred Tax Liability/ Asset arising from timing differences between book and income tax profits is
accounted for at the current rate of tax to the extent these differences are expected to crystaliize in later years. However, deferred
tax assets are recognized only if there is a reasonable/ virtual certainty of realization thereof. Deferred tax is measured based on
the tax rales and the tax laws enacled or substantively enacled at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheel date to reassess realization.
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1A.

1A,

1A.

1A.

1A

(€

In MAT credit is recognized as an asset only when and 1o the extent there ts convincing evidence that the company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period. [n the year in which the Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) ¢redit becomes eligible to be
recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the-said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit
Entifflement, The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carnying amount of MAT Credit
Entitlement o the axtent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax dusing the
specified pericd.

(xiv) Leases

(@)

(1)

{xv)

Finance Lease

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefils incidental to ownership of the
leased ilem, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the
loase term and disclosed as leased assels. Lease payments are apporiioned between the finance charges and reduction of the
lease liability based on the implicit rate of retum. Finance charges are charged direclly against income. Lease management fees,
legal charges ands ofher inifiat direct cosls are capitalized.

If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the fease term.

Operating Lease

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ewnership of the leased term are classified as
oparating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or toss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deduciing preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighled average number of aquity shares outstanding during the
period.

Partly paid equily shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entifled to pariicipate in dividends
related to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding
during the pericd are adjusted for events of banus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and
reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or foss for the periad attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the perlod are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equily shares.

(xvi} Interim Financial Reporting

Quarterly financial results are published in accordance with the requirement of listing agreement with Stock Exchange. The
recagnition and measurement principal as laid down in the Accounting Standard (AS) - 25 “Interim Financial Reporting” have been
followed in the preparation of these results.

{(xvil) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

@

(k)

A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a resull of a past event and # is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setfle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation. A contingent liability is recognized for:

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized as a provision because either the possibility that an outflow
of resources embodying econamic benefits will be required to setile the obligation is remote or a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation cannot be made; and

a possible obligation that arlses from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occuirrence or non-
occurrence of one or more unceriain future events not wholly within the control of the company.

Contingent assets are neither accounted for nor disclosed in the financial statements.

(xviil)Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise cash and cash deposit with banks and corporations. The comparny considers all highly liquid
investments with the remaining maturity at the date of purchase of 3 months or less. And that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash to be cash equivalenis..
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NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET

As at As at
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
{Rs. in Lacs) {Rs.in Lacs)
NOTE 2 : SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED CAPITAL
100,000,000 {Previous Year 10,000,000} Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,000.00 10,000.00
ISSUED & SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL :
47,814,430 (Previous Year 47,814,430) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,781.44 4,781.44
PAID UP :
47,653,880 (Previous Year 47,653,880) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,765.39 4,765.39
Share Forfeiture Account 4.1 4.01
TOTAL T4,769.40 " 4,769.40
a) Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares

Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in indian rupees. The dividend, if any,proposed by the Board
of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders, in the ensuing Annual General Mesting.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

b} Detail of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the company
As at As at
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Name of Shareholder No. of shares Held %age of Holding No. of shares Held %age of Holding
Equity Shares
1 M/s SBEC Systems (India} Ltd. 1,42,30,884 29.86% 14,230,884 29.86%
2  Mfs Moderate Leasing & Capital Services Ltd 42,15,289 8.85% 4,215,289 8.85%
3  Mfs Ato Z Holding Pvt. Ltd. 31,28,400 6.56% 31,28,400 6.56%
4 M/s Longwell Investments Pvt. Ltd. 27,21,500 5.71% 27,21,500 571%
5  M/s Kurnabhi Investments Pvt. Lid. 23,87,050 5.01% 23,87,080 5.01%
¢) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
2013-14 201213
Equity Shares No. of shares (Rs.in lacs) No. of shares {Rs.in lacs}
At the beginning of the year 4,76,53,880 4,765.39 4,76,53,880 4,765.39
Add: Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Less: Bought back during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,76,53,880 4,765.39 4,76,53,880 4,765.3¢
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As at As at
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
{Rs. in Lacs) (Rs.in Lacs)
NOTE 3 : RESFRVES & SURPLUS
Surplus / (Deficit)
Balance as per last financlal statement {10,082.35) (2.487.66)
Balance in statement of Profit & Loss {(5,581.18) (7,617.52)
Add: Transfer from Reserves - 30.65
Less: Transfer to Reserves 8.44 7.20
Closing Balacne (15,671) {10,081.73)
Capital Reserve
Balance as per last financial statement 49.17 4917
Add: Additions during the year - -
Less : Deductions during the year - -
Closing Balance 49.17 49.47
Other Reserve-Molasses Storage Fund
Balance as per last financial statement 10.48 33.93
Add: Additions during the year 8.44 7.20
Less : Deductions during the year - 30.65
Closing Balance 18.93 10.48
Total (16,603.88) {10,022.08)
NOTE 4 : LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
A. Secured Borrowings
a) Vehicle Loans 19.50 32.29
b)  Hire Purchase - First Leasing Co. of India Ltd. 103.24 267.46
g}  Term Loan from SRE| Infrastructure Finance Ltd. 1,700.00 1,166.67
SUB-TOTAL (A) 1,822.74 1,466.42
B. Unsecured Loans
a) Fixed Deposils from Public - 134.25
b)  Deposits from Selling agents 282.57 394.30
- SUB-TOTAL (B} 282.57 528.55
TOTAL (A+B) 2,105.31 1,894.97
Mote : Terms of repayment / details of security are as follows : (Rs. In lacs)
Lending Institution Quitstanding 201314 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
As at 31.03.2013
SREI Infrastructure Finance Lid. 2000 300 600 600 500 —
HDFC Bank Ltd. 22.46 7.29 7.18 7.99 — —
Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. 5.71 3.53 1.60 .58 — —
ICIC! Bank Ltd. 412 1.97 2.14 — — —_
First Leasing Company of India Ltd. 466.47 363.23 98.24 5 — —

Term Joan from SREE Infrastructure Finance Ltd. (Secured by first Pari-passu charge and / or mertgage account for realisation of payment of sale of electricity
o UPPCL and all present and future fixed Asstes of the Company. Loan from SRELis Repaybie in 24 equal installment{Monthly from December to may every
year, beginning from December 2011). Interest is charged at SREI banchmark rate subjgct to & minimum interest rate of 16% Principal & interest amounting
to Rs. Lac(Previcus year Rs, 603.63 Lac) due but not paid.

Amounts payable against vehicle loans are secured against the hypothecation of specific assets acquired.

vehicle loan from HDFC Bank Ltd,, Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid., and iCIC1 Bank Ltd, carry interest @ 10.00-12.00% and Hire Purchase of Plant & Machinery
from First Leasing company of India Ltd carry interest @ 17.92%

Fixed Deposits carry interest @10.50-11.00% and tpayable within one to three years form the date of depasit.

Outstanding amount and schedule of payment of First Leasing Company of india Ltd. {Shown under note No. 9-Guttent maturity of leng term loan) remined
unreconciled/unconfirmed., -
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As at As at
31.03,2014 31.03.2013
{Rs. in Lacs) (Rs.in Lacs)}
NOTE 5 : OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Security Deposit Received 13.56 13.71
Retention Money - 24.49
Total T 13.56 — 3820
NOTE 6 : LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Benefits
For Leave Encashment 15.65 34.11
For Gratuity 131.98 94.14
Total 147,64 T128.24
NOTE 7 : SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
A Secured Borrowings
b}  Pledge Account with The U.P. Co-operative Bank ltd. 4,907.36 16,514.11
¢) Pledge Account with The Shamrao Vithal Co-Cperative Bank Ltd - 2,625.17
c)  OD Account with The Shamrao Vithal Co-Operative Bank Lid. 9.90 -
SUB-TOTAL (A) ~4,917.26 “5,089.27
B Unsecured Loans '
a) Inter Corporate Deposits 6,180.18 6,354.36
b)  From M. Abhishek Modi, Executive Director - 74.70
b)  Fixed deposits* 165.00 -
SUB-TOTAL (B) 76,34518 ~6,429.06
Grand Total (A+B) 11,262.44 ‘ 25,468.34

1 Pledge Accounts with The U.P. Co-operative Bank Ltd. and The Shamrao Vithal Bank, are secured by the pledge of stocks
of sugar and are further secured by personal guarantee of two directors of the company.

2 0D Account with The Shamrac Vithal Bank, |s secured by the pledge of FDR of Rs. 11 ,00,000/-

NOTE 8 : TRADE PAYABLES
Sundry Creditors

- For Sugarcane {including expenses related to Cane} 28,900.82 15,201.04
Others 4,492,07 3,828.64
TOTAL 33,392.89 19,020.67

1 Foliowings are the relevant disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006: .

a)  Sundry creditors Include a sum aggregating Rs.1 .12 Lacs {Previous Year Rs. 1.46), due to Micro and Small Enterprises.

b) The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16, along with the amotint of payments made to the
Micro and Smali Enterprise beyond the appointed date during the year - Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

¢) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid Rs.0.10 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 0.04 Lac)
The above mentioned outstanding are in normal course of business and the information regarding Micro and Small
Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available
with the Company.
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NOTE 9: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at As at
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
(Rs. in Lacs) {Rs.in Lacs)
Current maturity of long term loans
Fixed Deposits from Public 134.25 522.00
Unclaimed Fixed Deposit from public 549.00 417.00
Hire Purchase - First Leasing Co. of India Ltd. 363.23 240.31
Vehicle Loans 12,79 15.89
Statutory Dues 891.40 1,670.33
interst accrued but not due on borrowings 3.70 21.24
interst accrued and due on borrowings 283.51 67943
Bills Payable Acceptance 53.78 961.04
Advance Against Sales 620.24 764.87
Security Deposit Received 0.45 045
Employees Related dues 165.73 153.15
Retention Money 27.17 6.92
Other Liabilities 37.40 15.28
SRE] Infrastructure Finance Ltd. 300.00 1,378.32
TOTAL 3,442.65 6,746.25
NOTE 10 : SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Benefits
For Leave Encashment 18.83 359
For Gratuity 12.87 13.40
Provision for Employee Benefits
For Leave Encashment 0.31 0.36
TOTAL 32.01 17.36
NOTE 11 : FIXED ASSETS
(Rs. in lacs)
DESCRIPTION GROSS BLOCK, DEPRECIATION { AMOR TIZATION NET BLOCK
As at Addition  Adjusiments Asat Uple Provided Adjus- Upte Agat As at
01.04.2013  During the 31032014 | 31.08.2013 During the tmenis 31.03.2014 3.03.2014  31.03.2013
A. TANGIBLE ASSETS Year Year
{AND - FREEHOLD 4615 - 46.15 . - - - 46,15 4615
LAND - LEASE HOLD 56.43 - - 5643 9.00 0.64 . 953 46.79 4743
LEASE HOLD IMPROVEMENT 0.85 - - 085 0.85 - - 0.85 - -
FACTORY BUILDING &
TRANSIT HOUSE 1434.74 - - 1,434,74 434.91 36.82 - 471.73 963.01 999.83
PLANT & MACHINERY 15,238,365 0.95 - 15,239.32 5,838.11 549,55 - 10.487.66 4,751,66 540026
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 34.90 153 3643 16.27 1.51 . 17.78 18.66 1863
COMPUTER EQUIPMENT B0.38 B.88 - 88.26 61.61 5.54 - 67.15 2,10 18.77
FURNITURE & FIXTURES 70.09 0.41 - 7049 44.50 343 - 48.33 2216 2519
MOTOR VEHICLES 184,52 - 9.08 175.45 55.95 17.10 6.93 G611 109.34 128.57
FAGTORY APPROACH ROAD 244.32 - - 244,32 128.60 38,61 - 167.2¢ FEAl 1572
TOTAL {A) 17,390.74 11.77 9.08 17,393.43 10,500.18 753.20 6.03 11,336.45 5,056.89 5,800.56
Previous Year 17,314.42 257.27 180.48 17,391.4 10,015.62 77T 143.22 10,590.18 £,801.02 7,208.80
B.INTANGIBLE ASSETS
COMPUTER SOFTWARE 18,23 . - 18.23 16.72 057 . 17.28 0.94 151
TOTAL (B) 18.23 - - 18,23 16.72 0.57 - 17.29 0.94 1.51
Pravious Year 17.81 042 - 18.23 15.93 078 - 16.72 1.51 188
TOTAL {A+B) 17,408.97 14,77 9.08 17.411.67 10,606.90 753,76 6,93 11,353.73 6,057.93 6,802.07
Pravious Year 17,332.24 257,69 180.48 17.409.44 10,031.55 71857 143,22 10,606.90 9,802.54 7.300.68
Note: 1. Freshold Land includes land aggregaling Rs. 1,58,059 /- facs in the name of SBEC System Hindia) Limited as nomines,
2. Faclory Approach Road, represents expenditure incurred by the company on reads oulside factery premises and are wrillen off over a pariod of five years.
Twenteenth Annual Report 53




As at
31.03.2014
(Rs. in Lacs)
NOTE 12 : NON-CURRENT INVESTMENT
Trade Investment
(Unquoted, Valued at Cost)
Investment in Subsidiary Companies
40,000 Equity Shares of Rs.25/- each in The Shamrao Vithal Co-Operative Bank Ltd.
{Previous year - 40,000 Equity shares of Rs.25/- each) 10.00
Share Transfer Stamp Fee 0.83
SUB TOTAL (a) 10,83
Other Investments:
450,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 110/~ each of Modi liiva India Pvt. Ltd.
{Previous Year - 20,000 Equity shares of Rs. 25/- each} 45.00
100 Eq.Shares of Rs.10/- each of Chandil Power Ltd..
{Previous Year - 100 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each) 0.01
22,00,000 Non Transferable compulsary Convertible Unsecured zero %
Debenture of Modi lliva India Pvt. Ltd. Rs. 100/-each
{Previous Year - 19,12,500/- Equity shares of Rs, 100/- each) 2,200.00
SUB TOTAL (b) 2,245.01
TOTAL (a+b} - 2,2565.84

Aggregate amount of quoted investments ) -
Market value of quoted investments -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 2,255.84
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments -

NOTE 13 : LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured, Considered good

Security Deposits §.56
TOTAL 8.56
NOTE 14 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Debt Assignment Recoverable-PNB - Refer Note No. 33 §,917.31
Debt Assignment Recoverable(IFCI and IDBI) 2,185,898
MAT Credit Entitlement -
Margin money with others 35.00
SREl infrastructure Finance Lid. 26.29
Deferred Revenue Expenditure 13.09

Other Bank Balances
Balance with Scheduied Banks in -

-~ Fixed Deposits Pledged with Banks 18.52
—  Magrin Money with Banks 11.00
TOTAL 8,207.19
NOTE 15 : INVENTORIES .

Goods in progress 467.08
Finished goods 18,691.45
Stock-in-trade (in respect of goods acquired for trading) 352.99
Finished Goods at SBEC Godown, Modinagar 309.85
Stores and spares” 906.25
Other stocks 7.42
Total 20,735.04

*Net of Provision for Obsolescence Rs. 4.58- lacs (Previous Year Rs. 2.31 /- lacs )
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As at

31.03.2013
{Rs.in Lacs)

10.00
___os
10.83

45.00

0.01

1,912.50
1,957.51
1,968.34

1,968.34

__ s
5.21

5917.31
2,185.98
10.69
35.00
26.29
53.94

17.81
___500
8,261.02

317.64
23,655.95
3,005.15

798.26
12.80
27,789.79
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As at As at
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs.in Lacs
NOTE 16 : TRADE RECEIVABLES
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they are due for payment
- Secured - -
- Unsecured 0.20 121.03
- Doubtful 114 1.33 6.34 127.37
COther Debts
- Secured - 2,010.14
- Unsecured 1,613.82 -
- Doubtful - 1,613.82 - 2,010.14
Less: Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 1.14 6.34
TOTAL 1,614.02 2,131.17
NOTE 17 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand Cheques/Drafts in hand 3.95 6.19
Balance with Banks in -
— |n Current Accounts 130,10 359.51
Other Bank Balances
Balance with Banks in -
—  Fixed Deposits 9.81 10.10
TOTAL T 143.85 —375.81
NOTE 18 : SHORT TERM LOAN & ADVANCES
unsecured
LOAN & ADVANCES TO RELATED PARTIES
Moderate Leasing & Capital Services Ltd. - 448.50
Promoter Company - SBEC Systems (India) Limited 127.96 127.96
Advance Recoverable In Cash or in Kind or for Vaiue to be received
Unsecured 196.37 - 145.98 -
Doubtful - - -
Less : Provision for doubtiul advances - 196.37 - 145,98
Amount deposited under protest* 64.69 43.64
Taxes recoverable 3599 A7.78
Balance with ExciselTrade Tax Autharities 206.34 198.17
Share Apptication Money- Chandil Power Ltd (Also refer Note No. 45} 3.00 11.00
Prepaid Expenses 2710 25.99
REC Recoverable 390.83 611.34
Security Deposits - 8.77
Staff Balances 7.47 0.43
Advance fo suppliers 19.64 17.05
Other 0.04 1.14
TOTAL 1,079.42 1,685.76
«Amount deposited under protest Detall
U.P. VAT Act 38.21 38.21
Central Excise Act 5.43 5.43
43.64 43.64
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NOTE 19 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS As at As at
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs.in Lacs)
Assets held for Disposal {Also refer Note No. - 45} 1,206.52 1,143.88
Tax Deducted At Source 2.58 2.18
income Tax Receivable 45.89 45,89
Deffered Revenue Expenditure 20.72 -
TOTAL ' 1,275.71 1,191.92
For the Year For the Year
ended 31.03.2014 ended 31.03.2013
(Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)
NOTE 20 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
a) Sate of product
Sugar 35,768.93 28,685.24
" Power §98.33 938.76
b}  Other operating revenue
Molassses 2,641.42 1,037.23
Bagasse 1,209.67 909.86
Scrap Sale 50.20 54.34
Less : Excise Duty 1,405.16 1,026.78
TOTAL 39,163.38 31,408.66
NOTE 21 : OTHER INCOME
interest Received 2.64 303.50
Profit on sale of Investment - (in subsidiary company} 0.35 422
Dividend received from coperative Society 1.20 1.20
REC Income 390,83 346.16
Miscellaneous income 44.62 54.96
Purchase Tax Waiver Account 109.17 -
Excess Provision { Sundry balances written back 51.76 74.09
TOTAL 600.58 784.13
NOTE 22 : COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Raw Matetiat Consumed 25,934.68 26,867.05
TOTAL _ 25,934.68 26,867.06
NOTE 23 : PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE
Sugar Purchased For Trading 4,412.22 7,636.90
TOTAL 4,412.22 - 7,636.80
NOTE 24 : CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF STOCKS
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 23,6556.95 19,326.60
Goods in Process 317.64 9.08
Stock in Trade 3,005.15 26,978.73 3,2919.52 22,555.22
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 19,001.30 23,655.95
Goods In Process 467.08 317.64
Stock in Trade 352.99 19,821.36 3,005.15 26,978.73
Increase/{Decrease} In Stocks (7,157.37) 4,423.51

56 Twenteenth Annual Repont




SBEC Sugar Limited

NOTE 25 : MANUFACTURING EXPENSE For the Year For the Year
ended 31.03.2014 ended 31.03.2013
{Rs. In Lacs) {Rs. In Lacs)
Stores & Spares Consumed (Including Packing Exp.} 861.16 985.70
Power & Fuel 24,85 19.98
Repair & Maintenance
- Plant & Machinery 615.33 452.27
- Building 50.62 42.31
- Others 35.95 701.90 13.90 508.48
Freight & Cartage 10.10 10.90
Material Handling Expenses 90.48 15.38
variation in Excise duty on opening and cleosing stock - -
Finished Goods (213.40) 111.87
Bagasse and Ash Handling Charges 34.69 28.57
TOTAL ~1,509.78 ~1,600.89
VALUE OF IMPORTED/INDIGENOUS RAW MATERIALS, STORES AND SPARES CONSUMED
{Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Indigenous %age imported % age
Value Value
Raw Materials (593.20) 100% - Nil
Previous Year 25,340.84 100% - Nil
Stores & Spares* 30.35 97.88% 1987 2.12%
Previous Year 1,062.17 98.74% 13.44 1.26%
*Excluding spares used for capitalization.
For the Year For the Year
ended 31.03.2014 ended 31.03.2013
~ {Rs. In Lacs) ~Rs.Tn Lacs}
NOTE 26 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salary, Wages & Bonus 946.46 957.16
Company's Contribution To Provident & Other Funds 67.36 7304
Staff Welfare Expenses 33.63 3277
Grafuity 50.77 25.11
TOTAL 1,098.22 1,088.08
NOTE 27 : FINANCE COST
Interest expenses 347710 3,265.49
Finance Charges 66.99 234.82
Financial Brokerage 17.02 52.36
TOTAL 3,261.12 3,562.68
NOTE 28 : ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Telephone, Postage & Telegram 12.30 15.62
Legal & Professional Charges 118.52 117.47
Director’s Siting Fee 0.4% 0.52
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.64 0.37
Loss on Sale of Stores & Spares - 0.53
Travelling & Conveyance 73.14 86.03
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NOTE 28 : ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES {Cont....)

Rent Including Lease Charges
Rates & Taxes
Vehicle Expenses
Insurance
insurance Expenses
Insurance Relealised on Sugar
Security Guard Expenses
Payment to Auditors *
Projects abandoned jwritten off
Debit Balances Written Off
Provision for obsolete store items
Supciption Fee
Foreign exchange fluctuation
Bank Charges
Wealth Tax
Misc. Expenses
Misc. Expenditure Written off
TOTAL
*Details of Payment to Auditors
a) Statutory Audit Fee
by  Tax Audit fee
by  Certification & Reimbursement

c)  Out of pocket expenses

NOTE 29 : SELLING EXPENSES

Commission

Rent (Godown)

Freight, Clearing & Forwarding
Rebate & Discount

TOTAL

NOTE 30 : EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Provision for interest on Custom Duty
TOTAL
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For the Year
ended 31.03.2014

(Rs. In Lacs)
17.41
31.09
30,98

§2.21

(36.72) 15.49

102.40
4.43

2.28
1.69
88.78
18.28
0.31
34.96
2013
573.31

SBEC Sugar Limited

For the Year
ended 31.03.2013
{Rs. In Lacs)

35.46
49.94
29.24

47.71

(26.53) 21.18

116.10
579
34,09
52.85

8.24
30.44

0.36

44.35
20.13

— 668.74

3.86
0.42
1.38
0.13
579

147.37
51.98
157.44
0.45
357.24

(295.42)
(295.42)
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NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

31. Earning per Share {AS-20}
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Net Profit/(Loss) after tax (Rs. in lacs}) (5581.19) (7617.52)
Weighted Average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 4,76,53,880 4,76,63,880
Basic Earning per Share (Rs.) (11.71} (15.99)
Diluted Earning per Share (Rs.) {(11.71) {15.99)
32. Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of: (Rs. in lacs)
Particuiars As at 31.03.2014 As at 31.03.2013
i) Carparate Guarantee given to Government of Jharkhand against Soft loan
{incl. interest) given to Bihar Sponge Iron Ltd. 6301.45 5,834.67
ity Outstanding against Guarantee given on behalf of SBEC Big-energy Ltd. 2000.00 2,660.95
iily  Duties and Tax liabilities disputed by the Company 1679.00 361.11
i) Interestand R C Charges on cane arrear payment as recovered by DCO,
Baghpat, case is pending with Allahabad High Court. 35.99 36.99
v) interest and RG Charges on Cane Arrears from the season 2012-13 3193.92 Nil
In the case of SBEC Bioenergy Limited:
v} Claims against the company not acknowledged as debis:-
Income tax matters 39.76 117.43

b)
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33. a} In the cage of the Holding Company:

During the year 2008-2007, 2 One Time Settiement (OTS) dated 22nd January, 2007 has been signed between the Company, Punjab
National Bank (PNB), Mr. Umesh K. Modi {as Guarantor of MIL) and Mok Industries Limited {MIL) on the lerms as conlained in the PNB
letter dated 28th September, 2006. In terms of this setilement, the Company has agreed to make payment of Rs. 2,810.60 lacs together
with interest o PNB. in consideration of the same, PNB has agreed to assign all its ciaims, interest and charges against the Steel Section
of MIL in favour of the Company. The Company has made full payment of the setllement amount together with interest aggregating Rs.
3,351.21 lacs to PNB. As per expert legal opinion, during the year interest amounting to Rs. 417.63lavs (previous year Rs. 370.64 facs

and Rs. 2,148.47 lacs for the period from 22nd January, 2007 to 31st Marc

h, 2012) has been allocated to the cost of “Debt Assignment”

acquired by the company from PNB, since in the opinion of the management the borrowing of tha company were raised to pay for Debt

Assignment.

PNB thereafler executed a “Deed of Assignment” on 16th May, 2012(an event occurring after the date of the Balance Sheet) in favour of
the company by which PNB assigned all its claim together with all securities and charges created by MiL. In its favour to the company.

The campany thereafter executed a “Deed of Assignment” on 31si December, 2042 in favour of its subsidiary Mfs SBEC Bioenergy Limited

by which the company assigned all its claim together with: alf securilies and charges created by MIL in its favour for a consideration of Rs.
12,500 lacs. A sum of Rs. 4,200 lacs has been paid simultaneously with the exscution of this deed and the remaining sum of Rs. 8,300

lacs shall be payable as per the mutually agreed instaliments within a perio

In the case of SBEC Bioenergy Limited:

d of five years from the date of execution of this deed.

(i The Company had negotiated and finalized with the IDBI Ltd., the terms for taking aver the debt of IDBI in Modi Industries Limited
{MIL) under OTS on assignment basis to the Company. In terms of IDBI's letters No. IDEIL.HO.RD.MIL/2221 dated 27th January,
2007 and 9th February, 2007, on payment of setflement amount, 1DBI will execute ‘Deed of Assignment’ in favour of the Company,
by which all claims of DB (lowards principat and interest) right against MiL and also the charges and securities created by MiL, will
stand assigned in favour of the Company. The said "Dead of Assignment’ is yet to be executed.

The Gompany had paid total dues of IDBl i.e. a sum of Rs. 1410.98 lacs (previous year Rs. 1410.98 lacs} under this scheme.

(i) The Company has negotiated and finalized with the [FCI Limited, ihe term for taking over the debt of IFCL in Mol industries Ltd.
{MIL). In terms of IFCI Letter No. IFCIUNRG/ 200-13404 Dated 30th December, 2008 on payment of setflement amount, Rs. 775

jacs.

The company made a payment of Rs. 775 lacs to IFCl on 30th December 2009 and in consideration thereof IFCI Limited execuled

a Deed of Assignment dated 19th April 2012 and assigned its ail claims against
arxl charges in favour of the campany. The registrar of companies has registe

company. The sald secured debts is payable by Modi Industries Limited to the Gompany.

(iiy The company has taken the debt of SBEC Sugar Ltd. in Modi Industr
executed on 31si Decermber, 2012 by its holding company M/s SBEC Su
created by MIL in favour of SBEC Sugar Ltd. have been assigned to the company for a considerati

Modi Industries Limited together with the securities
red the modification to the chasges in favour of the

iss Lid. (MIL) through a “Deed of Assignment” in Its favour
gar Litd. All the claims logether with all securities and charges
on of Rs. 12,500 lacs. A sum

of Rs.4,200 lacs have been paid on the date of execution of the said deed and the balance Rs. 8,300 lacs shail be payable as per
mudually agreed instaliments within a pericd of five years from the date of execution of this deed.
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34, Inthe case of SBEC Bioenergy Limited:

a) The 132 KV Line was laid by Uttar Pradesh Power Corporation Limited (UPPCL) and commissioned on 1st December, 2005. The
Company's confribution in respect of the line amounted to Rs.195.45 lacs as demanded by UPPCL. tilt end of March, 2013, The total
expenditure in laying the line is pending finalization by UPPCL. The ownership of the line however, vests with UPPCL. The amount spent
by the Company has been accounted for as Deferred Revenue Expendilure and the same is being amortized over a period of 10 years
from the date of commencement of commercial operation.

h) UPPCL has charged Rs. 5.72 lacs for the year 2013-14 (Previous Year Rs. 5.45 lacs) as Annual Maintenance Charges. As per the Power
Purchase Agreement daled 8th November, 2006, the charge is @ 1.50% on the cost of 132 KV Line In the first year and with an increase
(maximumy of 5% in each subsequent year, Since, the fotal expenditure on the 132 KV Line is pending finalization by UPPCL, this charge
again, is on provisional basis.

c} The company has taken the debt of 1DBI, IFCI & SBEC Sugar Limited in Modi Industries Limited {MIL). The principal activities of MIL is
manufacturing of Sugar, Liquor, Electrode, Paint, Gas etc. As at 31st March, 2014 the company has net exposure of Rs.14,685.98 lacs
as debt acquired. The net worth of MIL has been completely eroded. MIL had been daclared a sick Industrial company on March 14,
1991 in lerms of section 3(1)(o) of the Sick industrial Companies Special Provisions Act 1985. No provision for the diminution in debis
is requirad to be made in these financial statements.

35. In case of SBEC Bioenergy Lid., Company's leasing arrangements, which are in respect of operating leasing for premises (residential,
office etc.) ranges between 11 months to 12 menths generally, and are usually renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged to revenue.

36. Executive and Whole time Director's Remuneration included under different heads of expendilure is as follows:
a) In the case of the Helding Company:

{Rs. in Lacs}
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salary, Allowance & Commission 13.99 18.20
Contsibution to Provident fund 1.36 -1.42
Reimbuzsement of Expenses 1.25 0.69
Sub Total 16.60 20.31
Commission on profits Nil* Nit*
TOTAL 16.60 20.31

*In view of [csses in the cusrent year, computation of net profit in accordance with Sec. 308(5) read with Sec. 349 of the Companies Act,
1956 has been made. However, on that basis, no cormmission is payable o the Execulive Director.

h)  Inthe case of SBEC Bloenergy Limited:

Mr. Abhishek Modi, Executive director (From 11th July, 2011), under Companies Act, 1956 was paid remuneration in accordance with
Schedule Xilt te the Companies Act, 1958, The same having been included under difierent heads of expenditure is as follows:

{Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salary & Bonus ' 38.21 33.60
Contribution to Provident fund 2.86 2.64
Others 1.03 3.12
TOTAL 4210 39.36

Note:Remuneration excludes provision for gratuity determined on actuaiial basis as these are determined for the company as a whole.
Computation of Prefit in accordance with Section 349 and 350 of the Companies Act, 1956 for the purpose of Section 198 of the said Act

is as under:-

(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Profit (Loss) for the year before taxation (as per Profit & Loss Account} (529.98) 88.60
Add:-
Depreciation provided in the Accounts 140.63 112.24
Director and Manager Remuneration 42.10 37.15
Less on saie of Fixed Assets 1.43
Subtotal (347.25) 239.42
Less:-
Depreciation as per section 360 of the Companies Act, 1956 140.62 112.24
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets .35 5.65
Profit(Less) u/s 349 & 350 (488.22) 932.84

TR AbRishek Modi ; Execulive Direcior has not been paid any commission dunng the current year due o Inadequate profits.
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37. Segment Reporting {AS-17):
a) Inthe case of the Holding Company:

The Company is a single product, single focation company and hence the requirements of Accounting Standard-17 on ‘Segment Reporting'
are not relevant.

by  Inthe case of SBEC Bloenergy Limited:

The reportable segments as per Accounting Standard — 17 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountant of Indiaon “Seggment Reporting”

are given as under: (Rs. in Lacs)
Power Generation Assets Acquiring Total
Particulars Current Pravious Current Previous Current  Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year

Revenue
External 898.33 938.76 - - 808.33 938.76
injer Segment - - - - - -
Total Revenue 858.33 938.76 - - 808.33 938.76
Resuit
Segment Result (Profit KLoss) before tax) 184 .47 376.07 (15.89) {50.97} 168.78 325.10
Unallocated expenses - - - - 134.05 77.25
Interest Expense 564,71 456.10 - - 564.71 456.10
Interest Income . - 296.84 - - - 296.84
Income taxes - “ - - - (19.88)
Deferred tax - - - “ 158,72 (24.23)
Profit after fax - - _ - - (371.26) 44,49
Other information
Segment Assels 2.323.66 3.432.72 14,685.98 14,685.98  17,000.63 17,818.68
Unallocated Assets - - - - 373.30 212.85
Segment Liabilities 4,656.14 4,840.23 8,300.26 8,304.49  12,865.40 13,144.71
Unallocated Liabilities - - - - 8.93 6.97
Capital Expenditure - - - - 1.09 48.84
Depreciation 140.83 112.24 - - 140.63 112.24

Singe all ihe operations of the Company are conducted within India, as such there is no separate reporiable geographical segment.
38. Impairments of Assets {AS-28)

Carrying amounts of the Assels were reviewed at the Balanca sheet date and no internal  or external indications were noticed that could

have necessitated any provision towards impairment of assets.

29. Disclosures as required by the Amendment to Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement:

In the case of the Holding Company : (Rs. in lacs)
Name of the Companies Amount outstanding Maximum Balance
As on 31t March 2014* outstanding

during the year

Chandil Powar Ltd. — Interested Company 3.00 11.00

40. Related party disclosure as required by Accounting Stndard (AS-18)
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(A) List of Related Parties & Relationship :

SBEC Sugar Limited

As at As at
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
{a} Enterprises that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
control or are controlled by or are under common control with the reporting
enterprise (this includes holding companies, subsidiaties and fellow
subsidiary}
i)  SBEC Bioenergy Limited Supsidiary Subsidiary
(i) SBEC Stockholding & Investment Limited, Subsidiary Subsidiary
i) Moadi Cosin and Packaging Pvi. Lid. Subsidiary Subsidiary
(b} Asscciates & joint ventures Nil Nil
{c) Individuals owning directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of Sh, U, K Modi Sh. U. K Modi
the reporting enterprise that gives them control or significant influence Sh. Abhishek Modi Sh. Abhishek Modi
over the enterprise, and relatives of any such individual. Sh. S. C. Gupta Sh, S. C. Gupta
(d) Key Management Persqnnel Sh. Abhishek Modi Sh, Abhishek Modi

Executive Director

& CEO

Sh. S. C. Gupta
Whole Time Director

Executive Director
& CEO

Sh. 8. C. Gupta
Whole Time Director

62

Relatives of Key Management Personnel & their Enterprises

i Mrs. Kumkum Modi*

(i) Mr. Jayesh Modi

(i)  Ms. Meghna Modi*

(iv)  Mrs. Himani Madi Agarwal®

(V) Mr. Priyank Kumar Agarwal*

(vi)  Mrs Suman Lata Gupta®

(viy  AtoZ Holding Pvt.Ltd

tvii)  Arvind Continental Pvi. Ltd

{ix)  Bihar Sponge Iron Ltd

09 Chandil Power Limited*

(xiy  First Move Management Services Pvt. Lid*

ixiy  H. M. Tubes & Conlalners Pvl. Led*

(xiiiy Jai Abhishek investmenis Pyt Ltd*

(xiv} Jayesh Tradex Pvt. Ltd

{xv) Kamakhya Cosmetics & Pharmaceuticals Pvt. Lid*

{xvi) Longwell Investment Pvt. Ltd

(xvi} M.G. Mobiles India Pvt. Lid

(xvil)  Meghna Autoworks Private Lid*

{(xix) Modi Arls Pvt. Lid*

{xx} Modi Diagnosiics Pvt. Lid*

(xxi) Modi Goods and Retaft Services Pvt. Ltd*
{formally known as Madi Groceries Pt. Ltd.)

{xxi)  Modi lliva india Pyt. Ltd*

{xxiiiy Modi Industries Ltd

(xxiv} Modi Motors Put. itd

(exv)  Modi Mun/dipharma Pvt. Ltd*

(xxvi) Modi Gmega Pharma (India) Pvt. Lid”

{owvily Modi Revien Pt Ltd

(xxvill) Medi Senator (Indiaj Put, Ltd*

(xxix) Modiline Travel Service Pyt Ltd

(xxx} Modi Hitech India Ltd (Formaly Known as Morgardshammer India Lid)

{(xxxi) Revlon Lanka Pvi. Ltd”*

(o) Revion Trading Bangladesn Private Lid*

(xxxiiiy SBEG Systems (india) Ltd*

{xxxiv) Swasth Investment Pvl. Ltd*

(oocv) Umesh Modi Corp. Pyt Lid*

(exxvi) Win Medicare Pvt. Ltd

* Indicates that during the year, there is no transaction with these enterprises
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(B) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (A) above, In ordinary course of business:

(Rs in lacs}

Nature of transaction

Referred in

Referred in

Referred In

Referred in

Referred In

A (1) ahove*® A (2) above A (3} above A (4) above A (5} above
Purchase [ Goods and Services 2.13 - - - 3805.86
(0.90) ) ) 9 (4,708.82)
Sales / Goods and Services - - - - 2754.00
- & ¢ ) (289.02)
Sale of Debt Assignment 12,600.00 - - - -
- Q] ) -} )
Expenses / Computer / Printing & Stationery - - - - 777
{} o] ) ] (7.86)
Air Tickets / Vehicie Exp. 7.80 - - - 270
) Q] ) -} {10.25)
Courier / Freight Exp./Postage & Telegraph - - - - 0.67
o] & ¢} (3 (1.82)
Repair & Maintenance Exp. - - - - -
¢) Q] ) -} (2.00)
Rent/Telephone/Electricity 1.18 - - - 4.58
{0.02} ) ) 0.19) (5.02)
Interest paid - - - 261 101.85
Q] ) Q) (5.57) {85.98)
Salary & Wages efc - - - 16.60 0.82
{C.13) ) ¢) (20.31) )
Consultancy / Sitting Fee - - - 0.05 -
=) ¢ o ) (0.02)
Gifts & other - - - - 0.1
) 9] ¢) 0] (0.16)
Prior Period Exp. 611.30 . - - 2.50
) 9] ) o o]
Stores & Spares Consumed - - - - 8.19
) ) ¢} Q] (8.12)
Income / Interest Received - - - - -
Q] ) ) ¢ o
Lease Rent Recd. — Boiler - - - - -
o] Q] ) ) @]
Cther Income 291.14 - - - -
(346.16) ) ) o 9]
Corporate Guarantees 2000.00 - - - 6301.45
Outstanding as on 31.03.14 (2,660.98)# ) (- (-} (5,834.67)
Investment - lnvestment in Shares - - - . -
o 9] ) ) )
Recoverable / Receivable as on 31,03.13
Advance Recoverable 384.19 - - - -
(675.00) 0] ) Q] )
Finance f Advarice Taken as on 31.03.13 - - - 85.00 -
¢ ) Q] ) )
Year-end Balance of loan & Advance 1800.50 - - 74.70 1129.23
(1,612.50} ) ) ) {1,048.32)
# Guarantee given to SBEC Bloenergy 11d. Rs.2,000.00 lacs {Previous year Rs. 2,660.96 lacs}.
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) Inthe case of SBEC Bioenergy Limited:

A Pursuant to compliance of AS-18 on “Related Party Disclosures”, the disclosure has been made for related parties where iransactions
have taken piace during the year.

A1) Enterprises that direclly ar indirectly controlled or arg under commen control with the reporting enterprises:
SBEC Sugar Limited
Moderate leasing and capital services limited
A(2) Associates : NIL
A{3) Fellow Subsidiaries
SBEC Stockholding & Investment Limited
Modi Casing & Packaging Pvt. Ltd.( Formally known as Modi Gourmet Limited
Al4)_Key Management Personnel
Mr. Abhishek Modi — Executive Director {w.e.f. 11/7/2011}
Relatives of Key Managameni Personnel
Mrs. Nandini Modi
Mr. Umesh Kumar Modi
Mrs. Kum Kum Modi
Mrs. Himani Modi Aggarwal
Ms. Meghna Modi
Mr. Privank Kumar Aggarwai
Mr. Jayesh Medi
A(5Y Enferprises over which Key Management Personnel and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence
Modi Arts Pvi. Lid,
Madi Goads and Retail Services Pvi. Ltd (formally known as Modi Groceries Pul. Ltd.)
SBEC Systems (India} Ltd.
Jai Abhishek Invesiments Pvt. Lid
Kamakhya Cosmetics & Pharmaceuticals Pvi, Ltd
Modi Diagnostics Pvt. Lid
Madi Revlon Pwi. Ltd
Modi Senator (India) Pvt. Lid
First Move Management Services Pvt, Lid
Revion Lanka Pvi. Lid
Swasth Investment Pyt. Lid
Umesh Modi Corp. Pvt. Lid
Modi Omega Pharma (India) Pvt. Ltd
Madi Hilva India Pvt. Ltd
Alo Z Holding Pvt.Ltd
Longwell Investment Pwi. Ltd
Bihar Sponge Iron Lid
Modi Mundipharma Pwt. Lid
Modiline Travel Service Pvt. Lid
Modi Industries Ltd
Morgardshammer India Lid.
Win Medicare Pvi, Lid,
H. M. Tubes & Containers Pvt. Ltd
Modi Motors Pvt. Lid
M.G. Mobies India Pvi. Lid
Chandil Power Limited
Revlon Trading Bangladesh Private Limited
Meghna Autoworks Private Limited
Jayesh Tradex Pvt. Lid
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{B) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in {A) above, In ordinary course of business: {Rs in lacs)
Nature of transaction Referred in Referred in Referred in Referred in Referred in
A (1) ahove* A (2) above A (3) above A (4) above A (5) above
Pyrchase / Debt assignment - - - - -
(12500.00) ) ¢ ) ¢
Goods and Services - - - v 0.04
o] - ) ] Q]
Sales / Goeds and Services 2.13 - - - -
{0.90) ) - 9] Q]
Expenses / Computer / Frinting & Stationery/olher (-} - . - - -
O] ¢ ) 9 {0.01)
Air Tickets / Vehicle Exp. - - - - 16.48
) ) Q] @] (10.87)
Gift & others - - - - 0.12
9] ) o Q] {0.42)
Salary & Other Allowances - - - 60.80 -
9] ] ) {66.83) 9]
Consuitancy / Sitting Fee - - - 0.04 -
¢} ¢} 9] {0.04) -
REC Unit fransfer (220.52) - - - -
(346.16) 9! ¢} Q] 0]
Income / Interest Received - - - - -
(296.84) ) - ¢ )
Loan Taken {net). 577.40 - - - -
(374.32) ] ] ) ¢
L{oan given - - - - -
{) ) Q] ) )
Corporate Guaranteas taken
Qutstanding as on 31.03.14 2000.00 - - - -
{2645.30)* ) S o] )
Recoverable / Receivable as on 31.03.14
Loan Receivable Yearend Balance - . - - -
Q] ¢} ) ) -
Other Recoverable - - - - 14709.27
{-} ) ) (1.46) (14709.27)
Finance / Advance Taken as on 31.03.14
Finance (Loan)
Yearend Balance 1744.90 - - - -
(1137.92) Q] ) Q] Q)]
Other Pay 8700.02 - - 0.15 14.51
(8946.39) -} (-) {8.71) (10.89)

* Guarantee taken from SBEC Sugar Ltd, Rs. 2000.00 {Previous year Rs. 2645.30).
41) Lease (AS-19)
Operating Lease

The company has entered into operating [eases for its office and for employee’s residence that are renewable on a periodic basis and
cancellable al Company’s optlon. The Company has not entered into sublease agreements In respect of these leases. Further, the Company
has not entered into any non-cancellable leases.

42) Deferred Taxation (AS-22}
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a} Inthe case of the Holding Company:
Deferred taxes arise because of difference In treatment between financial accounting and tax accounting, known as “Timing differences”,
The tax effect of these timing differences is recorded as “deferred tax assets” (generafly items that can be used as a tax deduction or credit
in future periods) and “deferred tax labilities” (generally items for which the company has received a tax deduction, but has not yet been
recorded in the statement of income).
The principal components of the net deferred tax balance are as follows:
(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Deferred Tax Liability
Depreciation 812.07 895.30
Other Deductions - -
Sub Total A 812.07 895.30
Deferred Tax Assels
Business Loss / Unabsorbed Dep. 4419.28 2,663.53
Deduction ufs 438 ' 27,56 120.40
Disallowance 40(A)7) 39.10 27.30
Sub Total - B 44B86.45 2,811.23
Net Deferred Tax Assets/{Liability) {B-A} 3674.38 1,9156.93
*Assets Recognised (Refer note below) 812.07 895,30
* in view of continuous losses, during the year recognition of deferred tax assets has been restricted fo the extent of deferred tax liability.
b} In the case of SBEC Bioenergy Limited:
Break-up of Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities into major Components is given below:
B In the case of SBEC Bioenergy Limited:
Break-up of Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities into major Components is given below:
Deferred Tax Assets Deferred Tax _ Current Year Deferred Tax
Assetl (Liability) as at (Charge} / Credit Assetl(Liability)
31.03.2014 as at 31.03.2013
Depreciation : (55.17) {86.93) 31.75
Disailowanca u/s 43B 3.64 254 3.64
Gratuity 585 (0.28) 5.93
Carry Forward Losses 342.28 245,93 96.45
Other Disallowance under |, Tax Act 16.82 - 16.82
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) 313.32 15872 154,60

43) For SBEC Stockholding and Investment Limited:

In the current financial year the company has further invested Rs. 287.50 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 5756.00 lacs) in the Zero percent
Compulsory Convertible Debentures of Mis Modi Jiva India Pvi. Ltd. Which is a joint venture of the company.

44) The company in terms of Board of Director's resolution dated 6th July 2013 has filled a reference with the Board for Industrial and financial
Reconstruction (BIFR} WS 15(1) of the Sick Industrial companies {Special provisions) Act 1985 {(SICA) vide its letler dated 24th July 2013
and as per communication received from BIFR vide its letter No. 3/(S-22){BG/2013 dated 21st August 2013, The said reference has been
registered by BIFR as case No. 58/2013. The BIFR has declared the company as Sick u/s 3(1)(0) of SICA and appeinted IDBI as operating
agency u/s 17(3) of the Act. in its hearing held on dated 04.02.2014. Since the Company has continued its normal manufacturing operations
during the season 2013-14 therefore the accounts are prepared on a “Going Concern Basis”.

45) Additional informatien pursuant to provisions of Part If of Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1958 (lo the extent applicable).
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A) inthe case of the Holding Company:
{a) Capacity

Installed Capacity)
(as certified by the management

Year Ended
31+ March, 2014

Year Ended
31t March, 2013

Sugarcane Crushing M.T. per day 8000 8000
(Mo License required)
b) PRODUCTION, PURCHASE, TURNOVER & STOCK (Rs in lacs)
Classes of Goods Opening Stock Production Sales Closing stock
Quantity Quantity Quantity Value Quantity Value
(Qtis) {Qlis.) {Qlls) (Cils.}
Sugar 6,97,185.5 790458 048893.5 29022.09 549750 17738.65
(5,50,075) {7,90,676)" (6,43,565) (20,502.58) (6,97,185) (22,764.13)
Molasses
{By-product) 2,44,993.9 476030.3 562082.2 2616.57 158042 732.21
(2,61,611.95) {4,63,389) (4,80,007.75) (1,937.23) {2,44,993.90) (812.55)
Purchases
Sugar Trading 83255 127026.3 200160.3 7044.54 10121 352.99
(98,545) {2,11,469) (2,24,749.65) {8,182.66) {83,265) (3,005.15)
¢} Consumption of raw materials
(Rs. In lacs)
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2014 31t March, 2013
Particulars Quantity Value Quantity Value
(Quintals) (Rs. Iniacs) {Quintals) {Rs. In lacs)
Sugar Cane 9123095 25188.50 (92,38,300} (25,468.48)
d) EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (On accrual basis)
(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Current year Previcus Year
Interest, Others, 2219 18.23
8)  CIF VALUE OF INPORTS
Store & Spares 18.65 14.99
b} Inthe case of SBEC Bivenergy Limited:
{a) Statement of Instalted & Licensed Capacity and Generatlon Quantity: @
Description Licensed Capagcity Installed Capacity Actual Generation®
Power Not Applicable 24MW 4,90,14,150 kwh
(24MW) (4,60,27,960 kwh}
Steam Not Applicabie 77 tph 2,25,609 tones
(77 tph} (2,26,936 tones)
Figures in brackets are for Pravious Year.
* Transmission losses have not been considered In arriving at generation quantity.
@ The plant operated for 138 days in the current year (previous year 134 days).
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{b) Details of Sale / Conversions (Rs. in lacs)
Op.Stock Conversion Sales Cl. Stock
Description Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity* Value
Power 13,76,137 - 2,37,29,180 - 2,18,31,969 - 11,46,514 -
kwh 1446 kwh - kwh 898.33 kwh - 12.84
{13,76,137 {(16.46) (1.94,42,654 ) (2,30,26,314  (938.76) (13,76,137  (14.46)
kwh) fowh} kwh) kwh)
Steam - - 2,265,600 - - - - -
tons
9] -} (2,26,936 - & o] G o]
tones)
Figures in brackets are for previous Year.
* Includes 1,43,314 kwh (Previous Year 1,72,017 kwh) charged as banking fee by UPPGL.
{c} Cansumption of imported and Indigenous Raw Material and Stores & Spares {Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Indigenous Imported
Value % Value %
Raw Malerial (Bagasse)* - 100 - -
) (100) ) )
Store / Spares{Including Fixed
assels) 161.68 100 - -
(127.49) (100) ) 5]
Figures in brackets are for previous year.
*Bagasse is being supplied free of cost by SBEC Sugar Ltd.
{d} Value of Import on CIF Basis (Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Current year Previous year
Store & Spares - -
{e)  Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Paid}
(Rs. in lacs)
Particutars Current year Previous year
Purchase of stores and spares - -
Others 8.89 25,72
48. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (AS-15)
A} In the case of the Holding Company:
As per Accounting Standard 15 "Employee Benefit” the disclosure of Employee Benefitas defined in Accounting Standard are given below: -
a} Defined Contribution Plan
Employer's Contributions to Defined Contributicn Plan, recognized as expense for the period are as under:
(Rs. in lacs)
Year ended Year ended
Jist March 2014 31st March 2013
Employer's contribution to Provident Fund 54.43 55.82
b) Defined Benefit Plan
The employees' gratuity fund scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Gredit Method, which recognizes sach period of service as giving rise 1o additional unit of employee benafit
entiflement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for leave encashment is recognized in the
same manner as gratuity.
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1. Reconciliation of opening and closing batances of Defined Benefit Gbligation. {Rs. in lacs}
Particulars Leave Leave
Gratuity Gratuity Encashment Encashment

{Unfunded} {Unfunded) {Unfunded} (Unfunded)

) 31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
Defined Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period. 88.34 92.2 14.10 12.66
Past Service Cost - - - -
Current Service Cost. 17.25 13.44 1.0 2.04
Interest Cost. 7.07 7.36 1.13 1.04
Actuarial (gain)/loss 26.44 {3.42) (1.11) 1.71
Benefits, Paid (12.55) 21.26 (0.80) (:26)
Settlement cost ' - - - -
Defined Benefit obligation at the end of the period 126.55 88.34 15.23 14.10

2,  Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair vaiue of plan assets as at the beginning of the period - - - -
Expected Return - - - -
Acluarial (gaimloss . - - - -
Contribution by Employer - ’ - : - Lo
Benefits Paid - - - - -
Settlement cost - . - - -
Fair valuz of plan assets as at the end of the ‘- - - - -
Actuatl return on plan assets . . .- - : - -

3. . Reconcillation of amount recognized in Balance Sheet e (Rs. in lacs)

Pariiculars - - " Leave Leave
o Gratuity Gratuity Encashment  Encaghraant
. (Unfunded) {Unfunded) {Unfunded) (Unfunded)

- . 31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.05.2014 31.03.2015
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at 31st March - - - -
Prasent value of obligation as at 31st March - 126,65 88:34 18.23 14.10
Net assetf(liabifity) recognized in the Balance Sheet | (126.58) (88.34) . (30.28)»° T {32.3N0°

A [t includes company grade employees’ freeze Jiability in hooks amounting te Re.15.05 lacs (Previous year 261112 Rs.18.27 L.acs).

4,  Expense Recognized during the period in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Curreni Service Cost 17.25 13.44 1.90 2.04
Past Service Cost - - - -
Interest Cost 7.07 7.38 1.13 1.04
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Net Actuarial {gainVloss recognized during the period 26.45 (3.42) (1.11) (1.71)
Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss . 50.77 17.39 .1.92 - 457

5.  Actual Return on Plan Assets . _
Expected Return on Plan Assets L o - . - S
Actuarial {gain)/ioss . - _‘_ . ‘ - oy
Actual return on plan assets L - Co T - - ' s

8.  Principal Actuarial Assumptions ) {Rs. in lacs}
Particulars : . .. Loave Leave
: . Gratuity Gratuity Encashment Encashment
{Unfunded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded). (Unfunded)

31.03.2014 31.03.2013 | 31.03.2014 31.02,2013

Mortality Table (LIC}) i 1994-96 1994-98 1994-85 1994-96
’ _ duly modified duly modified duly medified  duly modified

Discount rate as at 31st March 8.50% 8% 8.50% 8%
Future Salary Increase 8% 5.50% 6% 5.50%
Expected rate of return on plan assets - - - -
Retiremani Age ’ 80 Years 60 Years 60 Years 60 'fears
Withdrawal Rates Age - : Withdrawal Withdrawal Withdrawal withdrawal
Upto 30 years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
From 31to 44 years 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Ahove 44 years 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
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Amaount for the current and previcus four periads in periods in respect of leave encashment are as follows

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars Leave Leave Leave Leave Leave

Encashment Encashment Encashment Encashment Encashment

{Unfunded} {Unfunded) (Unfunded) {Unfunded) {Unfunded)

31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2042 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

PBO 15.23 14.10 12.99 11.49 9.51

Plan Assels - - - - -

Net Assets/(Liability) (15.23) (14.10) (12.99) (11.49) (3.51)

Experience adjusiment of plan asséts(loss)lgain - - - - -

Experience adjustment of plan liabiiities{loss)/gain __ 1.12 1.76 1.34 1.01 14.07
Amount for the current and previous four petlods in perieds in respect of Gratuity are as follows

{Rs. inlacs)

Particutars Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity

(Unfunded) {Unfunded) {Unfunded) (Unfunded)  (Unfunded)

31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2012 31.03.2011 31.03.2010

PBO 126.55 88.34 92.19 73.06 57.08

Flan Assetls - - - - -

Net Assets/(Liability) (126.55) (88.34) (92.19) {73.06) (57.08)

Experience adjustment of plan assets(loss)/gain - - - - -

Experience adjustment of plan liabilities (loss)/gain(26.37) 3.79 {4.13) 218 9.20

The sstimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarlal valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The actuary cerlifies the above information.

Actuarial vaiuation of Leave Encashment for period ended 31st March, 2014 and 31st March, 2013 pertain fo only Seasonal Wage-board
grade employees, therefore there is dgifierence in expense recognized in statement of profit & Loss and amount as mentioned in Actuarial
certificate. However the expensas have been provided on Accrual Basis,

B) Inthe case of SBEC Bioenergy Limited:
The Company has adopted Revised Accounting Standard - 15 Employes Benefits'. In accordance with the transitional pravision of revised
AS - 15, additional liabifity (net of tax) under new method as at 1st April, 2008 as compared to liabifity provided under Pre-revised AS - 15
to be adjusted against the balance of General Reserve as at 1st Aprif, 2009 is NIL.
a}  Defined Contribution Plan
Contributions to Defined Coniribution Plan, recognized as expense for the year are as under:
(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars 201314 2012-13 201112 2010-11
Employer's contribution to Provident Fund 10.71 10.82 11.96 9.01
b)  Defined Benefit Plan
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The employees” gratuity fund scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligationis  determined based on actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Method, which recagnizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee

benefit sntitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation, The obligation for leave encashment is recognized
in the same manner as gratuity. )
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keconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation. {Rs. in lacs}
' Leave Leave Leave Leave
Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity Gratwity  Encashment Encashment  Encashment  Encashment
(Unfunded)  (Unfunded) {Unfunded)  (Unfunded) Unfunded) (Unfunded) {Unfunded) {Unfunded)
2013-14 209213 201112 2010-11 2013-14 2012-13 2011-42 2010-11
Defined Benafit obligation at the '
beginning of the year 19.20 22.50 19.65 18.13 2.54 1.99 1.57 1.80
Current Service Cost 2.85 3.22 3.26 2.84 0.46 0.45 0.42 0.42
Past Service Cost - - - 0.18 - - - -
Interest Cost 1.54 1.80 1.67 1.45 0.20 0.16 0.13 0.14
Actuarial (gain)/loss 0.44 {(7.97) (0.75) © {0.95) 0.19) (07 0.33 {0.79)
Benefits Paid (6.73) (0.38) (1.33) {2.01) (0.01) - (0.46) -
Settlement cost - - - - - - - -
Definad Benefit obligation
at the end of the year 18.30 19.2 22.50 190.66 3.00 2.54 1.99 1.687
Reconcillation of opening and closing balances of Fair Value of Plan Assets (Rs. in lacs)
Leave Leave Leave Leava
Gratuity Gratuily Gratuity Graluity  Encashment Encashment  Encashmert  Encashment
(Unfunded)  {Unfunded) (Unfunded)  (Unfnded)  (Unfunded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded} (Unfunded)
2013-14 201213 201112 2010-11 2013-14 2012413 201112 2610-11
Fair value of plan assets as
at the beginning of the year - - - - - -
Expected Return - - - - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss - - - - - -
Confribution by Employer - - - - - -
Benefits Paid - - - - - -
Settlement cost - - - - - -
Fair value of plan assels as at
{he end of the year - - - - - -
Actual return of plan assets - - - - - -
Reconciliation of amount recognized in Balance Sheet (Rs. in lacs)
Leave {eave Leave Leave
Gratuity Graluity Gratuity Graluity  Encashment Encashment  Encashment  Encashment
{Unfunded}  {Unfunded) (Unfunded)  {Unfunded) {Unfunded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)
2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-1 209314 2012-13 20112 2010-14
Fair Value of Plan Assels
as at 31st March, 2013 - - - - - - - -
Present value of obligation
as at 31st March, 2013 18.30 19,20 22.50 19.65 3.00 2.54 1.99 1.67
Net asset/(fiability} recognized
in the Balance Sheet! (18.30) {19.20) (22.50) {19.65) (3.00) (2.54) (1.99) (1.57)
Expense Recognized during the period In Profit & Loss Ale. (Rs. in lacs)
Leave Leave Leave Leave
Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity Gratiity  Encashunent Encashment  Encashment  Encashment
(Unfunded) {Unfunded) {Unfunded)  {Unfunded) {Unfunded) {Unfunded) {Unfunded) (Unfunded)
201314 201213 201112 2010-11 2013-14 21213 201112 20151t
Current Service Cost 2.85 3.22 3.26 2.84 (.48 0.45 0.42 0.42
Past Service Cost - - - 0.19 - - - -
Interest Cost 1.54 1.80 1.67 1.45 0.20 0.16 0143 0.14
Expected return on plan assets - - - - - - - -
Net Actuarial (gain)/ oss
recognized during the period 044 (7.97) (0.75) 0.95 0.19) (0.07) 0.33 (0.79)
Expenses recognized in the
statement of Profit & Loss 4.83 {2.95) 4,18 3.53 047 0.55 0.89 (0.23)
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5. Actual Return on Plan Assets (Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Gratuity & Leave encashment {Unfunded)

Expected Returrs on Plan Assets -
Actuarial (gain) loss -
Actuat return on plan assets -
6. Principal Actuarial Assumptions {Rs. inlacs)
Leave Leave Leave Leave
Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity  Encashment Encashment  Encashment  Encashment
(Unfunded)  (Unfunded) {Unfunded)  (Unfunded)  {Unfunded) (Unfunded) {Unfunded} (Unfunded)
2013-44 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11
Mortality Table(LIC) 1994-06  1994-96 1994-96 1994-96 1994-96 1994-96 1994-96 1994-96
duly duly duly duly duly duly duty duly
modified  medified maodified modified modified modified madifed modifed
Discount rate as at
31st March, 2013 8.50% 8.00% 8.50% 8.00% 8.50% 8.00% 8.50% 8.00%
Future Salary Increase 6.00% 5.50% 6.00% 5.50% 6.00% 5.50% 6.00% 5.50%
Expected rate of
return on plan assels - - - - - - - -
Retirement Age 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years
Age Withdrawal ~ Withdrawal Wilhdrawal — Withdrawal — Withdrawal Withdrawal Withdrawal Withdrawal
Rates Rales Rates Rates Rates Rales Rates Rates
typlo 30 years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, lake into account inflation, senlority, promotion and other
relevani factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The actuary cerlifies the above information.

47) Considering the adverse economic/sector conditions and current financial instability the Management of the company vide their resolution
dated 05th March 2013 has decided to dispose-off its Chandit Power Plant (under implementation). The company has formed a committee
to negotiate with potential buyers. The management expects that the assets will be realized 1o the extent as stated & does not call for any
provision as on the date of the Balance Sheet. Therefore, the Capital Work in Progress, Capital Advances and other related accounts of
ihe Ghandil Power Project have been shown as assets held for disposal.

48) Previous year figures have peen regrouped/ rearranged wherever considered necessary.

Pravious year figures are given in the bracket wherever applicable.

SIGNED FOR IDENTIFICATION NOTE 1 to 48

For & on behalf of

DOOGAR & ASSOCIATES Umesh K. Modi Abhishek Modi G.C. Jain
Chartered Accountants {Chairman & President) (Executive Director) (Director}

Firm Regan. No. : 000561N DIN No, 00002757 DIN No. 00002798 DIN No. 00002696
Mukesh Goyal - Arun Kumar Gupta Shwetambery Khurana
Mg. Partner (Chief Financial Officer) {Company Secretary)

Membership No. : 081810

Piace : New Delhi
Date : 28th May, 2014
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SBEC SUGAR LIMITED

CIN: 115421UP1991PLC019160
Regd Off: Village Loyan Malakpur, Tehsil Baraut, District Baghpat, UP
20th Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, the 25th September, 2014 at 230 P.M.

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of Companies Act, 2013 and rules 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

NAIME OF tHE MIEIBEL (8] 1erertrererrornmiessstieiins s tras s s L s e LSRR RS LS SRS SRR s e
REEISTErEH AGHIESS! .coiiissirssernrsrre st tsm s st b s A RS e

211 o TSR o 1| » CHRUCTRVEPTUOUUOORUtN . {-'- S 1«1 |« B | [ BRI RR R No. of
Shares:!. . cissnans

i/We, being the member(s} holding ...convcanirsiimaninne shares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint: ’

1. NAGME § cvriniiieisraesens OF e eesrireresss e N@ViNG an E-mail 110 LTSRN 3 2 V- 1 1 £ - NP 1 1) -
him/her;

2. NGME ! eeverirerenrrnerresrnsne O nsiiinnn e, having an E-mail 1D s eeeeeirssrsnenn SIENALUFE s verenn, TRIING
him/her;

3. NAMEB v sisssserssnans Oferrrriinrinnieeninees ....having an E-mail ID: v eeeeseserarces i SIENEEUN e iessirenan FRIING
him/her;

as myfour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 20" Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on the 25th day of September, 2014 at the Registered Office of the
company at Village Loyan Malakpur, Tehsil Baraut, District Baghpat, UP at 2.30 P.M. and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution | Resolution Vote {Optional see Note 2)
number For Against | Abstain
Ordinary business
1. Adoption of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Report of

the Board of Directors and Auditors for the financial year ended

March 31, 2014,
2, Appointment of Mrs. Kumkum Modi who retires by rotation and

being eligible offers herself for re-appointment.
3. Re-appointment of M/s. Doogar & Associates,, Chartered

Accountants, Auditors and flxing their reruneration.

Special Business

Appointment of Mr. G.C. Jain as an independent Director.

Appointment of Mr. Om Prakash Modi as an Independent Director.

Appointment of Mr. Philogene Claude as an Independent Director.

Appaintment of Mr, Manmohan as an independent Director.

Appointment of Mr. Norland L. C. Suzor as an Independent Director,

DN ;DR

Change in designation of Mr. Santosh Chandra Gupta from WTD to
Non-executive Director.

10. Re-appointment of M/s. M.K. Singha! & Co., Cost Accountants, and
ratified their remuneration.

11. Authorization to the Board of Directors for making Berrowings.

12. Authorization to the Board for ratified there Act for issued
Guarantee to one of its Subsidiary.
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Signed this........ day of i 2014

Signature of shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)
Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Notes:

This form of proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less then 48 hours before the commencement of meeting,

It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the for, against or abstain column blank against any or all
resolutions, your proxy wiil be entitled to vote in the manner as he / she may deam appropriate.




